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Properties Portfolio Overview

MFEAEHE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
Completed project

GFA (m?)

Interest

Saleable  Commencement/ attributable

Site Area
Project name Place (m3)  Residential
Le Paysage Shenzhen 42,233 90,063

Properties under development/to be developed

Shop  Others!"

5,890 42,180

GFA (m?)

Total  Area(m?)  completion date to the Group

138,123 96,953 2008/Q1-2014/Q3 100%
Interest
Saleable  Commencement/ attributable

Site Area
Project name Place (m3)  Residential
The Landale Chaohu 122,363 78,120
Fushun Project Shenyang 72,350 N/A

PROPERTY LEASING BUSINESS

Project name Place

Gang Long City Shopping Centre Shenzhen

Shop  Others"

4,854 2,782
N/A N/A

Total Area(m?)  completion date to the Group

85,756 82,974 note (2) 100%
NA 195345 note (3 90%

100% owned by the Group
Leasable area (m?)

64,397

Notes:
(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces
(2)  The project is currently suspended

(8)  The project is currently put on hold

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018



Properties Portfolio Overview
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Group Financial Summary

SERKEEE
RESULTS ES
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETn AR®TR AR®ETR ARBETRT ARET:R
Revenue g A 747,595 497,800 1,060,228 729,735 918,657
Rental income e A 45,048 46,908 48,613 47,476 41,124
792,643 544,708 1,108,841 777,211 959,781
Change in fair value of investment &M% 2 N # E
properties 29 (10,700) (7,100) 40,000 95,000 467,000
Change in fair value of financial BRARBEFAERZ
assets at fair value through SRMEELRNE
profit or loss =) 1,011 - - - -
Change in fair value of R ES 2 RAE
a convertible bond ) 73,936 - - - -
Change in fair value of derivative ~ T4 4B T A~
financial instruments AnEEE (1,189,505) (329,855) 17,704 - -
Reversal of provisions (provisions) 3t 5 #A 7 % & # &
for litigations (&) - 289,240 (130,761) (114,393) (98,400)
Reversal of provisions (provisions) 27 & {8 #
for potential claims B (B ) 19,518 (41,882) 14,937 (15,137) -
(Impairment loss) reversal of HREERAZCAE
impairment loss recognised BER)REEBERED
in respect of inventories - (57,034) (21,557) 13,367 59,612
Impairment loss recognised in HREERAZAE
respect of goodwill =R - - (4,039) - (3,564)
Impairment loss recognised in T RRENER
respect of prepayment for SHAZRERE
land use right - - (99,330) - -
Reversal of impairment loss RERPEERKS
(impairment loss) recognised in BRZREER
respect of deposits for BE(REESR)
non-current assets - 438,000 (316,259) - -
Share of loss of an associate N (1,047) (37) - - -
Share of loss of a joint venture EEAENAER (14,896) - - - -
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEMBRARZWE
subsidiaries (B1E) - - 1,145 - (2,001)
Finance costs BERK (161,412 (118,046) (192,137) (296,431) (347,102)
(Loss) profit before taxation bR AT (B HR) & A (1,378,012) 262,084 (393,452) (230,606) (47,420)
Income tax expense ik (80,886) (65,191) (318,839) (161,504) (239,763)
(Loss) profit for the year REE(BR)E R (1,458,898) 196,893 (712,291) (392,110) (087,183)
Other comprehensive income AEEEME2EmEA
(expense) for the year (Fx) 5,648 392 (234) - -
Total comprehensive (expense) FR2EFEIRA
income for the year R (1,453,250) 197,285 (712,525) (392,110) (287,183)
Total comprehensive (expense) YNGR R DN 3
income attributable to owners 2EFEIKA
of the Company fokE) (1,452,893) 197,394 (702,470) (391,185) (286,316)
Total comprehensive expense FEREREGEE
attributable to non-controlling EEECE
interests (357) (109) (10,055) (925) (867)
(1,453,250) 197,285 (712,525) (392,110 (287,183)

Suncity Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018



Group Financial Summary

SEMBEHSE
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERFERER
INTERESTS
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr ARBTT ARETE ARETT AR®TR
Non-current assets ErBEE 2,626,664 1,834,649 1,970,453 2,274,831 2,144,087
Current assets REAE 828,214 1,084,052 1,004,600 1,342,918 2,035,495
Current liabilities nYEE (2,798,989)  (2,403,566)  (2,277,216)  (3,363,623)  (2,906,351)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,714,889) (762,950)  (1,170,883) (821,393)  (1,459,128)
Non-controlling interests FERER 11,129 10,772 10,663 5,217 4,292
Deficit attributable to owners ADBHEE ANEN
of the Company J&5 4t (1,047,871) (237,043) (462,383) (562,050 (181,605)

AERERZERERATF
“E-)\FFERE



Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Chairman Chau Cheok Wa
FE BEEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Director”) of Suncity
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB1,458.5 million this year. This was primarily resulted from the
change in fair value of derivative financial instruments and exchange loss
arising from convertible bonds. Nevertheless, the Group experienced
a remarkable growth in total revenue from RMB544.7 million in 2017
to RMB792.6 million in 2018, increased by 45.5%. Gross profit also
increased by RMB54.6 million, representing a 30.0% increase. These
were mainly driven by the continual growth of two business segments:
(i) Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services and (i) Travel
related products and services.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Cont’d)

Outside the Greater China, in addition to the entering into of technical
service and casino management agreements in Vietnam and Cambodia
during the year, we are also delighted to report that the Group has
successfully acquired a joint venture which primarily holds approximately
34% equity interest in an integrated resort project in Hoi An, Vietham
(“Hoi An South Project”). Phase 1 of the Hoi An South Project is currently
under development and is expected to be completed by 2019. It will
include more than 1,000 hotel rooms, a casino with 140 gaming tables
and over 300 slot machines as well as a 18-hole golf course.

Chairman’s Statement
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Hoi An South Project in Vietnam
F i #9 Hoi An South H H

With the opening of Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge in 2018, Macau’s
tourism industry will be a key beneficiary of the 55-kilometer link. It is
believed our travel-related business in Macau will be benefited.

For Vietnam’s tourism industry, it is developing at an astonishing rate
over the past few years, the international arrivals have been surging
at an annual rate of 30%, with a continuous influx of investment in
luxury tourism products, including leisure tourism, sea tourism,
mountain retreats, and golf. The first-ever casino in Vietnam that allows
Vietnamese citizens to enter and wager was also opened in 2019. On
the other hand, the economy of Cambodia has been improving in recent
years, its gross domestic productivity was worth 22.16 billion US dollars
in 2017 whereas the tourist arrivals have reached 5.6 million. Both are
reaching the all-time highs.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Cont’d)

These are the basis for us to believe that our business strategies to
look for the opportunities in tourism-related business in Asian countries
are on the right track and will bring greater value to our shareholders
in the long run.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group signed a non-
legal binding memorandum of understanding with Paradise Co., Ltd.
(“Paradise”) on a possible co-operation on Paradise’s casino in Busan,
Korea, and we believe that the cooperation can enable both parties to
form a synergy and develop its own strengths, resources and expertise.

In order to retain adequate working capital for the investments in
tourism-related business in Asian countries, the Board does not
propose any payment of dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: nil).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders, customers
and business partners for their trust in, understanding of and support
to the Group over the years. Moreover, | would also like to thank all
staff for their tremendous effort and contribution. We will continue to
explore new business opportunities in the challenging year ahead and
strive for the best returns for our shareholders.

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

29 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB1,458.5 million in 2018 as compared to the profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of RMB197.0 million
in 2017.

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company in 2018 was
mainly attributable to (i) increase in loss of approximately RMB859.7
million in respect of the change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments; (i) the exchange loss of RMB181.0 million incurred in
2018 instead of an exchange gain of RMB41.7 million in last year; (iii)
the absence of reversal of impairment loss of approximately RMB438.0
million recognised in respect of deposits for non-current assets in
2017; and (iv) the absence of reversal of provisions for litigations of
approximately RMB289.2 million in 2017.

Revenue: Revenue was derived from (i) property development, (ii)
property leasing, (iii) provision of hotel and integrated resort general
consultancy services, and (iv) sales of travel related products and
services. Revenue for the year was approximately RMB792.6 million,
increased by approximately RMB247.9 million when compared to
approximately RMB544.7 million for last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales of properties and the continual
growth in sales of travel related products and services and provision
of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services.

i) Property development — The Group delivered residential units
in the aggregate Gross Floor Area (“GFA”) of approximately 2,981
square meters (“m?”) (2017: 1,202 m?), including high-rise building
units of approximately 1,475 m2 (2017: 204 m2), luxury high-
rise building units of approximately 279 m? (2017: 215 m?) and
villa of approximately 1,227 m? (2017: 783 m?). Followed by the
release of the seizure of properties by the court in 2018, revenue
from property development in 2018 increased by approximately
RMB44.9 million.

i)  Property leasing — The revenue represented rental income and
property management services income from the leasing of Gang
Long City Shopping Centre. It recorded a decrease from RMB55.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB52.6 million this year resulting from the decrease in occupancy
rate from 82% to 67%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

il Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services
— During the year, the Group entered into technical service
agreements with integrated resorts in Vietnam and Cambodia
(in addition to the one with a Vietnam integrated resort project in
2017) and therefore generated more revenue by approximately
RMB17.3 million.

iv) Travel related products and services — Revenue mainly
represented the sale of hotel accommodation products and the
increase was mainly attributable to the increase of sale of hotel
accommodation products as compared to last year.

Other income, gains and losses: The decrease in other income, gains
and losses during the year was mainly due to (i) an exchange loss of
approximately RMB181.0 million (2017: exchange gain of approximately
RMB41.7 million) which was primarily due to the translation of convertible
bonds and derivative financial instruments; and (i) maintenance costs
of RMB32.8 million (2017: nil) due to a landslide accident in 2018.

Selling and distribution expenses: The decrease in 2018 was mainly
attributable to the decrease in commission paid for the sales of Le
Paysage.

Administrative expenses: The decrease in administrative expenses in
this year was a net result of the decrease in share-based compensation
benefits offset against the increase in legal and professional fees.

Other operating expenses: The increase in 2018 was mainly due to
the increases in utility expenses.

Change in fair value of investment properties: It referred to the
change in market value of Gang Long City Shopping Centre located
in Shenzhen. The market value of the investment properties as at 31
December 2018 was assessed by an independent valuer. The decrease
in 2018 was mainly due to the prevailing market conditions.

Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”): During the year, the Company invested in certain
listed equity securities, the increase in fair value represented the net
increase in total market price of the listed securities.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Change in fair value of a convertible bond: The Company issued a
convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$570 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB505.1 million) to Fame Select Limited, the major
shareholder of the Company in 2016 (“2016 Convertible Bond”). During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the maturity date of the 2016
Convertible Bond was extended to 7 December 2020 and this resulted
in a change in fair value of a convertible bond of RMB73.9 million.

Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments: On 28
August 2018, the Company issued a convertible bond with a principal
amount of HK$297 million (equivalent to approximately RMB257.5
million) (“2018 Convertible Bond”). Both 2016 Convertible Bond and
2018 Convertible Bond contain derivative components and the change
in fair value of derivative components, as assessed by an independent
valuer, has been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Reversal of provisions for litigations: As stated in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, since the Group reached settlement
agreements in relation to the Bank Claim (as defined in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements) and Consultant Claim (as defined in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements), reversal of provisions
for litigations amounting to approximately RMB289.2 million was
recognised in 2017.

Reversal of provisions (provisions) for potential claims: The
provisions for potential claims represented the potential refunds of
deposits and compensation to the buyers of the properties held
for sale in relation to breaches of terms stipulated in the sales and
purchase agreement entered into between the Group and the buyers.
As disclosed in the note 27 to the consolidated financial statements,
followed by the formal release of the seizure of properties by the court
in 2018, reversal of provisions of RMB19.5 million was recognised
during the year (2017: provisions of RMB41.9 million).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories: The amount
represented the impairment loss recognised for the difference between
the cost and its net realisable value of the Landale in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 2017, as assessed by an independent
valuer.

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of deposits
for non-current assets: The Group received the refundable deposits
for two projects in the PRC in an aggregate amount of RMB438.0
million in 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)
Share of loss of an associate: The amount represented the share
of loss and other comprehensive expense of the Group’s associate.

Share of loss of a joint venture: One joint venture was acquired
through the acquisition of the entire equity interest and shareholder’s
loan owed by Star Admiral Limited (“Star Admiral”) during the year. The
principal asset represents approximately 34% indirect equity interest
in the integrated resort development project located in Hoi An South,
Quang Nam Province in Vietnam (the “Hoi An South Project”). Phase
1 of the Hoi An South Project is expected to be completed by the end
of 2019.

Finance costs: Finance costs mainly comprised interests on interest-
bearing loan and effective interest expenses on convertible bonds. The
increase in 2018 was mainly due to the increase in other borrowings,
the newly issued promissory notes of HK$303,000,000 and 2018
Convertible Bond.

Income tax expense: Income tax expense included current tax, land
appreciation tax (“LAT”) and deferred tax and the increase for the year
was mainly due to the impact of deferred tax arising from LAT.

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

In 2018, (i) property development revenue; (i) property leasing revenue;
(i) hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services income;
and (iv) travel related products and services income accounted for
approximately 22.38% (2017: 24.33%), 6.64% (2017: 10.19%),
2.50% (2017: 0.47%) and 68.48% (2017: 65.01%) of the total revenue
respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
Total pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB1083.1 million (31 December 2017: RMB308.8 million) which
included approximately RMB58.3 million, US$0.001 million, MOP6.9
million and HK$44.3 million respectively.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
(Cont’d)

The Group had total bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB685.3 million as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
RMB617.5 million) of which approximately RMB243.3 million were
repayable on demand or within one year; approximately RMB117.0
million were repayable in the second year; approximately RMB130.0
million were repayable in the third to fifth year, inclusive; and the
remainings were repayable after the fifth year. The Group’s borrowings
carried interest at fixed or floating interest rates. The Group’s total bank
and other borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December 2018
was approximately 19.83% (31 December 2017: 21.16%).

The Group had convertible bonds and derivative financial instruments
of approximately RMB515.1 million (31 December 2017: RMB411.1
million) and RMB1,578.9 million (31 December 2017: RMB439.9
million), respectively. The total of convertible bonds and derivative
financial instruments divided by total assets as at 31 December 2018
was 60.61% (31 December 2017: 29.16%).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB828.2 million (31 December 2017: RMB1,084.1 million) and current
liabilities of approximately RMB2,799.0 million (31 December 2017:
RMB2,403.6 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB685.3 million (31 December 2017: RMB617.5 million) were secured
by certain investment properties, inventories and pledged bank deposits
of the Group of approximately RMB1,714.2 million (31 December 2017:
RMB1,724.9 million), RMB172.1 million (31 December 2017: RMB178.1
million) and RMB0.006 million (31 December 2017: RMB0.006 million)
respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB7.1 million (31 December 2017: RMB5.6 million) were pledged
for the license and suppliers in relation to Sun Travel Ltd., an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

CHARGE ON ASSETS (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMBO0.3 million (31 December 2017: RMBO0.3 million) have been
pledged with the banks as guarantee deposits for the mortgage loan
facilities granted to the buyers of the Group’s properties.

As at 31 December 2018, the indirect equity interest of approximately
34% in Hoi An South Development Limited (“HASD”) were pledged to
a bank for the banking facilities granted to HASD.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. Save for other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, amounts due from directors,
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, amount due to
a director, amount due to a related company, loan from a related
company, derivative financial instruments and convertible bonds that
are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate, the Group did not have material
exposures to fluctuations in exchange rates. The Group did not
engage in any derivative activities and did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its statement of financial position exposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates as at 31 December 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
For the details of contingent liabilities, please refer to the note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENTS
For the details of operating lease and capital commitments, please
refer to the notes 36 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF

SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group completed the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in and shareholder’s loan owed
by Star Admiral, which indirectly owns approximately 34% equity
interest in an integrated resort in Hoi An, Quang Nam Province, Vietnam.

Save for the acquisition above, the Group had no material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a staff force of approximately
141 (31 December 2017: 168) employees. Of this, most were stationed
in the PRC. The remuneration of employees was in line with the
market trend and commensurable to the level of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
bonuses and long-term incentives (such as share option scheme).
Total staff costs, including directors, incurred for the year 2018 was
approximately RMB53.6 million (2017: RMB50.3 million).

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

For the details of event after the reporting period, please refer to note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group continued to
engage in (i) property development in the PRC; (ii) property leasing in
the PRC, (iii) provision of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy
services in Vietnam and Cambodia; and (iv) travel related products
and services.

Property development

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had three property development
projects in the PRC. Namely Le Paysage in Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the Landale located at Chaohu, Anhui Province and a project
at Fushun, Liaoning Province (“Fushun Project”).

Le Paysage

The Group has commenced to deliver Le Paysage to buyers since the
third quarter of 2014 and has already sold approximately 85% of the
total saleable area of Le Paysage as at 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Property development (Cont’d)

Landale and Fushun Project

The Landale is currently suspended due to the change in policy
regarding the rules of scenic area in the PRC while the Fushun Project
is currently put on hold due to unfavorable market conditions.

Apart from the PRC, the Group has been exploring opportunities in
other Asian countries such as Vietnam, Korea, Japan, Philippines and
Myanmar.

Property leasing
The property leasing business is principally engaged in the leasing of
a portion of Hong Long Plaza in Shenzhen, namely Gang Long City
Shopping Centre. The shopping centre has a leasable area of 64,397
m? and the occupancy rate for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
67% (2017: 82%).

Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services

The Group commenced the provision in hotel and integrated general
consultancy services in 2017 and several agreements have been
signed with integrated resorts in Vietnam and Cambodia. As those
integrated resorts are still under construction and the construction
will be completed from end of 2019 onwards, the Group believes the
performance of this segment will improve in the coming years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Travel related products and services

The Group commenced the provision of hotel accommodation products,
transportation tickets and travel related products in Macau since 2016.
In addition to the traditional point-of-sale channels, the Group is in the
process of developing a mobile application to facilitate the sale of travel
related products and aim to launch in the coming year.

According to the information published by the Statistics and Census
Service of the Macau SAR Government, the number of visitor arrivals
exceeded 35.8 million in 2018, up by 9.8% year-on-year. The average
occupancy rate of hotels and guesthouses for the year ended 31
December 2018 increased by 3.9% year-on-year to 91.1%, with 5-star
hotels at 92.4%, an increase of 4.6% year-on-year. The average length
of stay of guests held steady year-on-year at 1.5 nights.

Following the opening of Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge in October
2018, Macau’s tourism industry will be a key beneficiary of the
55-kilometer link as it puts Hong Kong, Macau and Zhuhai within an
hour’s drive of each other and it is expected to boost the regional
tourism.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has extended its
travel products to Vietnam and we aim to enrich our products to cover
more Asian countries in the near future.

Having considered the above, together with the direction of Macau’s
tourism moving towards an integrated leisure and entertainment city,
we are optimistic on the development of the travel related products
and services segment.

Investment in integrated resorts

On 28 August 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
equity interest and shareholder’s loan owed by Star Admiral. Star
Admiral held approximately 34% indirect equity interest in the Hoi
An South Project. The Hoi An South Project is expected to comprise
seven phases to be developed over a span of thirteen years on a site of
approximately 985.5 hectares. Phase 1 is currently under development
and is expected to be completed by 2019 and it will include more than
1,000 hotel rooms, a casino with 140 gaming tables and over 300 slot
machines as well as a golf course.

According to UNWTO Tourism Highlights 2018 Edition, Vietham recorded
the fastest growth in international tourist arrivals within the South-East
Asia region in 2017, the international tourist arrivals further increased
to 15.5 million in 2018 according to Vietnam National Administration of
Tourism, it is believed that the Vietnam tourism industry will continue to
grow and the Group shall benefit from its investment in Hoi An South
Project.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Investment in Summit Ascent Holdings Limited

In December 2018, the Group acquired a minority stake in Summit
Ascent Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

GOING FORWARD

The Group will continue to diversify it businesses to tourism-related
real estate in Asian Countries and grasp opportunities on the provision
for hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services. A
memorandum of understanding with Paradise Co., Ltd. was signed
earlier on the possible co-operation in Paradise Casino Busan. The
Group aims to build an integrated tourism related platform with equity
investments in integrated resorts as well as a tourism-related service
provider to integrated resorts within the Asian region.

2 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, aged 44, was born in Macau. Mr. Chau joined
the Company on 2 September 2011 as an executive Director and
acted as the Chairman of the Company since 8 November 2011. Mr.
Chau was also appointed as directors of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Chau engaged in the business of operating and managing
VIP clubs in hotels. Mr. Chau was previously an executive director
and the chairman of Sun International Group Limited (formerly known
as “Sun International Resources Limited”) (Stock Code: 8029) (“Sun
International”), a company listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and resigned on 5 July 2013.

Mr. Lo Kai Bong, aged 39, joined the Company on 9 March 2017
as an executive Director and was appointed as directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lo has obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Mr. Lo is the Chief
Investment Officer of Suncity Group, which is one of Asia’s leading VIP
services and entertainment conglomerates. Mr. Lo has been involved
in business development of Suncity Group’s overseas businesses.
Mr. Lo is also responsible for the corporate management, mergers
and acquisitions of Suncity Group and is experienced in the gaming
industry. On 12 December 2018, Mr. Lo was appointed as a non-
executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
102), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Prior
to his appointment as an executive Director, Mr. Lo was appointed as
an executive director of Sun International from 13 August 2013 to 28
February 2015.

Mr. Au Chung On John, aged 59, joined the Company on 31 March
2017 as an executive Director and was appointed as directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Au has obtained a Bachelor of Social
Science degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1983.
He has more than 14 years of experience in the gaming industry. From
2004 to 2016, Mr. Au was the senior director of business development,
director of operations as well as various senior management positions
at one of the major gaming concessionaires in Macau. His major roles
included but not limited to establishing business strategies, driving
overall performance and control of VIP business, and overseeing both
gaming and non-gaming operation of newly established properties.
Representing the company, Mr. Au was a member of gaming related
committees formed by the six Macau concessionaires and sub-
concessionaires to provide advice to the relevant regulatory bodies of
the Macau government.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENRGREEBZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva, aged 65, joined the Company on 31 March
2017 as an executive Director. Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva had served at
The Gaming Inspection and Coordination Bureau (“DICJ”), the Macau
gaming regulator, for more than 43 years and was appointed as the
Head of Inspection at DICJ from 2003 to 2016, during which he was
responsible for overseeing the casino operation in Macau. Mr. Manuel
Assis Da Silva is recognised across Asia as an expert on casino game
rules, internal controls in casinos, the control of junket and VIP gaming
operations and in the regulation of gaming machines. He serves as a
consultant to a number of substantial industry participants, including
machine manufacturers, casino operators and other industry suppliers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tou Kin Chuen, aged 42, joined the Company on 26 April 2012
as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of audit
committee and the members of remuneration committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Tou is the principal of Roger K.C. Tou & Co. Mr. Tou
graduated from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University (formerly known as
Hong Kong Shue Yan College) with a Honours Diploma in Accounting
in 2001. He is experienced in audit, taxation, company secretarial,
insolvency and finance for over 20 years. Mr. Tou is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Tou has been
the independent non-executive director of Sun International and Milan
Station Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1150), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 22 July 2015.

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick, aged 80, joined the Company on 26
April 2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of nomination committee and the members of audit committee and
remuneration committee. Dr. Wu obtained his LL.B. degree and
Honorary Doctorate of the University from the University of Buckingham,
United Kingdom. Dr. Wu is also an Associate of Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators and a Barrister of the Inner Temple, the Victorian Bar,
Australia and the Singapore Bar. Dr. Wu was awarded Diploma in
Chinese Law by the then University of East Asia, Macau, now known
as the University of Macau. Dr. Wu has been at the Hong Kong Bar
for over 37 years. He is a practising member of the Hong Kong Bar
Association.

2 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, aged 50, joined the Company on 10 October
2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
remuneration committee and the members of audit committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Lo graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of Science (with honours) in
Computer Science in 1991. Mr. Lo is experienced in securities and
finance industry for over 20 years. He is currently the Head of Equity
Capital Markets of South China Financial Holdings Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tam Soong Jim lvan, aged 63, joined the Company on 1 October
2017 as the Project Director. Mr. Tam obtained a Diploma in Property
Development from the University of Hong Kong, and holds a Master
of Business Administration from the University of East Asia Macau. He
has been in the real estate industry for more than 38 years and has
extensive knowledge and experience in the real estate market in Hong
Kong and mainland China. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tam held
senior position in a number of property development projects, including
but not limited to, integrated property projects and sizeable resort and
casino in Macau.
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Directors’ Report

EXERE

The Board is pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position on pages 71
to 74 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and note 44(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium, capital reserve and accumulated losses. The Company has no
reserves available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers taken together accounted for 8.4% and 17.8% of the
aggregate of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
taken together accounted for 68.0% and 98.1% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors, their
respective associates or, so far as the Directors are aware, any
shareholder who owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company has any interest in any of the said top five customers
and suppliers of the Group for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Kai Bong

Mr. Au Chung On John

Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on pages
21 to 23 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION
The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”). All of the executive
Directors do not enter any service contract with the Company. All of the
independent non-executive Directors have entered a service contract
with the Company for a term of 3 years and subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles and the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, Mr. Chau Cheok Wa,
Mr. Au Chung On John and Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva shall retire from
the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and both the Board and the nomination
committee considered that all independent non-executive Directors
are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) (the “Associated Corporations”)
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY RAEADXARBZHFR
Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interest shares
shares held to total number
Capacity in which Number of under equity of shares
Name of director shares are held shares held derivatives Total in issue*
BRALTE BESRH
ITEREHE FEBRTRS
ESnE EEkRGzEH FERGEE g 4! #wit BB
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr. Chau”) Interest of controlled 4,991,643,335"  1,546,153,846>  6,537,797,181 98.06%
corporation
BAlEELEE(AEE]D REGEE ER
Interest of controlled - 196,666,666° 196,666,666 2.95%
corporation
XEHEE 2R
Mr. Lo Kai Bong (“Mr. Lo”) Interest of controlled 3,610,000 133,333,333° 136,943,333 2.05%
corporation
BRI xEE(EXE]D REGEE ER
Beneficial owner 1,230,000 40,000,0008 41,230,000 0.62%
ERBEAA
Mr. Au Chung On John (“Mr. Au”) Interest of spouse 400,000 - 400,000 0.01%
Bk E(REE]D it B &
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva Beneficial owner 290,000 3,000,0007 3,290,000 0.05%
Manuel Assis Da Silva %t £ ERBEBA
Interest of spouse 520,000 - 520,000 0.01%
LB R
AKEHREEZERBMRAAE

—E\FEERE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. This represents interests held by Mr. Chau through Fame Select Limited, which holds
4,991,643,335 shares. Mr. Chau has 50% interests in Fame Select Limited and is
therefore deemed to be interested in 4,991,643,335 shares.

2. This represents the maximum of 1,546,153,846 conversion shares to be issued upon
the full conversion of the convertible bonds issued by the Company to Fame Select
Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.26 (subject to adjustments). Mr. Chau
has 50% interests in Fame Select Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested
in 1,546,153,846 underlying shares.

3. This represents the maximum of 196,666,666 conversion shares to be issued upon
the full conversion of another convertible bonds issued by the Company to Star Hope
Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject to adjustments). Mr. Chau
has 100% interests in Star Hope Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested
in 196,666,666 underlying shares.

4. This represents interests held by Mr. Lo through Better Linkage Limited and Ever
Smart Capital Limited (companies wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lo).

5. This represents the maximum of 133,333,333 conversion shares to be issued upon
the full conversion of another convertible bonds issued by the Company to Better
Linkage Limited, at the initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject to adjustments).
Mr. Lo has 100% interests in Better Linkage Limited and is therefore deemed to be
interested in 133,333,333 underlying shares.

6. Mr. Lo is interested in 40,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.455
per share to subscribe for shares.

7. Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva is interested in 3,000,000 share options at an exercise
price of HK$0.455 per share to subscribe for shares.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2018 (i.e. 6,666,972,746 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its Associated Corporations
which had been entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 32 and 38 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Convertible Bonds/Derivative Financial Instruments”
and “Related Party Disclosures”, respectively, no other contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements
headed “ Convertible Bonds/Derivative Financial Instruments” and the
share option schemes described below, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of those persons (other than
the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Capacity in which Number of
Name shares were held shares held
£ BERGBZE R BEERGHA

Fame Select Limited Beneficial owner 4,991,643,335"

EHEBERDA EREBA
Mr. Cheng Ting Kong (“Mr. Cheng”) Interest of controlled 4,991,643,335'
corporation
BTHEE(BEE]D REGEE ER
Mr. Chau Interest of controlled 4,991,643,335!
corporation
& 5% & XEHEE 2R
Interest of controlled -
corporation
REGEE ER
Old Peak Ltd. Beneficial owner 334,740,000

ESlEA
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Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interest shares
shares held to total number
under equity of shares
derivatives Total in issue*
BRATE BRESRH
ITAKENHE EERTRH
R&H 28 E B BEZAEIHR*
1,646,153,846°  6,537,797,181 98.06%
1,646,153,846°  6,537,797,181 98.06%
1,646,153,846°  6,537,797,181 98.06%
196,666,666° 196,666,666 2.95%
- 334,740,000 5.02%
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Capacity in which Number of
Name shares were held shares held
8 BERGBZEH FERGHA
Old Peak Group Ltd. Interest of controlled 334,740,000
corporation
XREMEE 2 ES
OPG Holdings LLC Interest of controlled 334,740,000

corporation
REHEEzER

Notes:

1.

Fame Select Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau and 50% by Mr. Cheng. As
such, Mr. Chau and Mr. Cheng are deemed to be interested in 4,991,643,335 shares
held by Fame Select Limited.

This represents the maximum of 1,546,153,846 conversion shares upon the full
conversion of the convertible bonds previously issued by the Company to Fame Select
Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.26 (subject to adjustments). Fame
Select Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau and 50% by Mr. Cheng. As such,
Mr. Chau and Mr. Cheng are deemed to be interested in 1,546,153,846 underlying
shares.

This represents the maximum of 196,666,666 conversion shares to be issued upon
full conversion of another convertible bonds, issued by the Company to Star Hope
Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject to adjustments). Mr. Chau
has 100% interests in Star Hope Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested
in 196,666,666 underlying shares.

Old Peak Ltd. is wholly-owned by Old Peak Group Ltd., which in turn is wholly-owned
by OPG Holdings LLC. Therefore, OPG Holdings LLC and Old Peak Group Ltd. are
deemed to be interested in 334,740,000 shares held by Old Peak Ltd..

The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2018 (i.e. 6,666,972,746 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

3

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

RAEALXARE 2T E#Z (F)

Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interest shares
shares held to total number
under equity of shares
derivatives Total in issue*
BRATE BREIRH
IAKENRE EE#TRH
RH2H8E Ay BEZEIHR*
- 334,740,000 5.02%
- 334,740,000 5.02%

M

HAHEERATBHAEERBEEDNEE
50% - EHit AEERBEERERREESR
MR X A #575 #94,991,643,335 K ik (5 7 5 #E 4 o

ERARRARAMAEEARDAFEITHR
fEHRY S EHRB0268 T (7] THAR)ES
BB A RS B 1T A9 1,546,153,846 K E B R 15 - &
HAEMA R HAELEREESD B E50% -
A It - B St A R B SE A AR B N 1,546,153,846
MBI R A o

WERARABITRAEEZAR A B FHITH A HR
BEHZV S EREB (A FHE)EE
HE B T 1T A & % 196,666,666 A% & 2 1%
M-BAEEBBELHER R AIM100%#E = -
It 4% 12 5 72 196,666,6660% 48 B i% 19 FF A S -

Old Peak Ltd. 1 Old Peak Group Ltd. 2 & # # -
# T i OPG Holdings LLCZ2 & A » A Itk * OPG
Holdings LLC K Old Peak Group Ltd. % & & 7 Old
Peak Ltd.3% /& 2334,740,0000% f& 17 # #E A # & °

BoEREARANK2018F12A31HE &
172 B D 4 2 (BN 6,666,972,746 %) 1E H F 2 o

B XA EZE I R2018F12831H
ARARUTEEANSHAARAIKRSG &EH
RS 10 o B R 15 75 5 & B S 1K I 55 336 15

Al B 2 & R AT RS 8k 2 (E ) # & NOR

mp



PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of public
float of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules
up to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws in the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholder’s
written resolution of the Company. On 2 June 2016, a resolution has
been passed in the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company to
terminate the Share Option Scheme and adopt a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). Following the termination
of the Share Option Scheme, no further options will be granted under
such scheme, but in all other respects the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme will remain in full force and effect and options granted
prior to such termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of,
and permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may fall to
be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted and/
or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme, and/or the New
Share Option Scheme, subsequently.

As at 31 December 2018, a total of 324,900,187 share options
were outstanding which comprised 92,400,187 share options and
232,500,000 share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and the New Share Option Scheme respectively.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme.

(A) Share Option Scheme
Purpose
Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)

(A) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)
Participants
Eligible participants include:

3

(@)

any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or
a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);

the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(a)

the nominal value of the share;

the closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange at the
offer date, which must be a trading day; and

the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the percentage of
the issued shares capital that it represented as at the date of this
annual report

No further options will be granted.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)

(A)

(B)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Period within which the securities must be taken up under the
option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$10 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme has been terminated on 2 June 2016 but the
provisions of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme and
remain unexercised immediately prior to the date of termination
shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
grant, notwithstanding the termination of the scheme.

New Share Option Scheme

Purpose

Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@) full time or part time employees, executives, officers, or
directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not) of the Group;
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(B) New Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Participants (Cont’d)

(b) and any business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
producers or licensors, customers, licensees (including any
sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords or tenants (including
any sub-tenants) of the Group.

Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(@) the nominal value of the share;

(b) the closing price of one (1) share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the percentage of
the issued shares capital that it represented as at the date of this
annual report

500,425,890 shares, being approximately 7.51% of the issued
shares of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(B) New Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under the
option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$1 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 2 June 2026, after
which no further options will be granted but the provisions of the
scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects.
Options complying with the provisions of the Listing Rules which are
granted during the duration of the scheme and remain unexercised
immediately prior to 2 June 2026 shall continue to be exercisable
in accordance with their terms of grant, notwithstanding the expiry
of the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) IR (&)
(C) Movements of the Share Option Scheme (C) BREFE &
Movements of the share options, which were granted under the H E2018F12A3IHIEFE RN B
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December 2018 BEEREASRD ZBRESZZH W
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules: T(HIEE ETARBE17.0716H 7)) -
During the year
R
Adjusted
Date of exercise  Exercisable
Category grant As at Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed As at 7 price period
g3 REAS 112018 B B B BAM 31122018 BREAHE TEA
HK$
BT
Continuous Contract 12.12.2013 462,659 - - - - 462,559 0.344  13.12.2013-
Employees 12.12.2023
KEAHES
Sub-total: \&f : 462,559 - - - - 462,559
Consultants 13.02.2008 3,558,149 - - - (3,558,149) - 3822 13.08.2008-
E 12.02.2018
12.12.2013 91,937,628 - - - - 91,937,628 0.344  13.12.2013-
12.12.2023
Sub-total: V& : 95,495,777 - - - (3,558,149) 91,937,628
Total: #3 95,958,336 - - - (3,556,149) 92,400,187
Notes: i o -
1. 3,558,149 share options were lapsed under the Share Option Scheme upon 1. B :7'::201?$ 1\2 A 31 E' jt FE 3,558,149
expiry of the life of the options during the year ended 31 December 2018. 7 B AR A 70 B AR A B B 89 B R JE O B
B4R B AR R ET & K e
2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of 2. % R A 2 17 12 (B 15 J7’5€ f# & 3 AT AL IR
right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. iﬁ AR F RS 2 K AL B T A A
3. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously 3. ?% i Eﬁ B KRBT fé‘ ' %fﬂ RS
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses. BERZUBRBRT RAEE-

3 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)

(D) Movements of the New Share Option Scheme
Movements of the share options, which were granted under the
New Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December
2018 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing

Directors’ Report
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iR RE(E)
D) FFERENE 22T
H E2018F12A31H Lt FE - R#E

MBREAEROZBREZ S

EARBIEI7.07TRI R

Rules:
During the year
£
Date of
Category grant Asat’®  Granted Exercised Reclassified  Cancelled  Lapsed As at 1§
g5 REBH 112018 RY BAE ENAE Bl BAR 81122018
Consultants 11.01.2017 150,000,000 - - - (15,000,000) - 135,000,000
BE
19.04.2017 16,500,000 - - - - - 16,500,000
19.04.2017 4,100,000 - - - - - 4,100,000
19.042017 6,150,000 - - - - - 6,150,000
19.04.2017 10,250,000 - - - - - 10,250,000
04.09.2017 1,400,000 - - 600,000 (600,000)" - 1,400,000
04.09.2017 2,100,000 - - 900,000 (900,000 - 2,100,000
04.09.2017 3,500,000 - - 1,500,000  (1,500,000) - 3,500,000
Sub-total: /N - 194,000,000 - - 3,000,000 (18,000,000) - 179,000,000
Directors
gz
Lo Kai Bong 04.09.2017 8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000
ERA
04.09.2017 12,000,000 - - - - - 12,000,000
04.09.2017 20,000,000 - - - - - 20,000,000

Adjusted
exercise
price/
Exercise
price
BERAKE
kR
HKS

BT

0.202
0.700
0.700
0.700
0.700
0455
0.455

0455

0455
0455

0455

Exercisable
period

11.01.2017-
10.01.2027
19.04.2017-
18.04.2027
19.04.2017-
18.04.2027
19.04.2018-
18.04.2027
19.04.2019-
18.04.2027
04.00.2017-
03.09.2027
04.09.2018~
03.09.2027
04.09.2019-
03.09.2027

04.09.2017-
03.09.2027
04.00.2018~
03.09.2027
04.00.2019-
03.09.2027

AEREBEZRAERD R
“E-)\FFERE 3 7
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(D) Movements of the New Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

3

BREGE)
(D) B8 IR #E 5t &l 2 2 B (&)

During the year
R
Adjusted
exercise
price/
Date of Exercise  Exercisable
Category grant Asat#®  Granted Exercised Reclassified  Cancelled  Lapsed As at price period
BRENHE
g5l BEAH 11208 Rt Bfif  ENSE BEE  DAN 3018 /FERE ik:d:
HKS
BT
Manuel Assis Da Siva -~ 04.09.2017 600,000 - - - - - 600,000 0455 04.09.2017-
03.09.2027
04,09.2017 900,000 - - - - - 900,000 0455 04.09.2018-
03.09.2027
04.09.2017 1,500,000 - - - - - 1,500,000 0455 04.09.2019-
08.09.2027
Sub-total Mt 43,000,000 - - - - - 43,000,000
Continuous Contract  04.09.2017 2,700,000 - - (600,000) - - 2,100,000 0455 04.09.2017-
Employees 08.09.2027
BEANES 04.09.2017 4,050,000 - - (900,000) - - 3,150,000 0455 04.09.2018-
03.09.2027
04,09.2017 6,750,000 - - (1,500,000) - - 5,250,000 0455 04.09.2019-
03.09.2027
Sub-total /M zF 13,500,000 - - (3,000,000) - - 10,500,000
Total #:f 250,500,000 - - - (18,000,000) 232,500,000
Notes: B 5
1. 18,000,000 share options were cancelled under the New Share Option Scheme 1. 18,000,000 & A% 1 B K A 22 &) B R 70 &L
upon the resignation of consultants of the Company during the year ended 31 Z2018F 12 AN AL FEHRITERER
December 2018. % ¥ 5T B 5L 88 -
2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of 2. ERENTEEATHRIAKREITH
right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. AN A IR AN IR A fth 58 O B B 1T
= .
3. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously 3. EEBRBAIATHE FATRBERE

recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in form of contributions
to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong Kong’s Mandatory
Provident Fund, respectively.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 February 2017, Sun Travel, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into (i) the hotel accommodation procurement
agreement (the “Original HAP agreement”); and (i) the ferry ticket supply
agreement (the “Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement”) with Sun City Gaming
Promotion Company Limited (“Sun City Gaming Promotion”).

The Original HAP agreement has a term commencing from the date of
approval of the Original HAP agreement at the extraordinary general
meeting (the “EGM”) held and convened and ending on 31 December
2017 (both dates inclusive) (the “Initial Term”), subject to subsequent
renewal in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the term of the
Original HAP agreement, Sun Travel may from time to time procure from
Sun City Gaming Promotion, and Sun City Gaming Promotion may from
time to time supply to Sun Travel, the provision of hotel accommodation
and related services, subject to the cap of HK$120,000,000 (the
“Original Annual Cap”).

The Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement has a term of three years
commencing from 6 February 2017 and ending on 31 December 2019
(both dates inclusive), subject to subsequent renewal in compliance with
the Listing Rules. During the term of the Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement,
Sun City Gaming Promotion may from time to time purchase from Sun
Travel, and Sun Travel may from time to time supply to Sun City Gaming
Promotion, the provision of ferry tickets and other complementary
services, subject to the annual caps of HK$8,500,000, HK$10,000,000
and HK$10,000,000 for each of the three years (commencing from 6
February 2017) during the term.

On 15 May 2017, Sun Travel and Sun City Gaming Promotion entered
into a new hotel accommodation procurement agreement (the “Revised
HAP Agreement”) to amend the Original Annual Cap and to provide
additional annual caps. Taking into account the development of the
business of Sun Travel, the Board proposed to revise the Original
Annual Cap of HK$120,000,000 to HK$420,000,000 for the Initial
Term and to provide additional annual caps for the years ending 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019, respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Sun City Gaming Promotion is wholly owned by Mr. Chau, who is
the Chairman of the Company and an executive Director. Fame
Select Limited, which is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau, is controlling
shareholder of the Company interested in approximately 74.87% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Sun City Gaming
Promotion is regarded as a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules, and therefore the transactions contemplated under
the Original HAP agreement, the Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement and the
Revised HAP Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 13 February 2018, Suncity Group Management and Consultancy
(Hoi An) Limited (“SGMC (Hoi An)”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and the Hoi An South Development Ltd (“HASD”) entered
into the technical services agreement (“Technical Services Agreement”).
The Technical Services Agreement has a term commencing from 13
February 2018 to the date of completion of technical and pre-opening
services. During the terms of the Technical Services Agreement, SGMC
(Hoi An) shall provide technical and pre-opening services in relation to
the casino in an integrated resort project in Quang Nam Province, Hoi
An, Vietnam to the HASD, subject to the annual caps of US$2,799,998
(equivalent to approximately HK$21,895,984) and US$799,998 for the
years ending 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, respectively.

As at the commencement date of the Technical Services Agreement,
HASD is owned as to approximately 34% by Star Admiral Limited,
which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. Chau. Fame Select Limited,
which is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau, was controlling shareholder of
the Company interested in approximately 72.17% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Accordingly, HASD was therefore regarded as
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and the
transactions contemplated under the Technical Services Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the Technical Services Agreement
ceased to constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on 28 August 2018,
the completion date of the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
and shareholder’s loan owed by Star Admiral Limited from Suncity
International Holdings Limited by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

4 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFEBEEXRS (&)
(Cont’d)

Parties to the transactions REZAHNA

Service provider

Service recipient

Nature of transactions

Annual cap for
the year ended
31 December 2018

Total amount for
the year ended
31 December 2018

Bz Bz

201812 A 31 H 201812 A 31 H

PR % 4t P& 79 REESH REUE LEEZEFELR tFEZHHE
Sun City Gaming Sun Travel Provision of hotel accommodation HK$570,000,000 HK$562,024,934
Promotion and related services (equivalent to (equivalent to
approximately approximately

RMB483,301,000) RMB476,539,000)

AEBEEHN KBGIKRE REBEEEREBRS 570,000,000 7% 7T 562,024,934 7 T
(HERODAREK (HEROARE

483,301,0007¢) 476,539,000 7T)

Sun Travel Sun City Gaming Provision of ferry tickets and other HK$10,000,000 HK$9,700,407
Promotion complementary services (equivalent to (equivalent to

approximately approximately

RMB8,479,000) RMB8,225,000)

A 55 Ik AEHEYHT RBREMEREMGEERS 10,000,000 7T 9,700,407 % 7T
(HERHDARK (HERHOARYK

8,479,000 7T.) 8,225,000 7T.)

SGMC (Hoi An) Hoi An South Provision of technical and US$2,799,998 US$1,682,307
Development Ltd. pre-opening services (equivalent to (equivalent to

approximately approximately

RMB18,549,000) RMB11,145,000)

EEgZWEB XA HoiAn South R & AR 2,799,998 % 7T 1,682,307 % 7T
Development Ltd. (HERHARE (HERHARE

18,549,000 7T)

KBS EBER AR AT
TR

11,145,000 7T)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Parties to the transactions (cont’d)

During the year, the above continuing connected transactions were
carried out within their respective annual caps. The independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that during the year,
the above continuing connected transactions were conducted and
entered into:

() in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) according to the agreements governing it on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as
a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Full details of the above connected transactions are set out in the
announcements and circulars as aforesaid and are available in
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.suncitygroup.com.hk.

Details of other related party transactions are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

“Group Financial Summary” on pages 6 to 7 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 20 form part of this Directors’
report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and relationships with employees are
also discussed under section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 56 to 62.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

The Group’s business performance in the year under review was
affected by the volatility and uncertainty of macro-economic conditions
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group’s business is also exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate,
foreign currency and equity price risks. An analysis of the Group’s
financial risk management is provided in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify
and manage environmental impacts attributable from our operational
activities in order to minimise these impacts if possible.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on our business and operation.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Future Development

“Review and Outlook” on pages 8 to 10 forms part of this Directors’
report.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
December 2018, there was no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 11 June
2019 to 14 June 2019 (both dates inclusive) for determining the identity
of the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting (“AGM”). No transfer of shares will be registered
during this period. Shareholders whose name appears on the register
of members of the Company on 14 June 2019 shall be entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, unregistered holders of the shares should ensure that all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the share registrar and transfer office of the Company,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on 10 June 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for
the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or an associate.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

For the details of event after the reporting period, please refer to note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS % B Hm

Andes Glacier CPA Limited resigned as auditor of the Company on 20 & # & &t B 177 A [R 2 7] B R 2017 %7 A
July 2017, and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was appointedas 20 B BFE AN R Al Z H B R fEHe =
auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy arising from the resignation  FR 77 @ T BB 17 ({2 ) ]) 2 X 20184F 1 A 16
of Andes Glacier CPA Limited on 16 January 2018. Save as disclosed ~ H # Z (£ & 78 2 &) & 80 - LAE # B 3

above, there was no change in auditor during the past three years. EHMTERARBEEENZR B
FXBEEIN RBE=ZFZHMHERE

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM meeting of the A AR KR EEBERAFAE LIRE2R

Company to re-appoint Deloitte as auditor of the Company. BmECNBEREBYH/ARD G ZEAE-

On behalf of the Board REESFE

Chau Cheok Wa A kE

Chairman FE

29 March 2019 20196 3 A29H
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The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency. The
Company has complied with the corporate governance code (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2018 except the following deviations:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive should be clearly established and
set out in writing. Following the resignation of Ms. Yeung So Lai as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“Chief Executive Officer”) on 31 March 2017, the Company has not
appointed an individual to take up the vacancy of the Chief Executive
Officer, and the roles and functions of the Chief Executive Officer have
been performed by all the executive Directors collectively.

Under code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company should have
formal letters of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms
and conditions of their appointment. The Company did not have formal
letters of appointment for Mr. Chau, Mr. Lo Kai Bong, Mr. Au Chung
On John and Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva, executive Directors of the
Company. However, Mr. Chau, Mr. Lo Kai Bong, Mr. Au Chung On John
and Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once in every three years in accordance with the Articles.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company and invite
the chairman of the committees to attend. However, due to his other
business commitment, Mr. Chau, the chairman of the Board, did not
attend the annual general meetings held on 11 June 2018.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
Directors and other non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, the chairman of remuneration
committee of the Company and an independent non-executive Director,
did not attend the extraordinary general meetings held on 28 September
2018. However, executive Director(s) were present to enable the Board
to develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions of Directors and employees (the “Securities Code”) no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. On specific enquiries
made, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information of the Company are also subject to compliance
with the Securities Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, of whom four are
executive Directors, and three are independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for decision making and fulfilling its business needs. The
participation of non-executive Directors in the Board brings independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance,
conflicts of interest and management process to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent and has received from each of them the annual
confirmation of independence required by the Listing Rules.

Details of the biographies of the Directors are given under the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

Details of term of appointment of non-executive Directors are given
under the section “Directors’ Service Contracts and Rotation” in the
Directors’ Report.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group’s
overall strategies and policies; approval of business plans; effectiveness
of internal control and risk management systems and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive
Directors and senior management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through executive Directors
who have attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities arising
from corporate activities.

Directors ==
Executive Directors: HITESE:
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa [ERCES
Mr. Lo Kai Bong E R AL E
Mr. Au Chung on John BL & o

Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BV FEHTEE :
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen HETFEE
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick HHIRENE L
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EHRLE

Regular Board meetings are attended to by a majority of the Directors
in person or through other electronic means of communication. Besides
the regular Board meetings, special Board meetings are convened from
time to time for the Board to discuss major matters that require the
Board’s timely attention. As some of the special Board meetings are
concerned with the day-to-day management of the Company which
often requires prompt decisions, usually only the executive Directors
attend. During the year ended 31 December 2018, apart from holding
Board meetings, the Board also passed resolutions in writing to approve
certain matters.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors were responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for effectiveness of the Group’s the risk
management and internal control systems. The systems are implemented
to minimise the risk to which the Group is exposed and is used as
a management tool for the day-to-day operation of business. The
system can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulation.

The Group has engaged external professional consultant to conduct
risk management and internal audit of the Group. It performs risk-based
audits to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reports to the Board with its findings and
makes recommendations. The Group has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the implemented system and procedures, including
areas covering financial, operational, compliance and risk management
function.

CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa is the chairman of the Company. The chairman’s
responsibility is to oversee the functioning of the Board and the
strategies and policies of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility is to monitor the daily operation and management of the
Company. The Company has not appointed any person to replace Ms.
Yeung So Lai as the Chief Executive Officer following her resignation
with effect from 31 March 2017.

The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate to
assume the role as Chief Executive Officer and further announcement
in this regard will be made as and when appropriate. In the meantime,
the former role and responsibility of Ms. Yeung So Lai as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company have been performed by all the
executive Directors collectively.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction training so
as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and of his/her duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

Corporate Governance Report
TXRERRE

T = ) S A B
ExgfrAEERAREERAMEZER
RMERMEAE - BRAEBERE ER
EAEHEEHRORER TAFEAEED
KEMmERETAE - EGEAIRH#A2Z2RN
EARERIENAEMIFRBUFRE-C
RARFREEELIACREEA K
BRE BAREFSEENGTLH  UEH
AENMBERERABERXER I
ERETERBERE RAUKRER -

AEBECEZRIIMEXERLETAEER
MEREENMABEZ  ZBERETE
REBOESZ UFBHAKERREE
EFABERRGNARE ARNEES
EHREBRLRELHEB - AEBCDFH
FMERMNAGREFNERE  BEM

BomE ARRRRERBESEL-
ITRRTHAR

AlRERELEAEARBIERF EF2EM
BEBEES2EEULRAEEZ KK
R - THRRAHASTEERARRZH
BEENER RIBEBELZ LT H2017F3
AB1HARET®ER AARLRAZEMAM
AIUBREBEBR LT ETITREH -

AARENEEEAREETRARR
BLEEREBTHEASL B
BEBELEARARGTRAR L RE
BERBEE R BN TEFARMES -

EXBE

BRHZTEFTERAMNBIFI UE
REZBTHEASEZEHBARERE
EHRAREBEEREEREZRE

AERERZERERATF
“E-)\FFERE

49



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Cont’d)

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices. In addition, the Company has been
encouraging the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and corporate governance practices organised
by professional bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and refresh their knowledge and skills during the year.
Such professional development was completed either by way of
attending briefings, conference, forum, courses and seminars and
self-reading which are relevant to the business or directors duties.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Ng Wing Ching, a
member of HKICPA. The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board policy
and procedures are followed. Mr. Ng has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 2018.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring that the
Company has formal and transparent procedures for developing and
overseeing its policies on the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. The committee’s authorities and duties are set out in
written terms of reference.

1 remuneration committee meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2018 for reviewing the remuneration of Directors. Members
of the remuneration committee and the attendance of each member
are set out below:

Committee members

EXZEE
ARREMREHRASEXRHERNEN
BN - BEFTTHEGNLDRYUREM
BRAEREZRHIBR  UBREREST
REBRFAREARER UI AR T
—EZREF2NMBEAEXERAR
CEMABBMLETAR BBERAEKIR
CEEREFRZEERIRELHF G -
PMEEFARBLEEERTARMARF
REESA 2Bk

MEEFEERFA2EAFENFERE
BR O YEHEMBEED - BEFEBL
FERE 2% WwE REKTATEMN
FETHEEREKAEETRANTY
MEXREBEEXZERNITI -

AREIWME
ARABZARMERBRKEEE KA
EECIHMAEEE R WESRARE
REZTEAZRFEABBRAMBHES
g UHRESEHRXELEFSNEST -
B E2018F12HA3IBLEFE  REED
BESTLORI5/NBERNEBEEEE-

FMEES

FMEZE e ERRARAHEAEAR
BHNEF FAIREEEZEEARE
EEFMeBR - ZZBE@NEERRE
EHNEEBELER -

FMEEeNE E2018F 128318 IE&F
BRT1IAEH ULEBDESH - 5ol
ZESENEBLRBEEZHEEH NEH
I

Attend/Held

ZEERE HE BT
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John (Chairman) EHRLEE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen MRFEE A 1/1
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick A 55 B 1 L+ 1/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions include:

() to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of Directors;

(i)  to propose the specific remuneration packages of the executive
Directors, and to make recommendations on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors for the Board’s approval; and

(i) to review and propose remuneration for executive Directors by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The nomination committee is responsible to make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of
the Board’s succession. The committee’s authorities and duties are
set out in written terms of reference.

1 nomination committee meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2018 for assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; considering the re-election of Directors;
reviewing the composition of the Board. Members of the nomination
committee and the attendance of each member are set out below:

Committee members

ZEEME

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick (Chairman) IR BN1E L (E
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen MR TR E
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EHREE

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions include:

()  toreview the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

(i) toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members

and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection

of, individuals nominated for directorships;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)
(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) on 28 December 2018 which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to
set the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time. The Nomination Committee will also review
the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness
from time to time.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 audit committee meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2018. Each committee meeting has been supplied with
necessary financial information of the Group for members to consider,
review and access significant issues arising from the work conducted.
Attendance of the Members are set out below:

Committee members
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Attend/Held

ZEERE HEEAT
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen (Chairman) MEFEEERE) 3/3
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick [ EGEI N 2/3
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EHmREE 2/3
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The terms of reference of the audit committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions include:

()  to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Company’s external auditor,
and to evaluate their independence, objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process;

(i)  toreview and monitor the interim and annual financial statements,
reports and accounts of the Company, and to review significant
and judgemental financial reporting issues contained therein;

(i) to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems; and

(iv) to discuss with the management the risk management and

internal control systems, and to ensure that the management

has discharged its duties and responsibilities in implementing an
effective internal control system.

The Group’s 2018 interim and annual reports have been reviewed by
the audit committee, which was of the opinion that such reports were
prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements. For the 2018 annual report, the audit committee met
with the external auditor to discuss auditing, internal control, statutory
compliance and financial reporting matters before recommending it to
the Board for approval. The committee also monitored the Company’s
progress in implementing the code provisions on the Code as required
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees paid/payable to
auditor in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided by
the auditor to the Group were as follows:
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company has
adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). This Dividend Policy
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends
to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its
profits, realized or unrealized, or from any reserve set aside from profits
which the Board determine is no longer needed, as dividends to the
shareholders of the Company.

In deciding whether to propose or declare a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount and means of payments, the Board shall take
into account, among others: (i) general business conditions and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business
of the Company; (i) the financial performance and position of the
Group; (i) the liquidity position of the Group; (iv) the capital and debt
level of the Group; (v) the expected capital requirements and future
expansion plans of the Group; (vi) statutory and regulatory restrictions;
(vii) contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the Group
to the shareholders or by the subsidiaries of the Company to the
Company; and (viii) other factors the Board may deem relevant.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and investors to
make a properly informed investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the Company at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.suncitygroup.com.hk, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Articles affecting its operations and reporting
practices.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of the Company, extraordinary
general meetings of the Company shall be convened on the requisition
of any one or more shareholder(s) (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and shall be entitled to reimbursement
of all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s).

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or extraordinary general meetings,
and encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered shareholders
of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same to
the share registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint
a representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting
as their proxy.
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The following is the compendium of ESG disclosure components to be
included in the annual report:

ABOUT THE GROUP

The property development business and the property leasing and
management business are the Group’s major business, both of which
are principally conducted in the PRC. Other business segments of the
Group included hotel and integrated resort general consultancy and
travel agency service.

STAKEHOLDER ASSESSMENT AND
COMMUNICATION

The management of the Group (the “Management”) had given
due consideration in accessing and addressing the definition and
concerns of the stakeholders of the Group. Stakeholder assessment
and engagement refer to the process by which the Group involves
parties who may be affected by the decisions it makes or can influence
the implementation of its decisions. In the course of the businesses
the Management had: set out the full spectrum of stakeholders by
consulting various departments within the Group; leverage on the on-
going communication channels and day-to-day interactions to engage
these stakeholders; and conducted an in depth assessment of the
influence and dependency of each of these stakeholder groups. The
Company’s stakeholders can categorically be divided into customers,
suppliers, employees and shareholders.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

As a company that focus on providing services, the Group and its
daily operation generate minor impacts on the natural environment.
The Group does not produce wastewater, exhaust gas emissions and
hazardous waste in day-to-day operations. Indirect environmental
impacts generated by the Group mainly includes following activities:
1) consumption of gasoline (for Group-owned vehicles) and purchased
electricity; and 2) business air travel. Their corresponding emissions
were calculated and presented within following sub-sections. The
Group does not involve in consumption of packaging materials.
Non-hazardous waste generated include office paper and incoming
packaging materials.

During the reporting period, the Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharge into water and land, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

Emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there had not been
conducted any construction work. The other business segments of
the Group produce a certain degree of emissions, most of which are
administrative offices based, details as follows.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Air Pollutant Emissions
There were no direct on-site air emissions. Indirect air emissions,
including both greenhouse gas (GHG) and non-GHG were generated
from the consumption of gasoline for group vehicle, GHG emissions
were also generated from the consumption electricity in office operations
and business air travel.

Vehicle Operation and Emissions

Seven passenger cars and two private vans were used for the daily
business operation. All vehicles were operated on unleaded petroleum.
For the business operation in the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau, during
the year ended 31 December 2018, 27,506 litres of petrol have been
consumed.

BiIR - HERERRS
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2018 (kg)
2018 FF (2 1)
nitrogen oxides (“NO,”) AR NO,]) 16.04
sulphur oxides (“SO,”) a1t ¥ (SO, ) 0.40
respiratory suspended particles (“RSP”), AR ABEEA(IRSP)  XBENY
also known as Particulate Matter (“PM”) (reml) 1.11
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions BEREHMK
2,048.06 tonnes of GHG were emitted in the reporting period, reported 7 ¥ & B3 fE A 3£ BF #22,048.06 2 I )R =
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Greenhouse
Gas (GHG)
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B ERE
BE B (4 g
Activity & B — S 1) %
Scope 1 Direct Emissions Combustion of FE— BEEHERAY
petroleum for mobile transportation RBETHABMRE 74.53 3.64%
Scope 2 Energy Indirect emissions #EZ EREEBERY
Purchased electricity BAZEN 1,945.11 94.97%
Scope 3 Other indirect emissions BE= HMBEEERY
Business air travel ey N/NS-Z3 21.72 1.06%
Scope 3 Other indirect emissions Waste HE= HMEEHERY
paper disposal at the landfill RHEEREEENR 6.70 0.33%
Total emissions # R 2,048.06 100%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not produce any
hazardous waste. The Group produced some non-hazardous waste
which included the domestic garbage and office paper which have
been double-sided printed. The above environmental wastes, which
would pollute the land, would be disposed by the Group to disposal
services provider.

The Group has implemented following schemes to reduce electricity
consumption:

e encourage double-sided printing and reuse of single side printed
paper;

° minimise the use of motor vehicles by having better route plans;

° idle electrical appliances are switched off; and

° regular maintenance and repair for electrical appliances to lower
energy waste.

Use of Resources

The Group has implemented internal policies to minimise the impact
of business activities on the environment and support environmental-
protection initiatives. The Group actively implemented measures to
reduce carbon emission and water usage in our business operations.
Since no construction work had been conducted during the year, the
policy focus was placed on the administrative offices. Measures were
introduced to minimising the use of paper by encouraging double
side printing and paper recycling. The Group also promote paperless
environment by encouraging the use of electronic copy for the document
instead of printed hard copy.

The following consumption data and consumption intensity were
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2018:

Use of resources EREA
Electricity BE
Water =
Paper usage IS
Packing materials B 5= W)k

The objective of conservation of energy consumption and reduction of
energy waste is always upheld by staff members of the Group.
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Environment and Natural Resources

The Group continues to review the environmental impact of its
operations and make use of best practices across their functions and
to develop monitoring of resources consumption data and implementing
better performance strategies as to enhance the contributions to
environmental sustainability through good environmental practices.
The Group does not ignore the opportunity to contribute to sustainability
at the office space, and the Group enhances environmental awareness
of the employees through various means of internal communications.

OUR EMPLOYEES

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group values employees as an intricate and vital part of the Group,
and thus the Group establishes and maintains fair and comprehensive
employment policies and practices to ensure the compliance with all
relevant ethical and regulatory standards, by, for example, providing
equal opportunity and career development to all our employees.
The Group strictly complied with the laws, regulations and policies
regarding employment benefits across different jurisdictions, including,
for example, the social security in the PRC and Macau; and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has 141 employees. The overall
gender ratio between male and female as of 31 December 2018 was at
1:0.78. The graphs below show the workforce distribution by gender,
age group and geographical regions:

Workforce distribution by geographical region
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During the reporting period, the Group did not aware of any material
non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
discriminations.
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Health and Safety

Although the health and safety related risks with office administrative
work is relatively lower than that of the construction sites, the Group
does strive to provide and maintain a safe and healthy workplace for
all employees. One of the measures includes the placement of safety
guides and healthcare tips in observable areas for our staff. Besides,
regular and constant safety training is crucial to the cultivation of safety
awareness. The efforts in safety and health have been paid off and
the Group aims to maintain the record of work-related injury, loss or
fatalities at zero in upcoming years.

RERZZ

HEETHWAL EABRIETHRINE
ZRFEEZEZABRRRE EAKH
DEOIRmERERALAER —ELx 2
gz TESM - Eh —BHEBSHE
ERERELEEINRREEERE-
o EMRFBEZLR2IRHYBTEL
2EITHEEZ-AKENL2ERE
I8 HhEERE BEASNKREH
FREAIGBTRERNBRZZTRLE -

2018 Annual
Occupational health and safety statistics BEREHEZZHG 2018 E
Number of lost days due to work injury TEMEBERZITERE Nil &
Number of work-related fatalities due to work ThT&F Nil =
Number of work injuries due to work IREHETF Nil &

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with the health and safety in laws and regulations.

Development and Training

The Group places a strong emphasis on staff development. The Group
provides timely induction programs to new recruits, to introduce the
Group’s history and development, corporate culture, organisational
structure, the Company’s rules system, office operation platform,
workflow and the Company’s projects, so that new employees can
be soon familiar with the Group’s operation and thus improve their
efficiency. Regular trainings are provided to update knowledge of our
staff from time to time and where deemed necessary. The Group also
encourages the employees to identify their own personal objectives for
development, allowing them to develop according to their own needs
and pace.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of forced and child labour. The
Group complies with relevant regulations and laws to safeguard the
rights of our employees, and will not tolerate labour exploitation.
During the recruitment process, we verify the age of applicants and
the practice is extended to the workers hired by our sub-contractors.
The Group prevents hiring child labour by conducting an identification
check of every new employee without exception. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group did not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations regarding child labour and forced
labour.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group tends to maintain long term relationship with its suppliers for
ensuring a stable supply for services provided by the Group. We also
require our suppliers to monitor their sustainability performance and
acting responsibly in line with our environmental protection policies.

When selecting suppliers and contractors, the Group seeks to balance
various factors to minimize the potential risks brought by cooperation
with suppliers and ensure the stability of service and product quality and
compliance of regulations. In order to realise effective risk management,
the Group has formulated standardized tendering procedures to avoid
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that may
occur during the tendering process. Meanwhile, the Group also requires
its staff to stay alert and handle properly conflicts of interest that may
be resulted from or caused by the process. The Group’s businesses
are dispersed across multiple regions. Priorities will be given to local
suppliers in a hope to promote local economic development and reduce
carbon footprints by shortening the distance of transportation.

Product Responsibility

The Group aims to achieve the highest possible standard with the
services provided. The Group pays high attention to the quality and
has put quality as its first priority to ensure customer satisfaction in
terms of our services.

Meanwhile, the Group also requires its staff to comply with the
regulations in relation to collecting, holding, processing, disclosure and
use of personal data where it operates. Employees shall respect privacy
and keep confidential the personal data obtained during the business
process in accordance with the relevant confidential requirement as set
out in internal policies to protect the privacy of customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to
product responsibility.
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Anti-Corruption

The Group has implemented internal policies and guidelines to
comply with applicable laws on anti-bribery and anti-corruption for the
respective jurisdictions the Group has operations in. These measures
are subject to regular review and update to ensure their effectiveness
to strengthen the internal controls and compliance regime of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliances relating to dishonest and corruption activities
according to the Penal Code of Macau and the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance {5 LEFEER &) of Hong Kong.

COMMUNITY

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

The Group regards promoting well-being and prosperity for the region
as its responsibility. To this end, it has proactively engaged in diversified
community activities and developed community investment strategies
to cope with the development needs of the local community. While
actively contributing to society.

The Group encourages employees to seek opportunities, participate
more in charity work in the future and get involved in various community
programs, such as community health initiatives, sports, cultural activities
and volunteer work.
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUNCITY GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suncity Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 224, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B ZBEHRE

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of RMB1,458,898,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB1,970,775,000
and total liabilities exceeded its total assets by RMB1,059,000,000.
As stated in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
is dependent on the financial support from its controlling shareholder,
which indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
BRERZSEE)

Key audit matter

HREREKREHR

Valuation of investment properties

KREYEZ BB

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the estimates
and the level of judgement involved.
BMERREVEZHESRNSABEREREFE BA
ZEMF 2ERAME R P R 2 #EKF -

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were
assessed by management based on independent valuation
prepared by an independent and professionally qualified
valuer not connected to the Group (“Valuer”).
EEBZREVWEZAAEHEEERSE E5EH
BEHEC BYUREXSERMGEM(EEMDETZ
- AV RN = R R

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties
is inherently subjective due to the estimates used in
determining the fair values of the properties, such as
rental income of the properties derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the tenancies which are then capitalised into
the value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.
EEECREMEZHERABELRETH ERARE
EWMERARBEZZERGT HWERBEEIONEELEZY
FHEHEWBA DEEFRBAZERBRAEZEN A
REEBENERA L EXFEHERA L RETEER:

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties amounted to RMB1,714,200,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

WMAR & B IS 3R K M sE15FT B B - B £2018F 128
BIBLEFE ESEREVEFREEEARY
1,714,200,000 T °

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BENR S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNERNMNEEBERERER

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties included:

BPEREREMEEEZEFERE:

e Assessing the competence, experience,
qualifications and independence of the Valuer;

o FEMMERZEEN KB BEREBILIE:

° Reviewing the valuation reports for the investment
properties valued by the Valuer in the current year;

e ERNRKFERMLEMRZEREMEMIE
MEZEERS

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuer’s
valuation approach to assess if it meets the
requirement of HKFRSs;

e HEZMEMZMEEREZZHEASMNUTGHE
EEAMEEBUMBRELENZ ER:

° Engaging our internal valuation expert to assess
the reasonableness of key assumptions and key
data inputs used in the valuation, such as rental
income of the properties; and

e ZEFMONTFBESZTRUNHEFHREMRMAZ
FAREBERARBARBDABBE BN flWZ
EWMEIHSWA &

e  Evaluating whether disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements relating to the valuation of
investment properties are in accordance with
HKFRSs.
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B ZBEHRE

Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
BREZSEE)

Key audit matter

BEEXER

Provision for land appreciation tax
1 #h 35 (E 7 7

We identified the provision for land appreciation tax in
the People’s Republic of China (“LAT”) as a key audit
matter due to the significant underprovision of LAT in prior
years and significant judgement required in estimating the
amounts of the LAT including the appropriateness of the
tax rate applied and the deductibility of expenditures of
properties.
BMPESPEAREIME 2 T EH ([ 2 ER])
BEBNSABREZFE BRABAFE LI MIBEN
FHEEABEIRUARRGF L EET BRI A
EFHEARHABN(BERMRABEE2EZUERMERX
ZAIHIRIEE) °

As disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s income tax expense in relation to
LAT amounted to RMB58,461,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.
BMEATERRMIIIABEE RNE E20184F12
ABBLEFE BESBEE@ELTHIEER BT
= /A AR 58,461,000 °
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANERNMNEEERERSE R

QOur procedures in relation to provision for LAT
included:

ZMHEMLBEVBEBEIEFRE:

e Understanding how the Group’s management
estimates provisions for LAT,;

e T ESEETEEMFIMEBEREELZ
AR

e Engaging our internal tax expert to assess the
accuracy of the provision for LAT with reference
to the applicable progressive rates on the
appreciation of land value;

e ZEZMHABUBERLZELMEERELZ
ERRER R+ IBE TR 2 ERN

e  Obtaining and inspecting the documents, including
the sales summary supporting the calculation of
LAT; and

e EREkBREXMH BDEEFHALMEBERE
ZHEME R

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of
the amount of LAT with reference to the estimated
deductible expenditures including the cost of land
use rights and all relevant property development
expenditures.

s REB2EMGMFHRAX(BFELMERERER
FTEMBYERER MM LB ER 2 MH
ez EEM-



Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEHRE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEHRE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kai Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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Cansolidated ‘Statement -of Profit-or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEBERRAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018F 12 A31H L FE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARET T
Revenue N 6 747,595 497,800
Rental income e WA 45,048 46,908
792,643 544,708
Cost of sales 35 B KA (555,967) (362,658)
Gross profit £ F 236,676 182,050
Other income, gains and losses Hag A Wz KkEiE 7 (216,514) 43,515
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIEER (7,044) (27,730)
Administrative expenses TRER (103,497) (105,600)
Other operating expenses Hih&EER (4,538) (3,437)
Change in fair value of investment KEMEZALEZH
properties 15 (10,700) (7,100)
Change in fair value of financial assets BAREG AERZ
at fair value through profit or loss CRMEEZRAREET 1,011 -
Change in fair value of a convertible bond AJ# k&4 2 A A BEEH 32 73,936 -
Change in fair value of derivative financial 74 & @ T E 2 A A &
instruments = EF 32 (1,189,505) (329,855)
Reversal of provisions for litigations Tt A B 2 B B 30 - 289,240
Reversal of provisions (provisions) BEREBRGERDGEE)
for potential claims 27 19,518 (41,882)
Impairment loss recognised in respect REFERRZBEESE
of inventories 20 - (67,034)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised S IERBEEILR S B R
in respect of deposits for 2B EBERRE
non-current assets - 438,000
Share of loss of an associate FE 15 B & R R & 1B 17 (1,047) (37)
Share of loss of a joint venture R = /NIl -k 18 (14,896) -
Finance costs & & AR 8 (161,412) (118,046)
(Loss) profit before taxation R B AT (& 18)% F 9 (1,378,012) 262,084
Income tax expense Fr 15 % 5 2 11 (80,886) (65,191)
(Loss) profit for the year REE(EB)ER (1,458,898) 196,893
Other comprehensive income: Httz2mKA :
Exchange differences on translating HgngEsosEs
foreign operations that may be Bam Mg gL
subsequently reclassified to MEEZELEZER
profit or loss 4,943 392
Share of other comprehensive EE—RHEeE A a Hm
income of a joint venture, ZEKA KBS
net of related income tax BT 15 % 705 =
Total comprehensive (expense) FREMFAII)WALLE
income for the year (1,453,250) 197,285
KRG HEEIZERERA A

“T)\FEFERE
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.and Other Comprehensive Income

meEERkEMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018F 1231 B L F[E

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Y 5E ARBTRE ARETT

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: L\ T A + FE{E & F &

(B HB)EF :
- Owners of the Company - ARQEEE A (1,458,541) 197,002
- Non-controlling interests — JE 7 B A 2 (357) (109)
(1,458,898) 196,893
Total comprehensive (expense) DTATELMETEE
income for the year attributable to: ZHEH(AZ)WAEEE:
— Owners of the Company - AKRBHEE A (1,452,893) 197,394
— Non-controlling interests — JE 2 R A 2 (357) (109)
(1,453,250) 197,285
(Loss) earnings per share: BR(GEBR)BF:
- Basic (RMB cents) - ERAR%E D) 13 (23.85) 3.24
- Diluted (RMB cents) -EEAR%® D) 13 (23.85) 3.18
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etleenliet et .-',-'..QOns'ollt.:l t d Statement of F|nanC|aI Position

e BRI &

As at 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AR T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BEN&XRE 14 2,387 3,605
Investment properties KEWE 15 1,714,200 1,724,900
Prepayment and deposit for non-current i 3E 7K 8 & E 2
assets SRR e 16 21,282 8,136
Pledged bank deposits EEFIRTER 24 7,068 -
Interest in an associate REEE QAR 17 741 1,701
Interest in a joint venture REERA R 18 797,389 =
Deferred tax assets IR 3E 5 18 B B 19 83,597 96,307
2,626,664 1,834,649
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 20 608,211 653,230
Trade and other receivables and FE WBR 3k K K fib JE IR
prepayments K T8 1+ 5K 21 78,662 121,392
Amounts due from directors FE U E = E 22 368 666
Financial assets at fair value through BAREFAEBRZZ
profit or loss CTREE 23 44,934 -
Pledged bank deposits EEAEITER 24 303 5,873
Restricted bank deposits = BRI 4R 1T 17 2=k 24 3,068 334
Bank balances and cash RITHEHREIE S 25 92,668 302,557
828,214 1,084,052
Current liabilities RE A&
Trade and other payables ERNERREMERMNK 26 268,654 248,860
Amounts due to related companies FETREE R al 5k IE 22 52,103 50,193
Amount due to a director B —REERE 22 - 4,668
Contract liabilities AHBEE 28 148,144 -
Receipt in advance T8 U BR 3K 29 989 289,441
Rent and other deposits e kHMiEe 7,448 8,442
Provisions for potential claims REERE BB 27 22,564 42,082
Provisions for litigations A 2 B 1E 30 - 235,000
Bank and other borrowings RO REMEE 31 243,252 212,547
Convertible bond AR & % 32 - 411,107
Derivative financial instruments MTEEMIA 32 1,578,882 439,938
Current tax liabilities B TE B & 476,953 461,288
2,798,989 2,408,566
KRG HEEIZERERA A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 December 2018 742018412 A31H

As at 31 December
M12 8381 H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT

Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (1,970,775) (1,319,514)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERAHER 655,889 515,135
Non-current liabilities ERBAEME
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEER 31 442,000 405,000
Amount due to a related company e RS E R R RIAE 22 229,000 =
Amount due to a director BN —REEZERE 22 4,893 =
Loan from a related company KE—HEBEEIAFER 22 164,463 =
Convertible bonds Al % & 5 32 515,120 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIE B FE 19 359,413 357,950
1,714,889 762,950
Net liabilities EEFE (1,059,000) (247,815)
Capital and reserves EXRFE
Share capital B& X 33 582,811 525,734
Reserves i 1 (1,630,682) (762,777)

Deficit attributable to owners of the  7x X T # B A FE {h &5 4

Company (1,047,871) (237,043)
Non-controlling interests FERER (11,129) (10,772)
Total deficit At (1,059,000) (247,815)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 224 were H/1E2224B 2R AR KRR DIBES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 &R 201943 H29 B #t £ It & # 7l & - I

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: BATALEE:
Chau Cheok Wa Lo Kai Bong
BEE ERF
Director Director
EBEF EE
7 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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. ..Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity
;,,;- - BAMEBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 %1201 8F12A31BIEEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARAAEL
Share Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory option Capital  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity

BRE FER
kE BRAEE AHRE XR&E R EXEE NERK it E# @t BE EREH
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
T ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR A T ARETT
(Note)
(B3

At1 January 2017 WOTE1R1E 4712 1399110 24207 49373 19,504 - 03 (47960 (462383 (10663  (473046)
Proft loss) for the year ERET(ER) = = = = = = = 197,002 197,002 (109 196,898
Exchange differences on translating 8 EHEHMEL 2

foreign operations ERZE = = - - - - 392 - 392 - 392
Total comprehensive income ER2ERARR)EE

(expense) for the year - - - - - - 392 197,002 197,394 (109) 197,285
Exercise of share options BREAE 1,022 3417 - - (925) - - = 3,514 = 3,514
Recognition of share-based EARBLAOEHEH

compensation benefits 34 - - - - 24,432 - - - 24,432 - 24,432
Forfeiture of share options R E R E - - - - (7,341) - - 734 - - -
At 31 December 2017 and R2017E12B31B R

1 January 2018 01851518 525,734 1,402,528 24,201 49,373 35,760 - 158 (2,274,823)  (237,043)  (10,772)  (247,815)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (1458541) (1,458,541) (357) (1,456,898)
Exchange differences on translating B BN ERMEL 2

foreign operations ERER - - - - - - 4,943 - 4,043 - 4,943

Share of other comprehensive income {5~ A 4 A T & ft
of ajoint venture, net of related 2EMA NRER

income tax MER - - - - - - - 705 705 - 705
Total comprehensive income ERZANARR)BE

(expens] for the year - - - - - - 4,943 (1,457,836)  (1,452,893) (357)  (1,453,250)
Recognition of share-based BRRG

compensation benefits HHET 34 - - - - 7,443 - - - 7,443 - 7,443
Forfeiture of share options R ERE - - - - (5,561) - - 5,561 - - -
Issue of shares upon partial ARBITRRESRK

conversion of convertible bond BORH 32 571,077 497,109 - - - - - - 554,186 - 554,186
Deemed capital contribution BETE - - - - - 80,436 - - 80,436 - 80,436
At 31 December 2018 H2018512531A 582,811 1,899,637 24,201 49,373 37,642 80,436 5,101 (3,727,008) (1,047,871)  (11,129) (1,059,000)

Note: Capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from a shareholder (note ME: BARERERERZEBNRANSH KR Z
22) regarding the difference between the coupon interest rate and the market interest MEBRERE —RBRRZEE(HFE22) -
rate of advances.

AEREBZRAER DA
— T \FFEERE 75



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018F 12 A31H Lt FE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT

AR® TR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
(Loss) profit before taxation B % BT (5 18) & (1,378,012) 262,084
Adjustments for: FEIEA
Interest income A B A (451) (634)
Exchange loss (gain) P 5 &5 18 (W ) 180,696 (45,951)
Finance costs Bl & Bk A 161,412 118,046
Depreciation e 1,519 1,701
Share-based compensation benefits B& 19 2 15 /9 % B 4@ A 7,443 24,432
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MEERZZRERIE
inventories - 57,034
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B A B UK RERR 2
other receivables B B 1B 1,983 -
Reversal of provisions for litigations B AR FA 2 B 45 B o) - (289,240)
(Reversal of provisions) provisions for BERE(EERD)EE
potential claims (19,518) 41,882
Maintenance costs #E & AR 32,796 -
Change in fair value of financial assets at BEARBEFABEZ SR
fair value through profit or loss BEZATEEZE (1,011) -
Change in fair value of a convertible bond BB ESFCAREEZE (73,936) -
Change in fair value of derivative financial MTESMITENARE
instruments el 1,189,505 329,855
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in HIERBDEER S BER
respect of deposits for non-current assets HEEERD - (438,000)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEWME BEERREZ
equipment U 25 (147) (59)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEERAARBFAEBRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREE W= (510) -
Share of loss of an associate FEAG B & A A B 18 1,047 37
Share of loss of a joint venture BEAEERAREBE 14,896 -
Change in fair value of investment properties 3% & ¥ ¥ 1) A 7 {8 & &) 10,700 7,100
Operating profit before working capital EEESEHANKCE RN
changes 128,412 68,387
Decrease in inventories FER D 45,512 21,636
(Increase) decrease in trade and other JE Uk B %” N H b Uk 5k &
receivables and prepayments SRR (i" ?JD) > (4,835) 357,454
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from FE W = %i RIE A ()
directors 320 (691)
Decrease in amount due from a related e U — i B 8 A B RO R
company - 2,723
Placement of pledged bank deposits FREEKFPRITER (1,181) (4,488)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other JE A5 BR 2k & E At JE {5 3R
payables 12 0 Gt 2) 12,861 (88,807)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FEf BEE R A R IEOR D)
related companies 0 (5,072) 49,657
Decrease in contract liabilities a R a &R (140,381) -
Increase (decrease) in receipt in advance T8 U BR 338 00 CRt 4) 28 (115,524)
Decrease in rental and other deposits HERHEMES R D (994) (796)
Cash generated from operations EEEENES 34,670 289,551
Income tax paid B 5 (51,048) (79,708)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities R & FE8H(HH)EENER £
E 5 (16,378) 209,848

7 Suncity Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e

iﬁu%/)lb%'\s«%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Et;.:201 8F12A31HILFE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loan to a joint venture mMeEEtEEXR (179,921) =
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEEQAABFAEBERZ
through profit or loss TREE (55,013) -
Placement of deposit for non-current EHIERDEER S
assets (12,697) -
Placement of restricted bank deposits T HU BR &l 4R 17 17 3¢ (3,068) (334)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BERXE
equipment (358) (1,370)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEZEAABEFAERZ
assets at fair value through CRMEEZE
profit or loss K IH 12,927 -
Interest received 2 W F & 451 534
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits IRELE PR HI SR 1T 17 & 334 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE BERRK
plant and equipment 2 B8 kI8 268 174
Capital injection to an associate FEEZEQRBESE - (1,745)
Refund of deposits for non-current ROFERHEERS
assets - 140,135
Net cash (used in) from investing RETEH(BREEN
activities ReFHE (237,077) 137,394
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEH
Settlement for litigations ﬁ‘@?ﬂ%ﬁﬁ (235,000) (45,000)
Interest paid B 5 8 (40,943) (45,866)
Repayment of bank borrowings BB fﬁf y (40,000) (98,000)
Loan from a related company xrE— F'EJ 8 5@ NETvd
‘% 240,077 =
New other borrowings raised Z MEMER 120,000 -
Proceeds from exercise of share T‘I ﬁ 08 I 2 P15 5K TR
options - 3,514
Net cash from (used in) financing METBEE(BAB
activities BeFHE 44,134 (185,352)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReRESEEUN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Ol &) 8 fn 7 58 (209,321) 161,890
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT M1BE1EWEREER
1 JANUARY BE&ZEEY 302,557 143,439
Effect of foreign exchange EREEsmEE
rate changes (568) (2,772)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12A3MEWEER
AT 31 DECEMBER, ReSEY:
represented by bank balances DBRTEBRESRR
and cash 92,668 302,557
KEEREBIZERERAT

“T)\FEFERE

77
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GENERAL

Suncity Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The principal place
of business of the Company is at Unit 1705, 17/F., West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong. Its immediate holding company is Fame Select
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”") and Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr. Chau”) and Mr. Cheng Ting
Kong are the ultimate controlling parties of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 44.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the
“Group”) incurred a net loss of RMB1,458,898,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB1,970,775,000 and
its total liabilities exceeded its total assets by RMB1,059,000,000.
Taking into account the financial resources of the Group, including
the financial support from Mr. Chau, its controlling shareholder, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group has
sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial obligations as
they fall due for at least the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period and accordingly these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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H E22018F12A31H IEFE XA
ALRENBARABAIAEE]
EEEEFE AR K1,458,898,000
T MEBEZEASEN RS AR
BHEREEEARK1,970,775,000
ThREREEBEHBEE AR
1,059,000,000 7T ° & 5T & 7N & B 19 Bf
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BXE) ARBEERE KA&EE
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Amendments to

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 4 with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
HKAS 28

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs and Interpretation in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the

current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

3.

e M| RME

ERAMAREETETRME
BEEA(ERMBREE
]1)
FEERIERNFIRKEETE
& B 7% o 2R
AEBRAEEEREATIHE
BEFMAS(EEETM ARG
BT LREETREMBERS
EARBAGAEN(FT B G E
ADE#BE:

EEMBAEEMNER SRIA
EEMBAREENER KEEPAHZRAR
REEH

EEABRTERERE
ZE2)-2EELH

NERFREBENRE

EEMBREENSE 2R NRMDAERZAR
LT RHLAERGNE
ERUEREERNZLY, ERZANERSEL
ZEFT FORLRTAEEA
FHREEE47
RBAH
EEQHENENY, (ERABYBREER
EH] 20145 22016 F B 1
LEEREZ-F5
BEQHERNENS: BRRANE

B3

B TRt & 5 AN FE R R &
EHMATRKETBT LAY H RS ER
EEEGFEALRETEHAF
ErBEFEAKBEZHMBRAR
RRAR L ZEEE W ®RK A
BEEKRERTE -

37 BEEBUBHREEREISERE
EEAEHZ WA
REBAEECEREAE S
B R B F 155 - B8 B 1
HMELEREISHREDRES S
SHEBIF185RMA - BB ST E
BB EZL A RABEZRE-

RIS EBER AR AT
T \EEEEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Cont’d)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)
The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15,
the Group has elected to apply the standard retrospectively
only to contracts that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18 and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises income from sales of properties,
property management services, travel agency services, sales
of travel related products, and hotel and integrated resort
general consultancy services which arises from contracts
with customers.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in notes 6 and 4 respectively.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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3.1 EEBHMBEREERAFISERE
EFEEHZWA (B)
REEERPERSE ST B R
AR FE155 A A E AL E
AWM BT ERVGERRA S
(201841 A1 H)FER kLo - 1B
BEEVHRESENFI5HK T
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7 Bl B A R E2018F1A1H
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BE R ERLE -
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. ERHFAIRRKREITEEBYK
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BEEA(ERBMBHRSEE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d) 8 ) ()
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily TEERIEBRNHFIRLETE
effective for the current year (Cont’d) 7 B % RS % B (&)
3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 31 BBUBHEEZEREFISHKE
(Cont’d) EFENZHA ()
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS BEAE 1) 25 FE B B B B 75 R & E
15 RIE16ELECHE

The following reclassification was made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

Carrying
amounts
previously
reported at
31 December
2017

% Al
R2017 E
12A31H

EHRzEAE
RMB’000
ARETTT

Current liabilities hEBEE
Receipt in advance (Note) ?E U B 3% (B 3%) 289,441
Contract liabilities (Note) EHaEME) =

R2018F1 A1 H 2 &R 4 B % ik
NMERNBRZEBEETIE
o - TXAEHEHTEE
BREEA-

Carrying

amounts under

HKFRS 15 at

1 January

Reclassification 2018

EBUMBERE

B 5155

T R2018 £

1182

ENAE R T B

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

(288,480) 961
288,480 288,480

Note: As at 1 January 2018, receipt in advance of RMB288,480,000 was
reclassified to contract liabilities.

ffsE: M2018F1 A1H EAUKERARKE
288,480,000t EF A EE AN B
& -

SELLELELI (010
T \EEEEE
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

e o -
. e ° o

3. BASTREETELHE
REER((FEEHERELE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d) all) (&)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily TEERIERNNHFITIRKLEITE
effective for the current year (Cont’d) 7 B % 85 % B (&)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS
15 (Cont’d)
The following table summarises the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated
statement of cash flows for each of the line items affected.
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.

Impact on consolidated statement of financial position

As reported

fr 2 8
RMB’000
ARET T

Current liabilities wREBAE
Receipt in advance (Note) 8 W BR S0 (FE RE) 989
Contract liabilities (Note) XY ACED) 148,144

31 BEBUMBHREEREISHEKXE

EEFEHNZWA ()

BEat Y] 15 FE B B B B 7 R & B
RIFE16HEL T FE(E)
TERBAEAETBMBHRE E
Bl 5155% ¥ 2~ & B K 201844 12
AB1BZHEEAEHBMRARARKE
BREBRESERERASTER I
B ANXHEHEBHFEZEET
FTTER -

HEAMBRRKRZEE

Amounts
without
application of
HKFRS 15

fisi & B& A
EEMBRE
% B 81555
Z28
RMB’000
ARETT

Reclassification

ENSE
RMB’000
ARETT

148,144 149,133
(148,144) -

Note: As at 31 December 2018, receipt in advance of RMB148,144,000 was
classified as contract liabilities.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Cont’d)
3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS
15 (Cont’d)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

As reported Reclassification

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH

Increase (decrease) in receipt 8 U B8R 88 I ORt )
in advance (Note) (Ft 3E)

Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD
(Note) (PH 55)

%Avﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

3. ERANMIAREBIERMK
BEEA(ERMBREE
A1) (&)
AEERHERNFIREETE
& B % & % A (&)

31 BB BHEEREISHKXE
BEFEHZ WA (&)
B P 46 & B B BB EE
RIE16ELZZE(E)

ﬁz?éiﬁﬁ/m;i’%Zw@

Amounts
without
application of
HKFRS 15

fisi K B& A
EEMBRE
% | 1555
ZEHE
RMB’000
ARETTT

Fi 2 8
RMB’000
ARBTT

ENOE
RMB’000

ARBTT

28 (140,381) (140,353)

(140,381) 140,381 =

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, decrease in receipt in
advance of RMB140,381,000 was classified to decrease in contract
liabilities.

Except as described above, the application of HKFRS 15 has
had no material impact on the amounts reported set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
1) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for
financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

ff & : A& E2018F128318 IEFEHIM -
T8 M BR 3O > A R 140,381,000 7T
PEAREHNEERD -

Bk EXFratE s ERE BB
HBEERFIGHEAH I N % F
HRAEMBBRRZEBHELE
EXFE-

EBUBHREERFIRTHT
=i

RAFE AEBCERBEEY
BHREENEIOREHMTARE
fitt & 78 B 75 5 % R A8 B8 A9 4R
BT EARBREENF9
FRNEREERERAEBEND
BhAE - QERMEEMNTAHE
ERR(EHEEBER] R3)—
ARE & F Bl AR R E

3.2

AR RAE R A A
T \EEEEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Cont’d)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application)
and has not applied the requirements to instruments that
have already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are
recognised in the opening accumulated losses and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 4.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and trade related amounts due from directors. Except for
those which had been determined as credit-impaired under
HKAS 39, trade receivables and trade related amounts due
from directors have been assessed individually.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

3. ERHFIRREITEEBYHK
HREEZEN(EBUBHREE
All) (&)
AEERAAERNFIREBTE
B KRS ER (&)

32 BEBHBHREEREIFLHT
A (#F)
REBEBDREBEREEY B HREE
Bl Z5Q5% P & /) 1B F 1k X B A
BEAEMBEmMELERFIH B Y
201841 A1 B (¥ tA E R B H)
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Cont’d)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
(Cont’d)

Impairment under ECL model (Cont’d)

Except for those which had been determined as credit-
impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at
amortised cost, including pledged bank deposits, restricted
bank deposits, bank balances, other receivables and other
deposits are assessed on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis
as there had been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, no additional credit loss allowance
has been recognised against opening accumulated losses.

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement
(including impairment) of financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018.

%Aﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

3. ERANMIAREBIERMK
BEEA(ERMBREE
A1) (&)
AEERHERNFIREETE
& B % & % A (&)

32 BEHBHEEREIHREMT
A (#&)
B P 46 & B B BB EE
RIEIRELZZEE)
FHMEEERER T ZREGE)
BREB G ERIFEIR TEE
REBERESE NI REHKR
Ik cHteMEEZTABE
%EE(%EﬁﬁﬂﬁT%
XRHBITER RITHEH
1t & U 3R &HME@&QMH
EHMEEER(12EAABHRE
EEBEDEEFMG ARV KME
RUREER L EEZLZN -

H2018F1A1H - # £ 5t 8 ¥
EitEEBERBINEEEER

1% -
TR~ )15 FE B B (2018
F1R1H) XEBYHEREE

Al % & &8 &5t £ R £ 395
THEHEEEEMRZ®ME
ErERBEZDBRFE(R
ERE) -

Trade and other

Original measurement
category under
HKAS 39

EBGERF395%
Tz R &85

Loans and receivables

New measurement
category under
HKFRS 9
EBBBREER
FOHET 2

st EEA

Financial assets at

receivables amortised cost
FRERREMEKR EXREKR R AR R 8
tREE
2. Amounts due from Loans and receivables Financial assets at
directors amortised cost
W EEHE B R R E W R AR R 8
tREAE

Original carrying
amount under

New carrying
amount under

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
ERETED ERUBRE
FHE Tz EHFIETZ
REREE FREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTL
118,187 118,187
666 666

AR EBMZRER A A

85

T \EEEEE
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3. BASTREETELHE
REER((FEEHERELE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d) All) (&)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily TEERIERNNHFITIRKLEITE
effective for the current year (Cont’d) 7 B % 85 % B (&)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 32 BB BHEEREIHREMT
A (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 BE 4t 7] 25 FE FH & B BT 7% iR & B
(Cont’d) RIFE9SEE £ 2 57 Z (&)

Impairment under ECL model (Cont’d) EHEEBBERT ZREE)

Original measurement New measurement
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Pledged bank deposits

EERRTER

Restricted bank deposits

RSB HBITER

Bank balances and
cash
BIOEHRERS

Trade and other
payables

FE A9 BR 30 R H A FB A 3

Amount due to a
related company

B — R BE QA SR

Amount due to a
director

EN—2EFERE
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category under
HKAS 39

BB EFINR
TR EEH

Loans and receivables

eV LEN

Loans and receivables

eV LEN

Loans and receivables

eV LEN

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
BRI R )

SRER

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
TR ARSI R )

SRER

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
R RKAR T R )

SRER

category under
HKFRS 9
BERMBEHREED
F9HKT

a2 EA

Financial assets at
amortised cost
RE K AT R )

Financial assets at
amortised cost
RE K AT R )

Financial assets at
amortised cost
RE K AT R )

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
RE K ART R )

SRERE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
RE K ART R )

SHRERE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
RE K AT R )

SRERE

Original carrying
amount under
HKAS 39
EREEA
$395H T 2
REEE
RMB’000

ARETT

5,873

334

302,657

248,860

50,193

4,668

New carrying
amount under
HKFRS 9
EEMBEE
ERZEIHET 2
0k E &
RMB’000
ARETTT

5,873

334

302,557

248,860

50,193

4,668
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3. ERANMIAREBIERMK
BEEA(ERMBREE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d) all)(#&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily TEERIEBRNHFIRLETE

effective for the current year (Cont’d) 7 B % RS % B (&)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 32 BEBUBHREEREIREHT
A (&)

B T 45 & B B R
RIEIRELZZEE)
FHMEEERER T ZREGE)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
(Cont’d)
Impairment under ECL model (Cont’d)

10.

11.

12.

13.

Rent and other
deposits

HehEbERS

Provisions for litigations

SRz BB

Bank and other
borrowings

RTkEMESR

Convertible bond

A 4 R 75

Derivative financial
instruments

TEERMIA

Original measurement

category under
HKAS 39

BRAEHERNFIN
TR EBEA

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
R AT R

SRER

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
R AT R

SRER

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
R AT R

SRER

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
R AT R

SRER

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

BAOREGARRN
tRAR

New measurement
category under
HKFRS 9
EAMBHEED
FIHR T2
2 EA

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
BB AT BR )

EMER

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
BB AT BR )

EMER

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
BB AT BR )

EMER

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
BB AT BR )

EMER

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

BRAABEFARZN

TRAR

Original carrying
amount under

New carrying
amount under

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
BREGNREN BEMERSE
BTz RAUFIKTZ
REEE HEREE
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT T NG
8,442 8,442
235,000 235,000
617,547 617,547
411,107 411,107
439,938 439,938
ABAREEZRERAF

T \EEEEE
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs and HKASs and Interpretation that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

ERAMAREEITETRME
BEEA(EREMBRSEE

A1) (&)
EEMEDRERZHTRKER]
ERMBREER

AEBAEREFREA T R MHE
MAERZHFTREEITBEEYH
BEEARBTERAENREE:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Leases’
Insurance Contracts®
Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments’
Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business*
Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
HKASs and Interpretation will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

8 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions
to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to
whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as
a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases
and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows
respectively by the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments will
continue to be presented as investing or operating cash flows in
accordance to the nature, as appropriate.

3.

e M| RME
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] 1) (#&)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented
if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to
classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB4,970,000 as disclosed in note 36.
These arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of RMB1,9383,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
RMB7,448,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would
be considered as advance lease payments.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
The Group elects the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed
prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
elects the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening accumulated losses without restating
comparative information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material
by including additional guidance and explanations in making
materiality judgements. The amendments also align the definition
across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of
the amendments is not expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group but may affect
the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

® s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

4.

e M| RME

TR BERGEA)
EERHRERIMT -

REEE
REMBEREREBARARZ AR
AMEHNERRENE RN
BRER-RATERRE/SARAD
HR 15 2 il 4

e FAHRKRELITERN:

. SHERESFZEBEBLA
EEBTRER: R

s FAUUREBIUFEHEDHKZ
BEA °

(\W\y

WAEEFEERBRER LM =HEH
ARz HRAZHEBEAEZLEL A%
EREHMTHERGIERKRKET -

AN B AR R RS ERSG YK B
NI R Rl iR el SN S TS
EHHMBAR ZENEREL B
Bms REARKBREEZH
BRARWamkRAXTE XS EER
EHAREEAERBARAELENER
AEHEMERESARARE R
Hitz2mkaEx -

BEakEMmezEbEcB@ERAT
FENARAEA A RIFEERER -
MEBAREZ2EWREABREBERAR
AR AR IEERE S - B 1t 8
SEYFERBEELBMAER -

KB & YN B R R KR
RIEHLAEB FHEESFRKREALE
gt BRER B

ERASEXNERAZEAR S ZM
EEEARAHEERARE #&E-
WaH AXkBAERERNEAEREA
R A BHT 8K -

RIMBAR ZFEREZEANEH
REPZEEGZORZN HHEEH
BEZRZBETHRAAENRER
BREGIDEHBHBERRFEE -

RIS EBER AR AT
T N\EEEHE

938



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Interests in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate and a
joint venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of an associate and a joint venture used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of the associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Interests in an associate and a joint venture (Cont’d)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a joint venture.

4.

e M| RME

FTESHBUR ()
%%ﬁﬂﬂ&A§m¥ZE§%)
AEBFERSETEEERZEAR
BERRAHAELE2ERARED
BRE EFEEMNEBEER ZK&
ENE2HEEE(EEBBIRRE
ERAEAERRIEF/RE—BEES
BREATKESBEBIERAEEREAR
AERBEXRAZESE)EEKE
BEETHEBRIERBEAHS - AiERA
ETRARESEEXZKRERTED
— WA -HERZRENAKE S
BB AIIRRE L ST ERIE36
SRR O Z R EEE -

&= 27
ﬁA%ﬁ%ﬁﬁx%

@
B
%
W
-

|
}

Hﬂk

5
SR

AIRAELEENRIHMELEER
EBRZBEDERALE O E TS

ﬁ$§llﬂﬁ@ZIﬂT 7
AEBHZEEMBEHREIANER -

oh
REREBENEEEBNYFERE
B WIFABERBINEEEONE)ETT
MEEXZERXZ ANRITIEXE
ReNRBEAR UINEHEHEE
REEZBZRTEXREHRBRE -
BARBEBASNNEFE)INENIEER
KEERAAEREEERMNRAT
EEXBHME- UIHNERE KA
FFEMFEREETEENBRE -

FEEEFHARETNRESEEER
%EiZER%%Q%E&%%%
SR NER KRIEBLZEEH
Bl EN BN EBE 2 EKEEM
HEEREBTE NIRRT F L
(AR EINERREFE —
o) AR EMmE2ERAER
TREHEABLIEEARAEBRE &
TrEERERERETORS

1835 o

AEREBZRAER DA
—N\FEEHRE

95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Impairment on tangible assets (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Inventories

Properties for sale includes properties under development and
properties held for sale and travel related products which are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The carrying value of properties for sale comprises the costs of
land use rights together with development expenditure, which
includes construction costs and borrowing costs capitalised.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
the properties less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Costs of travel related products are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for travel related products less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (Cont’d)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”). For financial instruments other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (Cont’d)
(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is presented as the “change
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
receivables, trade related amounts due from directors, pledged
bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances, other
receivables and other deposits). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEGFHEEE)

Financial instruments (Cont’d) £®MIAMG

Financial assets (Cont’d) % & E ()

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with & a & E R E (1 M 3 AT # B R E
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Cont’d) HEBHMBHREGEREIN £)(E)
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables AEBE -—EfEREREERE $
and trade related amounts due from directors. The ECL on these EoMHBEREBER2HEHEE
assets are assessed individually for debtors. B-ZEEEMNTBHEEBERE

% A {8 5l 3 5F & o

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance HAABEEMITAMS A& EKIE
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant ER12EARHEESREN BT
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises EREERE BKIEBONRERRE
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be EE b R BEERE N BN KB
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or REHAEHEEERE - THEERE
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. BR2HEBEEEADRER Y

RHERARMABELEZENN ALK
[\ B = S B E I AN E e

()  Significant increase in credit risk () 155 =k FEEL N

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly REEE B VIR ERIAKREER

since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a BESEZENK AEEKR

default occurring on the financial instrument as at the WEAHemIAZAZELNR

reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the BEXNTEERABEHIT A

financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. BB AR LR o 1E 1E & AT

In making this assessment, the Group considers both EE AEEZEAERAUEN

quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable TERTUHEH BREBEKR

and supportable, including historical experience and forward- FPEEFNEHABERARRXZE H

looking information that is available without undue cost or B A] BY 15 &9 A BE 1% & L o

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account EEmMs RABEERRES

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly: eSS % BIAT &R :

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the e SHMIAMIBIAA)KA
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal HEETREERHEH
credit rating; mEEE

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of e NBWMBEERBRETFZR
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, BELN WEEEEEE
the credit default swap prices for the debtor; BN EHBANEEENE

BB

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, o EBK BBILEMRIHR
financial or economic conditions that are expected to FFek FE B~ A &% - 78
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to EREBABNEGEB A
meet its debt obligations; EWae DL EEE TR

REEMETEY 103
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Cont’d)
()  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 3) (Cont’d)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Cont’d)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are over one year
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEGFHEEE)

Financial instruments (Cont’d) £®MIAMG
Financial assets (Cont’d) % & E ()
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with & a & E R E (1 M 3 AT # B R E
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Cont’d) HEBHMBHREGEREIN £)(E)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd) vy BHEEBBRZTERBERE)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for ETEHAEEBBUXREER
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may ERAE-—LFEATE@EMNIA
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped EHNZBERALAR @8I A
on the following basis: BIATEESMA :
e Nature of financial instruments; e SRMTAME:
e  Past-due status; o A HRAK BE
e  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and o BH AWML BE KT
E 3
e  External credit ratings where available. e HNHBEEFHIEB) -
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure EEETHRAESMEB R A
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit REENBEBRBOEBEE R
risk characteristics. L 15 & 2 B 8 o
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying FMERAZREENREAZ
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is BitE BRIFEZEHEEREE
credit-impaired, in which case, interest income is calculated WE BAFEWAZZEREE
based on amortised cost of the financial asset. HOBESHRK AN EH & o
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets EREEZ DHERE % E(R2018
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) FIHIHERE BB IREERE
93 5I)
Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The PRMEEDHEAERRERIK-
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial NHESFTFeREENTEERAE -
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All WARNEEREETE - MENUNER
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised TREENESREERRZ AER
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases REIEBER UNEEFXEENR
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require MEERBEEXLEEANREESH
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation 3% % Bl 318 B 88 7E B B R A A2 A+
or convention in the marketplace. ZEE-
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, other deposits, amounts due from
directors, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the allowance account.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing
it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

et forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial
liabilities that contain embedded derivatives, such as derivative
financial instruments, the changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments are excluded in determining the amount to
be presented in other comprehensive income. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in
other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to accumulated losses
upon derecognition of the financial liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)

Prior to application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any interest paid on the financial liability and is shown as change
in fair value of derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amounts
due to related companies and a director, loan from a related
company, rent and other deposits, provisions for litigations, bank
and other borrowings, and debt component of convertible bonds)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018); and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Convertible bond

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative and an early redemption derivative.

An early redemption option provides the Group to redeem its
convertible bond before the maturity date at principal amount is
an early redemption option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
component are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible bond is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The derivative component
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument
that are separated from the host contracts are treated as a single
compound embedded derivative unless those derivatives relate to
different risk exposures and are readily separable and independent
of each other.

Embedded derivatives (under HKFRS 9 since 1 January 2018)

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated. The
entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in
its entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are
not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Embedded derivatives (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial
liability with substantially different terms as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. A substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable
to the financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than 10 per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (under HKFRS
9 since 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial liabilities’ original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities
and are amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or
loss at the date of modification.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (under HKFRS
9 since 1 January 2018) (Cont’d)

When the contractual terms of financial liability are modified such
that the revised terms would result in a substantial modification
from the original terms after considering qualitative factors (e.g.
modifications of convertible instruments such as extending the
tenure, change in exercise price of the underlying options).

When the contractual terms of financial liability are modified such
that the revised terms would result in a substantial modification
from the original terms, after taking into account all relevant facts
and circumstances including qualitative factors, such modification
is accounted for as derecognition of the original financial liability
and the recognition of new financial liability. The difference between
the carrying amount of financial liability derecognised and the fair
value of consideration paid or payable, including any liabilities
assumed and derivative components recognised, is recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition, at the point of modification, the carrying
amount of the relevant financial liabilities is revised for directly
attributable transaction costs and any consideration paid to or
received from the counterparty. The effective interest rate is then
adjusted to amortise the difference between the revised carrying
amount and the expected cash flows over the life of the modified
instrument.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transactions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.
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11

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transactions in note 3)
(Cont’d)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

Income from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. It is generally satisfied at a point in
time when the control is transferred to the buyer.

Travel agency services income is recognised upon performance
of the services. It is generally satisfied at a point in time when the
control is transferred to the customer.

Property management services income is recognised over time
when the customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits from the Group’s performance. Such service is recognised
using a straight-line basis over the term of the lease contract.

Income from sales of travel related products is recognised over
time when the customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits from the Group’s performance. Such income is
recognised on a daily basis over the contract. Transaction price
is allocated between sale of hotel accommodation products and
event tickets and provision of limousine services on a relative
standalone selling price basis.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transactions in note 3)
(Cont’d)

Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services income
is recognised over time when the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits from the Group’s performance.
Such service is recognised based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control
of services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

The contract liabilities represent deposits received from buyers
of the properties held for sale and advance payments from the
customers in relation to provision of hotel and integrated resort
general consultancy services prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position under current liabilities.

Principal versus agent
The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another party.
In this case, the Group does not control the specified good or
service provided by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent,
it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by the other party.

In relation to the Group’s travel related businesses, the Group
has acted as principal for transactions of hotel accommodation
products and other travel package products and acted as agent
for the rest. In assessing whether the Group acted as principal
or agent, the Group has considered whether it controls the hotel
accommodation products, other travel package products and
travel agency services before such products and/or services are
transferred to customers, indicators including but not limited to
whether the Group has primary responsibility in providing the
goods and services to the customers, inventory risk before the
customers’ order and whether it has discretion in establishing
price.
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11

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for value added tax or other
sales taxes, estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar
allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received
from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
above.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including
schemes registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and government retirement benefit scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service,
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Share-based payment arrangements (Cont’d)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)
Share options granted to employees (Cont’d)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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12

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and a joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition as principal or agent

The Group engages in the travel related businesses, which
include the provision of arrangement of hotel accommodation,
transportation and entertainment. The Group has acted as
principal for transactions of travel related products and acted
as agent for the rest. In assessing whether the Group acted as
principal or agent, the Group has considered, among others,
indicators including but not limited to whether the Group has
primary responsibility in providing the goods and services to the
customers, inventory risk before the customers’ order and whether
it has discretion in establishing price.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolio and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale. As
aresult, the Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including those completed investment
properties are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their fair values, details of which are disclosed in note
15. The fair value of the investment properties was determined
by reference to valuations conducted on these properties by an
independent and professionally qualified valuer not connected
to the Group using property valuation techniques which involve
certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions, such as
rental income of the property derived from the existing tenancy
with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
tenancy which are then capitalised into the value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties included in the consolidated statement
of financial position and corresponding adjustments to the
changes in fair value reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, decrease in fair value of investment
properties of RMB10,700,000 (2017: RMB7,100,000) has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories
Properties under development and properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value. Based on
the experience of the directors of the Company and the nature of
the subject properties, the directors of the Company determine
the net realisable value of properties under development and
properties held for sale by reference to the estimated market
prices of the properties under development and properties held
for sale, which takes into account a number of factors including
the recent prices of similar property type in the same project or by
similar properties, and the prevailing real estate market conditions
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The directors of
the Company estimate the future costs to complete the properties
under development by reference to the actual development cost of
other similar completed projects of the Group, adjusted by certain
current market data. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
no impairment loss (2017: approximately RMB57,034,000) has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate carrying amount
of properties under development and properties held for sale
amounted to approximately RMB597,283,000 (31 December
2017: RMB644,411,000) in the PRC.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

PRC land appreciation taxes (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The LAT is levied at
progressive rates on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of the sales of properties less the estimated deductible
expenditures, the cost of land use rights and all relevant property
development expenditures.

Significant judgment is required in estimating the amounts of land
appreciation and the applicable land appreciation tax rate due to
the uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties and deductible
expenditures.

However, the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC
and certain projects of the Group have not finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. The amount of the land appreciation is
determined with reference to proceeds of the sales of properties
less the estimated deductible expenditures, including the cost of
land use rights and all relevant property development expenditures.
The Group recognised the LAT based on management’s best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions in the
periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, approximately
RMB58,461,000 (2017: approximately RMB56,056,000) of LAT
has been recognised.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The directors of the Company use their judgment in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. For derivative financial
instruments, the estimation of fair value of derivatives includes
some assumptions not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The carrying amount of the derivative financial instruments as
at 31 December 2018 was approximately RMB1,578,882,000 (31
December 2017: RMB439,938,000). Details of the assumptions
used are disclosed in note 32. The directors of the Company
believe that the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions
are appropriate in determining the fair value of derivative financial
instruments.

Impairment of interest in a joint venture

The carrying amount of interest in a joint venture amounting to
RMB797,389,000 is reviewed for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 whenever certain events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
Group determines the recoverable amount which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
is based on the estimations of future expected cash flows from the
joint venture and a suitable discount rate. The key assumptions of
the discounted cash flow model include the budgeted sales and
the discount rates. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
or more than expected, or there are favourable or unfavourable
events and changes in facts and circumstances which result in
revision of future estimated cash flows, a material impairment loss
may arise or reverse. No impairment loss has been recognised
in respect of interest in a joint venture for the year ended 31
December 2018. Details of the recoverable amount calculation
for interest in a joint venture are disclosed in note 18.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WARDHER
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for both years is as follows: UTARMEFEAEEZKADN:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR

Sales of properties HE W 177,400 132,543
Property management services income YT IR RIS WA 7,581 8,605
Travel agency services income IR 222 AR S W A 7,741 6,246
Sales of travel related products HEREMEBEESR 535,079 347,867
Hotel and integrated resort general BERKEERNZ —RK
consultancy services income B AR % W A 19,794 2,539
747,595 497,800
Segment Information 7 & #
Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company, REBRIPERDBRBAFTHRARD
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”) for the purpose ARTERRETELERKE(E
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance ZRERFEED)MECERTIEF
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided. E’\\ Rt e &Mk k% 288
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the Ale KEB R ZE%WE D P E I E
reportable segments of the Group. GO E D ES -
Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments are BEEMs A5EB2KERBRED
as follows: FAT
(1) Property development — Development and sales of office () % X¥RE-RN ‘:P Bl
premises, residential and retail properties in the PRC; FE - EFERTEYE:
(2) Property leasing — Leasing of retail and residential properties 2 MEHEHE-RHPEEEZTER
and provision of property management services in the PRC; FTEMERREEMEERRD
(3) Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services — @ BERGEEBNZ —MKERM
Provision of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy fR#-REBAEREEERN
services; and —MEBERRE: &
(4) Travel related products and services — Sales of travel related 4) IREMEEERRRS - HEKE
products and provision of travel agency services. HEE®RREHIKRERERS -
1 2 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WA K % 3 & % (&)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers REEFEABRAZSE

Year ended 31 December 2018
BZ2018F12A31HLEE

R ARE MR MR

Hotel and
integrated Travel
resort general related
Property Property  consultancy products
development leasing services and services
BERGE
ERMZ i 35 46 B8
ES R NEHE -REERE ERREH 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR%ETR AR®Tx
Types of goods or ERSRBEER
services
Sales of properties MEHE
- Apartments -RE 57,221 - - - 57,221
~ Villas - R & 120,179 - - - 120,179
Sales of travel related REEBEEMmES
products
— Hotel accommodation - J& J5 (£ 78 & @
products - - - 534,591 534,591
- Others -Hf - - - 488 488
Travel agency services 1k 2 %38 fR 75 Y A
income - - - 7,741 7,741
Property management NEEBRB KA
services income - 7,581 - - 7,581
Hotel and integrated BIEREAERN
resort general Z—RERERS
consultancy services WA
income - - 19,794 - 19,794
177,400 7,581 19,794 542,820 747,595
Rental income e HA - 45,048 - - 45,048
Total @t 177,400 52,629 19,794 542,820 792,643
AKEREEZERBRAE

T \EEEEE
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

Year ended 31 December 2018
BZ2018F12A31HLEE

Hotel and
integrated Travel
resort general related
Property Property  consultancy products
development leasing services and services
BERGE
ERMZ He 3 46 BB
ES R NEBE -REERE EaREH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®TR AR®TR ARBTrn AR®T:H
Geographical markets % EFih % v
by customers’ W5
locations
PRC H 177,400 7,581 - - 184,981
Macau R - - - 511,989 511,989
Cambodia R 5 - - 827 - 827
Vietnam g - - 18,967 30,831 49,798
177,400 7,581 19,794 542,820 747,595
Rental income Ae kA - 45,048 - - 45,048
Total @ =t 177,400 52,629 19,794 542,820 792,643
Timing of revenue BRBARH
recognition
A point in time T-EE 177,400 - - 7,141 185,141
Over time B B ] - 7,581 19,794 535,079 562,454
177,400 7,581 19,794 542,820 747,595
Rental income He A - 45,048 - - 45,048
Total el 177,400 52,629 19,794 542,820 792,643

The duration of contracts in relation to property management

services income, income from sales of travel related products,

and hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services

i) ¥ B RB KA - S K A8
BERKANUNRBERESERN
2 HBERRBRAETENEHNF
H—Ro2HNF1E20%F - 1E10H

b

income usually varies from 1 to 20 years, 1 to 10 days and 1 year,
respectively and the contract fees of those contracts are fixed.

R—%F M&ZFEEONEBHNEREE -

1 2 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018



Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers
Sales of properties

The Group sells properties held for sale directly to buyers through
its own sales office and through real estate agents respectively.

The income from sales of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. The Group receives certain
percentage of the contract value as pre-sale deposits from buyers
when they sign the sale and purchase agreements. The pre-sale
deposits result in contract liabilities being recognised throughout
the property construction period until the buyer obtains control
of the completed property.

Provision of travel agency services

The Group has acted as an agent for the provision of travel agency
services including but not limited to reservation of helicopter,
flight and limousine services, sales of ferry tickets and event
tickets. The travel agency services income is recognised at a net
amount after reducing related cost of sales upon performance of
the services. It is generally satisfied at a point in time when the
control is transferred to the customer, which is at the time when the
booking service confirmed with the customer. The normal credit
period is 30 days upon the invoice date, which is approximate to
the date of revenue recognition.

Provision of property management services

The Group provides the property management services to the
tenants of its investment properties. The property management
services fee is pre-determined in the lease contract. The tenant
is required to prepay the property management services fee one
month in advance. Property management services income is
recognised over time when the tenants simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits from the Group’s performance. Such
services income is recognised over the term of the lease contract.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

Sales of travel related products

The Group sells travel related products including hotel
accommodation products and travel packages directly to the
customers through its physical point-of-sale counters.

Income from sales of travel related products (i.e. hotel
accommodation products) is recognised over time when the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
from the Group’s performance. When the customer obtains the
control of the hotel room reserved and consume the benefits
from using such hotel room for the period reserved. Such income
is recognised over the period reserved for such hotel room. The
Group either requires advanced payments from its customers or
grant 30 days of credit period to its customers from the invoice
date, which is approximate to the date of revenue recognition.

Income from sales of travel packages is recognised when the
performance obligations in the travel packages are satisfied. The
travel packages include several performance obligations such
as sale of hotel accommodation products and event tickets and
provision of limousine services. Each performance obligation in
the travel packages is considered to be a distinct goods or service
as it is both regularly supplied by the Group to other customers
on a stand-alone basis and is available for customers from other
providers in the market. Transaction price is allocated between
sale of hotel accommodation products and event tickets and
provision of limousine services on a relative standalone selling
price basis. Revenue relating to the sale of hotel accommodation
products is recognised over the period reserved for the hotel
rooms. Revenue relating to the sale of event tickets is recognised
at the occurrence of the events. Revenue relating to the provision
of limousine services is recognised at the time of using the
limousine services. The Group grants 30 days of credit period to
its customers from the invoice date, which is approximate to the
date of revenue recognition.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

Provision of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy
services

Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services represent
the provision of general consultancy services to the customers who
are developing hotel and integrated resort projects in Vietham and
Cambodia. The period of the contracts with those customers is
initial one year, with extension subject to mutual agreement. Such
income is recognised over time when the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits from the Group’s performance,
which is recognised based on the basis of the Group’s efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to
the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of services. The Group receives six-month advance
payments before the provision of general consultancy services to
these customers. These advance payments give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of the contracts, until the income recognised
on the relevant contracts exceeds the amount of the advance
payments. Depending on the terms of each contract, the Group
will then receive the general consultancy services income on a
half year basis or monthly basis from the seventh month of the
contracts. The Group grants credit period ranging from 0 to 15
days to its customers.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. W AR % 2% % (%)

13

Performance obligations for contracts with customers EFEHANBHEEGE)

(Cont’d)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance MR2018F 128310 D EEFR %K E
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December PNEE(RBITXFDABT)IZR
2018 and the expected timing of recognising revenue are as SERRERBRRBEARBHOT :
follows:

Hotel and

integrated

resort general

consultancy

Sales of services
properties income

BERGRSE

ERAZ

— R
E SR AR % W A A st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T AR%T T

Within one year —F RN 146,832 1,312 148,144
For the sales of properties, the amounts disclosed above represent RMEHEMS ULBBESEAR
the Group’s expectation on the timing of transferring the legal AEERHBRACHERTHEE
ownership to its customers. Pz e
All hotel and integrated resort general consultancy service are FRABERGEEERNZ — REH
for the period of one year. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the REz2FEFRB—F-MBEH KR
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not SEAEBHEMAF 2 EEZTE
disclosed. RBITEHAZRSBRILEEDL R

E

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WA R 7 # & ¥ (&)
Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating and reportable segments.

TR AR E&E
J:AT%$EI&Z<“%&$E 2y
DZWAREREZ D -

DH'
3
I

Hotel and
integrated Travel
resort general related
Property Property  consultancy products
development leasing services and services
BERGE
EBRMNZz-—#& % 38 48 B8
R MEHRE BEERE ERREE @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARBTR AR¥Tr AR%¥Trn AR%Txn
For the year ended BHZE20185F
31 December 2018 12ABLEE
Segment revenue from  SNREFE S UL A
external customers 177,400 52,629 19,794 542,820 792,643
Segment profit (0ss) S e 1)) 69,435 (15,365) 2,066 31,928 88,964
Change in fair valug of AR B ABZEZ
financial assets at CRMEEZARE
FVTPL 2y 1,011
Change in fair value of ARRES
a convertible bond DNAEEE 73,936
Change in fair value of TEs@MIAEY
derivative financial NAEED
instruments (1,189,505)
Share of loss of an [ RN
associate (1,047)
Share of loss of a joint ElEaERAER
venture (14,896)
Unallocated other income, & 2 B £ 4 4t A
gains and losses sk EE (185,081)
Unallocated finance costs 7 2 it & & B A (110,046)
Unallocated expenses AAOBEX (41,348)
Loss before taxation BHAER (1,378,012)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. W AR % 2% % (%)

Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

kL ONE T AC )

Hotel and
integrated resort Travel
general related
Property Property consultancy products
development leasing services  and services
BIEREGA
B Rz —#% Tik 45 18
MmER % MEME HERYE Enkk® @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETr ARETT ARBTn ARET:
For the year ended BZ2017F
31 December 2017 12831AELEE
Segment revenue from  SNREFE D HUA
external customers 132,543 55,513 2,639 354,113 544,708
Segment (loss) profit 2 (EE)EF (50,467) (7,551) (16,271) 17,807 (56,482)
Reversal of impairment MERDEERS
loss recognised in BRZREESE
respect of deposits &
for non-current assets 438,000
Change in fair value fTESBMIAY
of derivative financial DNAEZE
instruments (329,855)
Reversal of provisions for 3t & 5A 2 & & # [
litigations 289,240
Share of loss of an EhEBELRER
associate (37)
Unallocated other income, 73 B H i Yt A -
gains and losses WK EE 42,046
Unallocated finance costs 7 2 it & & fi A (72,184)
Unallocated expenses APEAZ (48,644)
Profit before taxation B % A0 & A 262,084

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies set out in note
4. Segment results represent the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of certain other income, gains
and losses, reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of
deposits for non-current assets, certain finance costs, change
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, change in fair value of
a convertible bond, change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments, share of loss of an associate, share of loss of a
joint venture, reversal of provisions for litigations and corporate
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by operating and reportable segments:

6.

Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

WA K5 & R ()
SHEERAME
ATRAEBRELERRE D H
DLEERABZ AN

I

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Segment assets D EEE
Property development s 608,684 714,637
Property leasing MEMHEE 1,724,369 1,734,799
Hotel and integrated resort general HIERIEEEBNZ
consultancy services — M B R 11,108 1,401
Travel related products and services  Ji %% 18 B8 &= & & IR 15 113,880 78,265
Total segment assets DEEERE 2,458,041 2,529,102
Unallocated assets: ROBLEE
Interest in an associate K& RREE 741 1,701
Interest in a joint venture REERQRERDS 797,389 =
Financial assets at FVTPL EAnEFAERE
ZemEE 44,934 =
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRRS 64,815 289,689
Deferred tax assets IE I I8 B B 83,597 96,307
Others H 5,361 1,902
Consolidated assets HAEBE 3,454,878 2,918,701
Segment liabilities S EEE
Property development A 587,517 645,639
Property leasing MEHEE 513,458 532,764
Hotel and integrated resort general BERGEEERNZ
consultancy services — A% B8 [ ARk 7 2,733 1,600
Travel related products and services  Jik #7 8 @ &= & & R 1% 67,374 62,630
Total segment liabilities DEEEEE 1,171,082 1,242,633
Unallocated liabilities: RKAOBEIE:
Current tax liabilities BRI & (& 476,953 461,288
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEEE 359,413 357,950
Convertible bonds A] # j% & 5 515,120 411,107
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEmIE 1,578,882 439,938
Provisions for litigations B2 BB - 235,000
Amounts due to related companies RN R NI s 233,658 -
Amount due to a director JERt — R EEKIE 4,893 4,668
Loan from a related company KE—HEEARZ
53 164,463 =
Others H i 9,414 13,932
Consolidated liabilities LA BE 4,513,878 3,166,516
KEEREBIZERERAT
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interest in an associate, interest in a joint venture, financial
assets at FVTPL, certain bank balances and cash, deferred
tax assets and corporate assets of investment holding
companies; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
convertible bonds, derivative financial instruments, provisions
for litigations, current tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities,
amounts due to a director and related companies, loan from
a related company and corporate liabilities of investment
holding companies.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Property Property
development leasing

UELE S LY
RMB'000  RMB’000

fﬁ?AEﬁ%ﬁ%I}ﬁE

6. WARDFHER(E)
Hih &R
B FZ20718F 712837 H I FE

Hotel and
integrated
resort general Travel related
consultancy products and
services services Unallocated Total

BER&SE
BN et 16 B9
-RERERE EmREB A E st
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AR®TR ARMTxR

Amounts included in the STADBERSL S
measure of segment profit BEFEZEE:
or loss or segment assets:

Addition to non-current assets ¥ GBI EERE

(Note) (W) - 24
Depreciation & 232 86
Gain on disposal of property, ~ HENE BER

plant and equipment HEYE (111) (36)
Interest income &M A (6) (22)
Maintenance costs BENK 32,796 -
Interest expense FERX 26,923 24,443
Change in fair value of RENMEIDABELEY

investment properties - 10,700
Reversal of provisions for EERERERR

potential claims (19,518) -
Impairment loss recognised in -~ 3t E fth [E R A 2

respect of other receivables HEER 1,983 -

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the
measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Change in fair value of financial B2 % Est ABEZ

assets at FVTPL % mﬂ BEYZ
AREEY - -

Gain on disposal of financial ~ HERA A A ABR

assets at FVTPL LEREE s - -
Change in fair value of TRREFZALE

a convertible bond 2% - -
Change in fair valug of derivative $T4 2RI EZ DA E

financial instruments g - -
Share of loss of an associate ~ JE{EEEE D A B - -
Interest in an associate REE QR ER - -
Share of loss of a joint venture ~ JE{E A £ A FIE 1B - -
Interest in a joint venture ﬁA é EINGIE: - -
Income tax expense (credit) ERES (%) - -

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets and deferred tax assets.

ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR AR%TxR

13,350 363,751 377,125
107 734 360 1,519

- - - (147)
- (65) (358) (451)
- - - 32,796
110,046 161,412

- - - 10,700

(19,518)
- - - 1,983
EHRAETEIELERREATA

ADEBEMNKERI D BMEETE
ZEHE:

(1,011) (1,011)

- - (510) (510)

(73,936) (73,936)

1,189,505 1,189,505
1,047 1,047

™4 ™4
14,896 14,896
797,389 797,389

- - 80,886 80,886

MaE: ERBDEETEREREERELERR
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Other segment information (Cont’d)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Addition to non-current assets
(Note)

Depreciation

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest income

Interest expense

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Provisions for potential claims

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of inventories

n“'}\ﬂ LMEﬁﬁEJZAJ
BEBZEE:

FRBEERE
(Ht &)

il

HENX HER
Rl
MEKA

MER X
REMEZOAEED
BERERR

RFERRZBERR

Property
development

nERE
RMB'000
AREFT

535

(43)
19,064

41,882

57,034

Property
leasing

B
RMB'000
ARBTT

114
(26)
26,598

7,100

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the
measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Change in fair value of derivative 74 £ F T &2

financial instruments
Reversal of provisions for
litigations
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
deposits for non-current
assets
Share of loss of an associate
Interest in an associate
Income tax expense

DhERE
HFD2RERE

RERDEERS
ERZREBRRE

ERBANRER
REENAER
MEHRAY

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets and deferred tax assets.
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6. WARSD
HithbpHER(E)
B Eo0717F 712837 HIE FE

Hotel and
integrated
resort general
consultancy
Services
BERGA
BBz

— R B AR 7
RMB'000
ARETR

442
106

Travel related
products and
services

gl
Eom kR %
RMB'000
ARBTR

1,475
733

(50)

Unallocated

ADE
RMB'000
ARBTR

2,699
214

(69)
(415)
72,184

RMB'000
ARBTR

4,618
1,701

(69)
(534)
118,046

7,100
41,882

57,034

EHREFETELERKERBT
ADERFKEEEDBEETE
2B R

329,855

(289,240)

(438,000)
37

1,701
65,191

329,855

(289,240)

(438,000)
37

1,701
65,191

M- FRBHEETEREREERELEHRA
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Information about major customers

No customer represented over 10% of total revenue of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Revenue from customers under property development segment
of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of total revenue
of the Group are as follows:

EPH
BEPZ
EFPA

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C

%Avﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

KARDHBER(E)
EBEXEEF2ER

RE Z2018F 12 A31H L FEHH -
MEZFHAEBE AR ABI0% -

REBRFEFEVERBLIBI TN ALE
BAEAWASBRBIO%N I EFPFEL 2
W AT

2018
RMB’000

2017
RMB’000
ARBTT

AR TR

82,360
- 61,533
61,533

205,426

Geographical information

The Group operates in six principal geographical areas - the
PRC, Macau, Hong Kong, Japan, Cambodia and Vietnam. The
Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical location
at which the goods were delivered and services were rendered
and information about its non-current assets (Note) by location
of assets and its associate by location of its business operations

i & & B
AEERAEXTEHE - FEH &
M-&& -BX: %ﬁ%&tﬁm“
¥ -AREBERINERREHR
ﬁ%&m&%%ZXQ%ﬂ%ﬁW
AAEREBRBEZEEMELE D Z
ERBEEMI)REREEME

are detailed below:

25

Revenue from
external customers

PZBERAZEMFRIT

Non-current assets
As at 31 December

RENMBEFEZBWA MR12A3MBZHkRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AR T T AR® T AR T T
PRC =8 230,029 188,056 1,723,038 1,733,963
Macau prlis! 511,989 356,652 21,389 1,938
Hong Kong EHB - - 510 740
Japan H 7 - - 741 1,701
Cambodia E 827 - - -
Vietnam mEa] 49,798 - 797,389 -
792,643 544,708 2,543,067 1,738,342
Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets. ME:ERBDEETBREEHBAEE -
KRG HEEIZERERA A

T \EEEEE

1139



7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial St-atements _‘ SRR

e B RRME

7. HfplA W3 R R

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
Advertising income B &R A 149 100
Interest income A E WA 451 534
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BEERREZ
equipment I &= 147 59
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERAABFAERERZ
at FVTPL TREE WS 510 -
Net exchange (loss) gain X (&5 18) W = F 58 (181,006) 41,667
Maintenance costs (note 26(b)) #: & B A (B &£ 26(b)) (32,796) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of g £ b FE Ut ;X HE R 2
other receivables (note 40(b)) B (B &5 18 (B 52 40(b)) (1,983) =
Others H (1,986) 1,155
(216,514) 43,515
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMEMAE

14

Effective interest expense on convertible

2018
RMB’000
AR®T

ABMRESFZERMBMAX

2017

RMB’000
ARBTT

bonds (note 32) (Fff 3E32) 93,974 72,180
Imputed interest expense on promissory & H Zig 7 (& B F| B 5 X
note (note 22) (Pt 52 22) 7,117 -
Imputed interest expense on loan from RE—MBEEQANERZ
a related company (note 22) HEF BRI f‘ﬁ F£22) 4,273 =
Interest on promissory note A EEFE 1,836 -
Interest on loan from a related company K E —RBBEEARERZH A 2,846 =
Interest on bank borrowings RITHEEFE 24,443 26,602
Interest on other borrowings H g EF B 26,923 19,264
161,412 118,046
No finance costs have been capitalised in 2018 (2017: Nil). R20184F BB B A T U E K

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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(Loss) profit before taxation has been

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the-Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRMEE
9. BRBAT(EE)ER

2018
RMB’000

2017
RMB’000
AR TT

AR® TR

B Bt AT (&5 18) 8 7 B 1 B

arrived at after charging (crediting) GFA)BATE -
the following:
Depreciation e 1,519 1,701
Auditor’s remuneration % B AD B & 3,420 2,595
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) ZEM <2 (FsE10) 13,061 11,622
Staff costs, excluding directors ETIRA TEEES
— salaries and wages, excluding - HehNIE THREES
directors 37,482 35,759
— share-based compensation benefits, - A EMER -
excluding directors and consultants TEEESREH 1,066 934
— retirements benefits scheme —RNE A E B K
contributions, excluding directors THEEES 2,030 2,042
Total staff costs, excluding directors BMEIKRA TBEES 40,578 38,735
Total staff costs 48 8 T kAN 53,639 50,257
Legal and professional fee for litigations A R R EEXE - 5H
related to the Bank Claim RITERBE(EER R E27)
(as defined in note 27) and Consultant MEEE=EGEE R K E30)
Claim (as defined in note 30) 4,393 3,191
Minimum lease payments under operating ¥ A% 7 K& HE
leases in respect of office premises ZEREENMR 3,578 4,238
Cost of sales 85 & B AR
- cost of properties sold — W) ¥ iH & B AN 49,756 30,326
— cost of travel related products sold — IR 35 AE B E L tE E K 499,175 327,409
— cost of services rendered - 2 MR B K AR 7,036 4,923
555,967 362,658
Gross rental income from investment KEWME AW ALER
properties (45,048) (46,908)
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred &l : REMEELE 2 EE
for investment properties N 4,574 3,650
(40,474) (43,258)
KRG HEEIZERERA A

“T)\FEFERE
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

14

Appointment Resignation
date date Fees

REAH HERM fig
RMB’000

AR®TR

Year ended 31 December 2018

Salaries and
allowances

FeRRR
RMB'000
ARETT

10.ESREEHS

Retirement
benefit scheme
contributions

BAER
HE L8
RMB'000
AE®T R

Share-based

Benefit compensation

in kind

RUEA
RMB'000
ARETT

henefits

Rt AER
HERA
RMB'000
N B

Total

#it
RMB'000
ARETR

HENBERANALEE

Executive Directors

HiES

Chau Cheok Wa 2 September 2011 N/A 102 - 5 - - 107
fElck= 01159828  TEA

Lo Kai Bong 9 March 2017 N/A 1,650 - 15 - 3,554 5,219
ERH 01753898  TEA

Au Chung On John 31 March 2017 N/A 102 6,025 5 - - 6,132
Bz 017838318 TEA

Manuel Assis Da Silva 31 March 2017 N/A 1,016 - 15 - 266 1,297
Manuel Assis Da Silva MTEIASIA THAE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Lo Wai Tung John 10 Qctober 2012~ N/A 102 - - - - 102
EER 0128104108  TEA

Tou Kin Chuen 26 April 2012 N/A 102 - - - - 102
g 25 01254A%8  TER

Wu Kam Fun Roderick 26 April 2012 N/A 102 - - - - 102
piEL) 0125408 THEE

Total #3f 3,176 6,025 40 - 3,820 13,061

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEREE M £ (&)
(Cont’d)

Retirement Share-based
Appointment Resignation Salaries and  benefit scheme Benefit  compensation
date date Fees allowances  contributions inkind benefits

R

688 REAS e FEREE  HEER  E0EA :
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETR ARMTR ARMTE ABETR ARMTR

Year ended 31 December 2017

HEMTF12AHALEE

Executive Directors

HhnEs

Chau Cheok Wa 2 September 2011 N/A 104 - 5 - - 109
REZ N11E9F28  TER

Lo Kai Bong 9 March 2017 N/A 1,369 - 13 - 3,019 4401
Ef A 017€3A9A MER

Au Chung On John 31 March 2017 N/A 78 5,184 4 - - 5,266
Bz N17TEIANE  TER

Manuel Assis Da Silva 31 March 2017 N/A 781 - 12 - 220 1,019
Manuel Assis Da Silva N17E3A318  TER

Cheng Mei Ching 2 September 2011 31 March 2017 26 = 1 = = 2
BER 0119828  2017%3A31A

Yeung So Lai 2 September 2011 31 March 2017 26 142 4 156 - 328
RZE 01159A28 20173431

Yeung So Mui 5 October 2010 20 July 2017 57 = 3 = = 60
EL 010810858 201757A20A

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Lo Wai Tung John 10 October 2012 N/A 104 - - - - 104
EFR 125108108 T#EE

Tou Kin Chuen 26 April 2012 N/A 104 = = = = 104
g =2 WN1254F268  TEE

Wu Kam Fun Roderick 26 April 2012 N/A 104 = = = = 104
5 E N12E4F2%6E  TEA

Total @3 2,753 5,326 42 156 3,245 11522
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e B RRME

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

14

(Cont’d)

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The emoluments of the Independent
Non-executive Directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group
under the share option scheme of the Company. Details of the
share option scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Ms. Yeung So Lai was the chief executive officer of the Company
since February 2012 and the position was vacant after her
resignation.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 2
(2017: 2) were the directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosure above. The emoluments of the
remaining 3 (2017: 3) individuals were as follows:

10. EEREEM < (&)

EXFRRTEZECHME I RARF
REBARRRAGEEEHBREHRZ
R EXFARBILIFRATESTZ
e D ARREEERARAESREH
Z PR

H ZE2017F12A31H L FE @ B IE
ARARBEREFEETESEEEA
CSERERS MERBERE - BR
BB 2HEBEHINAGE P ®RE
B 5E34 ©

BEBRLLTYH2012F2 A BEER
RDRITRABH - HBE AR UL B AL ZE 6 -

RBMEFEARN TEEFTHNTHRAR
BHELARABERETAHNENL-

AEBRARERE=RME ALTFR2%(2017
F28)BARRESZ EHMeaE R
EXWERN - He83K (20174 : 358)
AT ST :

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREF T

Salaries and allowances e RoERL 7,340 6,298
Share-based compensation benefits BmAEERFBER 494 415
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & /K 18 A 5t 2| { 3% 30 16
7,864 6,729

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEREE M £ (&)

(Cont’d)
The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2017: 3) individuals with the H#3Z(2017F: 35 ) Ma&a A
highest emolument are within the following bands: THHMEHEDT
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
2018 2017
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T £ 2,500,000 % JT
(Equivalent to RMB1,692,001 (FBE M A K %1,692,001 TE
to RMB2,116,000) AR #2,116,000 7T) - 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % JT £ 3,000,000 /% 7T
(Equivalent to RMB2,116,001 (HHERNARY2,116,001 T &
to RMB2,539,000) A R #2,539,0007T) - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 % 7T £ 3,500,000 % JT
(Equivalent to RMB2,539,001 (FHE MW AR %2,539,001 L E
to RMB2,962,000) A R #2,962,0007T) 3 -
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any AMBEEAN NEBEBERTH
of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to ExdmeadFMATINMES 1
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. AW e E I AKNE BN MmAR

SERNERNBERAEE -

Apart from detalils of the balances with related parties disclosed in BRREEVBERARBEE 2BER
the consolidated statement of financial position and other details HERRFTBRRES W B HmE E i
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, TREBEZEMFBEZN ARAW
the Company has not entered into a transaction, arrangement or EITYEMNRG ZHIEDHmAE
contract in which a director of the Company or a connected entity NAEERARAEST L HEE B
of a director of the Company has a material interest. WHEERNZ -
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e B RRME

M. FEHMAX

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
Current tax B HA B 18
— Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) -hEMSERIEEMSERH])
Provision for the year FANEE 6,795 15,524
Overprovision in prior year BEFEBEEG (2,446) =
4,349 15,524
— Macau Complementary -BFIWmAMER
Income Tax (“CIT”) ([ EHD 3,903 1,534
8,252 17,058
LAT T i EEH 58,461 56,056
Deferred tax (note 19) iE 7E F E (B 5E19) 14,173 (7,923)
80,3886 65,191
(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax (a) BEEFSF

MR2018E3A21H  HEHE L ES
BT FEBHBUEET) (BE75%)
THERNIZER]) 5| AMAR
Bl 1S K - Z B K N2018F 3
A28BAEEEAEN XHREAT
B-EMAHNMNESHET A&
BREBEREZEH2B BB TEF
15 128.25% T KB 28 BB
TC A b 2 0 A 5 12 16.5% it 2K &R
Fioe NREAMEHFERHRER
ZEBER EHEAMNK165%
B — R R

KRB EEREMAFFEH
XEmESRZEBERAY
BHREMSLIEER - BHEFE
MR ZMFERGTEREF
2 16.5% 5 & °
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EIT

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on EIT (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

PRC withholding income tax

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the PRC
to their foreign investors out of their profits earned after 1
January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are incorporated or operated in Hong Kong and
fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between
the PRC and Hong Kong.

LAT

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive
rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowable
deductions.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands and accordingly, is
exempted from the Cayman lIslands income tax. The
Company’s subsidiaries in the BVI were incorporated under
the International Business Companies Act of the British Virgin
Islands and, accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income tax.

Macau CIT

Macau CIT is calculated at the progressive rate on the
estimated assessable profits. The maximum tax rate is 12%
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

e M| RME

1. R &5 5 < (&)

TEREH
BEPFEAREMESCEMRST
BE(REMRER A RDZEM
BEEEEIEP - B2008F 1A
1THRAEEFRBENE R A
R 5 25% o

PEENFEHR

R EE K/ A R | EE NG
£ %Sk B200841 H1H # H
& AR B EIZRI0% A i X
AN B TR A0 AT A5 B o W AR B Y
BARMEBEBREEZERAATTRA
BHMK LN ESEE AR
AEHREEFBENH YR ELEE
Z B E - B E A5%H &K 78 1
A &= o

+ it B E B
THEREREEDREMAET
B B OR Mo M5k B B 8 2 1R € fd AT e
THEEHECREERIRE
MEBEFLEE BEETH
RIER -

BONFTEH
ARRRERSEHEEMFE22
BERBZERHAERSEMMK L
REHRRERAR AUt EH
CHMFAERESREN - AR 7
ZHBARREREEB XA
EERREXAREARNRABAER
RESEMAY Hit B#He
BAEBEBRBEESNEN -

RAMBREAEH
BREAMAERASEHRDREMGE
AP R M BRERRFTH - R E
£2018%F &2017F12H31H I
FE - ERRE/12%-

RIS EBER AR AT
T N\EEEHE
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 1. Fr B (E)
(g) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (9 FAMGBGHAXEEERER R
(loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of Hiap2m U sk AR AT(EIE)
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: A2 AR ¢

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®BTET

(Loss) profit before taxation M 5 g (&5 18) % A (1,378,012) 262,084
Notional tax calculated at R ERMERHE25%
EIT rate of 25% (2017 £ : 25%)
(2017: 25%) (Note) FREMEERIEE) (344,503) 65,521
Tax effect of share of loss of FBiEEE AR BEZHIE
a joint venture wE 3,724 -
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEERLEH
subsidiaries operating in other MBARTRABEENEE
jurisdictions (3,779) -
Tax effect of non-taxable income Bt AR IEE & (23,816) (192,375)
Tax effect of non-deductible T AR ERNHIEEER
expenses 388,161 133,060
Tax effect of deductible temporary AFTUERATN B LG R =5
difference not recognised HY B 18 52 2 15,989 14,258
Tax effect of tax losses not KT DA BE SR B I8 B 4R B0 B 1R
recognised = & 3,710 6,295
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ) A S B R HER T HE B K
previously not recognised HEy & - (3,610)
Overprovision in prior year BAFEBBEBEE (2,446) -
LAT + b E R 58,461 56,056
Tax effect on LAT deductible METECEMSHR M S YA
for calculation of EIT Mp g EH R E 2 (14,615) (14,014)
Income tax expense for the year AEERBHAX 80,886 65,191
Note: The tax rate represents the statutory tax rate of the operations in the Mia: ZMERAEBALDEBAEREE
jurisdiction where the operations of the Group are substantially based. EREBNEEDH X -
12. DIVIDENDS 12. R B
The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a final EFTEUEERKNTEZE2018F &
dividend for each of the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. 2017F12A31HIEFE R F 2 KH
g s o
1 4 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018



13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

(Loss) earnings figures are calculated as follows:

(Loss) earnings (B8 ZF

(Loss) earnings for the purpose of
calculating basic and diluted (loss)
earnings per share ((Loss) profit for
the year attributable to owners of the

Company)

(& 18) 4t 7))

%Avﬁﬁﬁm?

13. 8 R(EBHR) AR
ARARBEAANBEERERRES
(BR)AMNZ

HEEEMT

(BR)BMNBEBEAENT

2018
RMB’000

2017
RMB’000
AR T T

AR® TR

REERERNRET(ERE)
anz (&R &F
(KRBIHEEAREER

(1,458,541) 197,002

Number of shares

Ligvig =

2018

Number of shares [ grig =]
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic

(loss) earnings per share

BEBUHEELR
B

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options

ke

AESREAN(ERIENZ
BARZ NEFHH

6,116,414,264 6,072,849,666

- 124,116,274

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
(loss) earnings per share

REsRESE(BRANZ
EARRZMEFAH

6,116,414,264 6,196,965,940

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the computation of diluted
loss per share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options and the conversion of the outstanding
convertible bonds of the Company since the exercise of those
share options and the conversion of the outstanding convertible
bonds would result in decrease in loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the computation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the conversion of the
outstanding convertible bond of the Company since the conversion
of the outstanding convertible bond would result in increase in
earnings per share.

HEH E2018E12 A31 H Jtirt‘*z
ERESTEBYABRITELRAD
RAROFEZEBREREBRAR 75&1”“
Bz BRES REAARRKITE
ZEBBRELRERREETHRRE
FESEREBEBRRL -

HE2017F12A31B IEEE &
BERESRFBEIABREHLARQ
AIAEEZARRES REAR
RERAEETRRESFBSER
2 F 50 e

AR RAE R A A
T \EEEEE
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15

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ 3 - ﬁ%&fﬁ%

Leasehold Furniture Motor
improvement and fixture vehicles Total
HENEEE HKEREE RE @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETr ARETn ARETR
At cost BAEA
At 1 January 2017 120171818 593 2,932 7,564 11,089
Additions RNE 904 86 1,883 2,873
Disposals & - (86) (591) (677)
Exchange differences ERZE (63) (4) (75) (132)
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 8318 &
and 1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 1,444 2,928 8,781 13,1563
Additions NE - 358 - 358
Disposals it & - (207) (1,518) (1,725)
Exchange differences BEiES 63 6 136 205
At 31 December 2018 #2018 %12 A 31 R 1,507 3,085 7,399 11,991
Accumulated depreciation 2N E
At 1 January 2017 201761818 41 2,339 6,066 8,446
Charge for the year TEEHE 398 180 1,123 1,701
Eliminated on disposals HERHE = (1) (561) (662)
Exchange differences EXZE 9) (1) (27) (37)
At 31 December 2017 2017 E12 A318 &
and 1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 430 2,517 6,601 9,548
Charge for the year AEEHE 433 14 945 1,519
Eliminated on disposals T E R i - (196) (1,408) (1,604)
Exchange differences EiER 35 3 103 141
At 31 December 2018 #2018 %12 A 31 A 898 2,465 6,241 9,604
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2018 #2018 %12 A 31 A 609 620 1,158 2,387
At 31 December 2017 2017 E12 A 31 H 1,014 411 2,180 3,605

Suncity Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018



Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
as follows:

Over the term of the lease
3 to 5 years
4 years

Leasehold improvement
Furniture and fixture
Motor vehicles

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e MR E

14X - BERKEE)
rtiw¥ BMERREEENHED
THATEAEHACHERET
A E WAt R E G R EE

REwEsEs MEH

BEREE 3E54E

] 44
15. REY X

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Fair value ARE
At 1 January »1A1H 1,724,900 1,732,000
Change in fair value recognised in RESZANERZ AL EES
profit or loss (10,700) (7,100)
At 31 December ®12A31H 1,714,200 1,724,900

All of the Group’s investment properties held under medium
term operating lease to earn rentals are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The Group engages Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an
independent and professionally qualified valuer not connected
to the Group, to perform the valuation for the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2018 and
2017, respectively. The valuation committee works closely with
the qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer
of the Company reports the valuation committee’s findings to the
board of directors of the Company every six months to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

AEBERTPHEEEAOFERRE
TREBEZMBERENEOERAA
BEREAFE YO BREVWERN
BEWMEAK-

M20184F 12 A31 H Kk20174 12 A 31
B AKEZEFEFGHERARS
EAEETERENBLEREAE
REEMBAEERENEZ LA
BEETHE - BEZESERSER
SNEEEMEZ A BIFTREN
HERMNEENE AHE - A2 F
BERMEESNERARARAES
CEREEZEGZHEERNU
AREMERIARABEBRSZRE -

REFODEZ2AEBER ZFEWE
ZEBERERER/RERKZ -

AEREBZRAER DA
—T-N\FFEEHRE
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d) 15. RE W% (&)

15

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all investment properties of the
Group have been pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings
and details are set out in note 31.

Income approach operates by taking into account the rental
income of the property derived from the existing tenancy with
due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
tenancy which are then capitalised into the value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all investment properties are
included in Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during both
years and there were no transfers among the fair value hierarchy
during both years.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of investment
properties:

Valuation
technique

(R0

Significant

All investment
properties

Income approach
(81 December 2017:
Income approach)

FraIREnE WA
(2017512 A318 :
B AGE)

unobservable inputs

TUBRZEEBAE

The unit rates range from RMB13,914
(81 December 2017: RMB18,366)
to RMB49,339 (31 December 2017:
RMB58,313) per square meter with
weighted average of RMB26,560
(81 December 2017: RMB27,891)
per square meter.

BUHENTEFAFKRKARK3914 FANEMLESKIE
(2017F12A318 : AR#¥18,3667T)
Z AR #%49,3397C(20175 12318 -

R2018F K2017F 12831 H " &~ &
EfMEREMECEEBEUNEALRSE
ERTEEZER AEFRBRIERN
B 3E31 ©

WAZBBAEERAEANELEZ
mEBsB A TEEFEEAOZ
EBRBRABN RRBZEENER
EExHEERNLRETEE-

R20184F K2017F12A31H &N &
EREREDEFTARABEELNRN
B34 °

R EFEEARGE RN &S A
REABEFEFEANRARBESRAL EE
% o

EMBANESIRAREHE LA
K

Sensitivity

BRE

A significant increase in
the rental unit rate
used would result in
a significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

LRBERARE
KIEEM B2

AR®583137)  MEFHHEE A TRAR ©
FF 7K AR 26,5607 (2017 &
128318 AR¥27,8917C) °

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018



16. PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSIT FOR
CURRENT ASSETS

The prepayment and deposit are for the following items:

%Avﬁﬁimﬁ

NON- 16. kRBEECRANERES

MTEBEZENEERS

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARETF T
Land use right in the PRC (Note (a)) R B A £ i R (@) 8,136 8,136
Software development project in Macau AR FI &) &L - 5 2 18 B
(Note ((b)) (P 5% (b)) 13,146 =
21,282 8,136
Notes B 3E
(@)  The amount represents prepayment for the land use right for a property project (8 ZeRWMERTE-—EYWEEANIME
in the PRC. REzZENE -
(b)  The amount represents deposit paid to an independent third party for the b) ZEHEERNEBE2018F12A318ILFEE

development of a mobile application related to the tailor made procurement
of travel agency service for the end users during the year end 31 December

2018. The software development project was in the
as at 31 December 2018.

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

HERAEFREARAR 2B E
=ShXMzRke wERBRAAHAK
MAPESFEEBRERERS - Z
MBI IEE R20185 12 A31 B & R ¥
WRRET R ER -

D 7 &

preliminary design stage

17. R &

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®BTT
Cost of unlisted investment E EMHRE KR 1,745 1,745
Share of post-acquisition loss and B EREEEREM
other comprehensive expense 2EMAX (1,084) (37)
Exchange difference EHERE 80 ()
741 1,701
AKEREEZERBRAE

T \EEEEE
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d) 17. AB & D R M2 (E)

The following sets out the particulars of the associate of the LA T # 51 720184 2017 4 12 A 31

Group at 31 December 2018 and 2017 which, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or
net assets of the Group.

Place of
registration
and operation

Name of
associate

Paid up share

Legal form capital

HENTAER

Ak EESH

HERR BRERF

SeKeYi#iz{ g4  Japan

BA

JPY100,000,000
100,000,000 B

Limited Company
BRRA

HASEBERAA ZHFB(RAFE
ERRTEXELRNEEEENEE
/EF'{E)

Attributable equity interest
held by the Group
(Note)
AEEBECEGRE

(&)
2018

Principal business

TEXR

2017

30% 30%  Investment holding

REER

Note: The associate was incorporated in Japan on 27 November 2017. The Group
held 30% equity interest in the associate and the rest 70% equity interest was
held by two independent third parties for both years.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

The financial information of the associate is summarised as follows:

The Group’s share of loss and other

comprehensive expense for the year 2 X

C O EEE QA R2017F11 A27H KR A A
= it AR Az e ;K%@%ﬁ;zﬁ*ﬂ*ﬂﬁz
0% AHER LB T70% B ERZ R FH
HREBYLBE=AFH-

ZBERRERARRERNEAMH
BRAARK-
ZBMERBDZHBEERBENT

2018
RMB’000

2017
RMB’000

ARBTRE ARKTTE

AEBRGEFARBEREM

(1,047) (87)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A& B Rt & ARl 2
in the associate BREE 741 1,701

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

2018

RMB’000

ARET R

Cost of unlisted investment IEEMEE KA 363,621

Share of post-acquisition loss and JERWEREEREMETRRS

other comprehensive expense (14,191)
Exchange difference = 2,154
351,584

Loans to a joint venture (Note) m& &t EERP 445,805
797,389

Note: The loans to a joint venture are interest-free, unsecured and with no fixed Mad: ZERAECEERAEZR EERAR
repayment term. Such loans form the Group’s net investment in the joint BEETERA - FHAERBREAEERR
REECEZREFRA

venture.
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont’d)

15

The following sets out the particulars of the joint venture of the
Group at 31 December 2018 which, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, principally affected the results or net assets of
the Group.

Place of Paid up

Name of registration share
joint venture and operation Legal form capital

AMREEHLE EREER BRERA

Gold Yield Place of registration:  Limited Company us$2
Enterprises BVI AR DA 2ETT
Limited (“GYE") Place of operation:

SREEFRAA Vietnam
([eR]) G

EBABRES
me
i)

ents -

18. A ¥ MR (R
LA TR & %1 7N &£ B R 2018412 A 31 H
VEEREFHB MARAESER

=)

%

BELEXTIZREAEEXSE

REEE -

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group  Principal business
(Note)

FEERFLZ

PE 45 B A
(K &E)
2018

50%  Operation of an integrated
resort project in Vietnam
REEEE—EER
ERiTIER

Note: On 28 August 2018, the Group acquired (1) 50% of equity interest in GYE
through acquisition of the entire equity interest in Star Admiral Limited (“Star
Admiral”) from Suncity International Holdings Limited (“Suncity International”),
a related company wholly owned by Mr. Chau and (2) the loan to GYE of
approximately US$38,740,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB264,388,000)
advanced by Suncity International with goodwill of RMB87,185,000. The
Group satisfied the consideration by issuing (1) convertible bond (note 32) of
approximately HK$471,123,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB408,426,000)
to Star Hope Limited (“Star Hope”), a related company wholly owned by Mr.
Chau and Better Linkage Limited (“Better Linkage”), a related company wholly
owned by Mr. Lo Kai Bong, a director of the Company and (2) promissory
note (note 22) of approximately HK$253,291,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB219,5883,000) to Star Hope, under the instruction of Suncity International.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

© R201848HA28H - A& &£ B W E(1)&

B 2 50% A% # (35 i #t K 5 0 B B 428 AR
ERARTABHBEEDKBEEKSA
BRAR(TEH/DZ2HRE ATERAL
E2EBHBEZEERR) RQABH
B BR & BB 2 # X B K 438,740,000
Z (B E RO AR #264,388,0007T )
R EE ARKS7,1850007t > A& E
12 K B B BR 45 7R T BA B 1T (1) AT R AR
& % (Mf 5£32) #9471,123,000% T(#H &
R4 A R #408,426,0007t) FEEZH R
REN[ER] AhE2EHAZBE
A 7] ) KBetter Linkage Limited ([ Better
Linkagel " " AR EFTEMABEELR A
EHE2BERR) RQEL ZERK &
22)#7253,291,000% 7T (16 E R 4 A R #
219,583,00070) FE B X T Z KB -
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont’d) 18. REE ¥R (HA)
Included in the cost of unlisted investment of GYE is goodwill of 2018 12A31H * 5 A & B &
approximately RMB87,185,000 as at 31 December 2018. FELETRERARBENHNARYK

87,185,000 7T °

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in the ABECENAESZEARNKEA M B R
consolidated financial statements. E PN

Summarised financial information of the joint venture RELENBERSE

Summarised financial information in respect of GYE is set out e BEERBMEH AT X
below. The summarised financial information below represents LT BERNBERERBRES
amounts shown in GYE’s financial statements prepared in BUBREENRENOTBERRMA
accordance with HKFRSs. TH) R FE ©

31 December

2018
2018 12 H31 H
RMB’000
ARET T
Current assets BB E 902,139
Non-current assets ERBE E 2,898,498
Current liabilities nBAaE 1,257,805
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,490,480
Non-controlling interests FF 12 IR HE 2 349,184
The above amounts of assets and liabilities NEEERGBENEBEEE
include the following: AT &8 -
Cash and cash equivalents RehkB2FEYD 574,574
Development right F B R 871,621
Current financial liabilities mEBomaE
(excluding other payables) (T BEH M ENKE) 891,603
Non-current financial liabilities ERB R A E
(excluding other payables) (T B 1E H b fE I 5 38) 1,265,701

e aezas 107
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont'd) 18. RA & OB (|
Summarised financial information of the joint venture RELERBERSE R
(Cont’d)

From

28 August
2018

(date of
acquisition) to
31 December

2018
H 2018 £
8 A28 H
(kEERE)ZE
2018 FF
128381 H
RMB’000
AR® T
Revenue WA -
Loss for the period attributable to TREBAEGHANEIE
the owners of GYE (29,791)
Other comprehensive income for the period CREFABMGHRNEME2EKA
attributable to the owners of GYE 1,409
Total comprehensive expense for the period tREBEABGCHAZER AR
attributable to the owners of GYE (28,382)
Dividends received from joint venture HABEWEE D ERE

during the period -

1 5 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018



18.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont’d)

Summarised financial information of the joint venture

(Cont’d)

The above loss for the period includes the following:

fﬁ?AEﬁ%ﬁ%I}ﬁE

1. REg b X¥E= (&)
BELEMBEENEE ()

AEBMABRBEATEE:

From

28 August
2018

(date of
acquisition) to
31 December

2018
H2018
8 A28 H
(U B8 A 5)
Z2018 %
12HA31H
RMB’000
AR® T
Depreciation and amortisation - X! (4,945)
Interest income B WA 83
Interest expense SN -
Income tax credit FT 5 % & 910
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LNEBBERBMEZEARLGS KR
the carrying amount of the interest in joint venture recognised in FERNEELERAFREE S

the consolidated financial statements: BR -

31 December

2018

201812 831 B

RMB’000

AR®T

Net assets of GYE TREFEE 703,168
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREBRSRBOBEBAEREZR LA

interest in GYE 50%

351,584

Loans to GYE meRE X 445,805

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in GYE A& B R R EZNEEE 797,389

KRG HEEIZERERA A

159
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19. DEFERRED TAX 19. Eﬁﬁlﬁﬁ S0

The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the current and prior years are as follows:

#$¢F&LE¢V\ﬁA%%%
RAENERBRNECHBEEE(RRF)
HokEBHWT

Revaluation Accelerated Capitalisation

of investment LAT tax of interest
properties provision  depreciation expenses Total

B i m& FEXH
REME BEHARK REHE ¥4 aE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 (320,008) 85,947 (35,594) 89 (269,566)
Credit (charge) to profitor loss st A (IR B) B # 1,775 10,276 (4,123) (5) 7,923
At 31 December 2017 201712 A 31 H (318,233) 96,223 (39,717) 84 (261,643)
Credit (charge) to profitorloss st A(3% 8)#E % 2,675 (12,696) (4,138) (14) (14,173)
At 31 December 2018 20185128 31R (315,558) 83,527 (43,855) 70 (275,816)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

SREAMBARARNERZESN  &F
EEBRBREERABEEHFE - AT
RRMBERENMEINZELH
T AE R AT

As at 31 December
K12 831 H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TRT

Deferred tax assets FEEMRIBEE 83,597 96,307
Deferred tax liabilities FEERBEE (359,413) (357,950)
(275,816) (261,643)

Deferred tax has not been provided for temporary differences
attributable to the accumulated undistributed profits of
PRC subsidiaries of RMB555,170,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB548,097,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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19. DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB277,380,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB262,540,000), available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will
be expired at various times within a period of five years from the
year of origination.

%AM%EEW?

19. IEFE B 15 (&)
MR20184F 128318 "N&E B % A &
) A RIE B 1B 4 A R ¥ 227,380,000
T (2017F12HA31H: A R ¥
262,540,000 7t ) A] 4 4 $5 K 2K i F) o
KR g A R AT FE R M R

ERERBEEE-RABEKE MY
RRABFEEESFHEARNREREE
e

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &
As at 31 December
M12H31H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Properties under development BWEBYE 248,930 222,672
Properties held for sale BELHEDE 348,353 421,739
Travel related products B 3% 48 B8 E @ 10,928 8,819
608,211 653,230

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no impairment loss
(2017: approximately RMB57,034,000) has been recognised in
respect of inventories as the net realisable value of the properties
under development is higher (2017: lower) than the carrying
amount.

The properties held for sale were located in the PRC. Properties
held for sale which are expected to be recovered in more than
twelve months after the end of each reporting period are classified
under current assets as it is expected to be realised in the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain inventories have been
pledged to secure the Group’s other borrowings and details are
set out in note 31.

R E E£2018F12A31B It FE - I
ER T ERREEBIEQOTE 4
A B #57,084,0007T ) T A A& % E
YA SR FERS K017 F ¢

ER)HEREE -

BEHED R BN R BT
W5 94 A R 1 BB IR 1218 A P K
B RELENESEARDEE
5 78 8 7 54 7K 4 B IF % 2 0
MBR -

R20184%F &2017F12A318 ' & F
GEEHEMBUEAASEEEMEER
ZER BEFBIHRAMES -

AR RAE R A A
T \EEEEE
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

21. @WEETA&EMEL&TA&

PREPAYMENTS S-ENEN
31 December
12HA31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) & Uk BR 3k (M 7% (a)) 64,798 59,022
Other receivables (Note (b)) H b i U 3 (BT 5 (b)) 4,374 4,778
Other deposits (Note (c)) E 3% & (M 5£(c) 7,130 54,387
Prepayments T8 3K 2,360 3,205
78,662 121,392
Notes: B & -

Amount represents the trade receivables from sales of properties, rental
income, hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services and travel
agency services. Proceeds receivable in respect of sale of properties are settled
in accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale and purchase agreements.
Buyers are not granted with any credit period for both years. For the proceeds
receivables in respect of rental income from lease of investment properties, no
credit periods are granted for both years. For the hotel and integrated resort
general consultancy services, a credit period ranging from 0 to 15 days is
granted. For the travel agency services, the Group generally allows a credit
period of 30 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables based on the dates of
the properties delivered, dates of check-in and invoice dates of both hotel and
integrated resort general consultancy services and property leasing at the end
of each reporting period which approximated to the revenue recognition dates.

(@)

CRAREAMEHE H2UA BER
FAEBRMNZ —RERRSE A RKER
BRE Z AR HE WX EKK
BELDRBEEEHZTAZIGREN - B
TRMEFEREEREMEE S 3
HERENEELEZHESBRABTHZE
WREmS MEFERERREES-
BREEREAEBRN Z —RBERREM
FORHEUGEHNFOE15H < R ENK

ERBEMmME AKE-—RETHEETFI0
HzfEEH-
MTAREREHNRBRERZDER

NEH BRUBHAREEREAER
Hz-—REERBEEDEEEZEHEREA
H(ER AR 2 BEE)Z 5 2RIk D T

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T
Within 30 days 308 A 62,957 56,791
31-90 days 31H Z90H 129 31
91-180 days 91 H=180H - 120
Over 180 days #8180 H 1,712 2,080
64,798 59,022

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)
(a) (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018, approximately RMB1,712,000 (31 December 2017:
Nil) of trade receivables from provision of hotel and integrated resort general
consultancy services are past due for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group has not held any collateral over the trade receivable
in respect of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services.

As at 31 December 2018, approximately RMB129,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB151,000) of proceeds receivables from lease of properties are past due
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The rental deposits
are held as collateral over the proceeds receivable in respect of rental income
from lease of properties.

As at 31 December 2017, approximately RMB2,080,000 of proceeds
receivables from sales of properties are past due. The Group is entitled to take
over the legal title and possession of the underlying properties for resale under
the sales and purchase agreements. The entire amount has been received
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

.No‘tes to the Consolldated FlnanC|aI Statements

e B RRME

1LERERREMERREK

8+ = ()

B o (48)
(a) (#)
M2018F12A31H IR BEERKE

ERNZ —BERRSZERERLOA
R #1,712,0007c (20174128318 : £& )

B BAKE WK BERBBRE-
AEBMIB/ABERGEAERNZ —K

BERE 2 BKIRRSE EMER -

MR2018F12A31A W EHE 2 B
RIEH AR 129,0007t(2017F 128318 -
AR % 151,0007T) % H - 1B 7 & B 3 K 1
LREGEEREGE - Bk NIERHEE
MEEEZHSBRAGHE 2 EBRFTEZ
BFEmMBE -

MR2017F12A31H M EHE 2 E K
FIE K A R 2,080,000 # H o A &£ H
ERBEEBEMEEEHEMEZEE
XELFEE - 2E8SBE RN E £2018
F12A31AEFERUE -

B E R EE KRR KRR

31 December

2017
2017 &
12HA31H
RMB’000
AR® TR

Past due for: 0 H
31-90 days 31HZE90H 31
91-180 days 91 H&180H 120
Over 180 days HiB180H 2,080
Total P 2,231

KBAEBRRERAT
—NEEERE
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)
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(@)

(Cont’d)

For credit term reviews of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change
in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

From 1 January 2018, the Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL, trade receivables have been assessed
on individual basis and, the directors of the Company considered that ECL
for the trade receivables is not significant as at 31 December 2018 due to the
high internal credit rating of these debtors.

The other receivables, net of ECL of RMB 1,983,000 (31 December 2017: Nil)
are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and recoverable within one year
from the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, the balance mainly represents decoration deposit (the
“Deposit”) of RMB52,000,000 for properties held for sale paid to a contractor
(the “Contractor”) which is not related to the Group. As the Deposit is expected
to be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle, such deposit is classified
as current assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, as mutually agreed between the
Group, the Contractor, a company related to the Contractor and relevant
parties, that the Deposit was settled by (i) offsetting a balance of RMB5,444,000
payable to the Contractor, and (i) settling the Group’s other borrowing of
RMB33,000,000 and other payable of RMB11,052,000 by the company related
to the Contractor on behalf of the Group. The obligation of the other borrowing
and the other payable were fully discharged as at 31 December 2018. As at
31 December 2018, the remaining deposit is RMB2,504,000 which will be
settled by the end of 2019.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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1. EWBRRANREMERIR R

A ()
GEHC)

(a)

(%)

R-ERMERZERBBREME A
SEEBAMRAGENLELANES
BEBRERERREREHEEZ
AR -

REEERRBREER AEEEBEE
EZREBRAEEEEERE FES
HEREMEERT UERKEREET
B EEMER -

ANEEB2018F1A1HRERE B Y
WEERFOR B LT ERHEEEHIE
(ER2EHEESSE)  BEREREE
Bl fERE(E - A QD Rl E F R A R2018
FI2AIBRKRERZEHEEBER
BEETEBER REAZRSEBEHKAZN
HEETIRAESD -

HMBEEHEEBEBEZEMERRARYE
1,983,0007C (2017412 4318 : £ ) B Ik
Bo5HE EEHF 2EBERAEARSRESN
KEF—FEARNYD -

R2017E12A31A  BHETEHEIMHF
—EERRE(ZARE] BEAEETE
BE)ERBIEHEMEZEERS (X
%)% A R #52,000,0007T ° 8 R T8 5
ZREBRAEBEELERHNER -
MZEPBEARDEE -

REB E2018FE12A31H IEFE B &
REBHEZAYE —HAZEAHEAR
E¥BBMEZARREBEAHERET @ BA()
8 FE 1 5% R i 7 2 4 #R A R 65,444,000
T RNEFAEBZEMEEARY
33,000,0007T X B2 3% # 9i A ¥ 7% B8 E
ZRARRAEELENEMERRARYE
11,052,0007C * R 4 (F % & & - 120184
12A31H Z HE M8 R H M EMNK
ZEEEEEMBE - R2018F 124318 -
T & m & A R #2,504,000 7T * #5 72019
FIRIEE -
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS/RELATED
COMPANIES/LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY

(@) Amount due to a director

The amount due to a director of approximately RMB4,893,000
(31 December 2017: RMB4,668,000) as at 31 December
2018 represents the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) denominated
promissory note (“2016 Promissory Note”) of principal amount
of approximately HK$5,584,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,676,000 as at 31 August 2016) which is non-interest
bearing and repayable after two years from 31 August 2016
(date of issuance).

Movement of the amount due to a director during the years
is as follows:

%Avﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

2. BR(EMES BELH
RE/RE—HEEQXAER

(a)

ElR—B2EERE
MR20184F12A31H &  — &
£ E R EH AR 4,893,000
T(2017F 128318 A R
¥4,668,0007T ) B &N & FE 4
5,584,000 JT( M 20164 8 A 31
HiEE R4 AR4676,0007T)
ZABTR(BTDAEZERLE
B(2016F & L EHE])  ZEE
BT B NAR201648 A31H
(BITRBEMFE I -

ENEN - R EERELED
m :

RMB’000
AR®TT

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 4,995
Exchange difference fEHERE (327)
At 31 December 2017 B2017 412 A 31 H 4,668
Exchange difference A 225
At 31 December 2018 MA2018%F 12831 H 4,893

Amount represented as:

At 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Current i B - 4,668
Non-current (Note) IE 7 B (BT &) 4,893 =
4,893 4,668

Note: On 8 May 2018, the Company and the director entered into an
amendment letter to extend the maturity date of the 2016 Promissory
Note from 31 August 2018 to 31 August 2020 and therefore the entire
balance is reclassified to non-current liabilities as at 31 December 2018.
Save for the extension of the maturity date, all other terms of the 2016
Promissory Note shall remain unchanged.

MizE: M2018F5A8H ARG RES
RIS B T M #2016 F & =
®) Z| 8 B 201848831 A & K&
202048 A31H B B B & &
R2018F12A3MB EFH » &
EmBAB -BRETEKRE AN
2016 F A& K REBEH T A H b &K

BETE

AR RAE R A A
T \EEEEE
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS/RELATED  22. FE W (f& 1) EE BHE A7
COMPANIES/LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY RE/ RE—BEEEATNEXR

(Cont’d)

(b) Amounts due from directors
Amounts due from directors of RMB368,000 at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: RMB666,000) are in trade nature,
unsecured, interest-free and recoverable within 30 days.

The amounts due from directors and an aging analysis of such
balances presented based on the invoice dates at the end
of each reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates are as follows:

Within 30 days 30H &

(&)

(b) EWESZ=NKIE
R2018FE12 A1 H Bl & £ &
H A R ¥368,0007T (2017 F 12
A31H : AR #666,0005T) 5%
Mg BmBER £ E RARI0
B R E -

THEINRZEREHARERH
SEHESKAERZBEHREE)
MEKEEFRBEURZEER
B B B, 0 AT

At 31 December
M12 8381 H

2018
RMB’000
AR TR

2017
RMB’000
ARBTT

368 666

Amounts due from directors are within the credit period as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of the amounts due from directors is 30
days in 2018 (31 December 2017: 30 days).

The Group has not provided any allowance for credit loss
of amounts due from directors for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 as the entire amounts have been
subsequently received.
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#H =20184F K20174 12831 H
tFE AEBUTEREKRES
REGFREMAEEEBERE A
REHMeBEZLE RE -



0:,..:......................o......... .. .0 .0 : : : - -
STITEEEereneen ool e Tt o TL-T cNotes to t

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS/RELATED
COMPANIES/LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY
(Cont’d)

(c) Amounts due to related companies
The amounts due to related companies during the years are
as follows:

(&)

%Avﬁﬁﬁm?

2. BR(EMES BELH
RE/RE—HEEQXAER

(c) ENBEERAKRREA
RZEFEZENBEER
HIE

At 31 December

MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AR T T
Non-trade related: FEESHEB :
2018 Promissory Note (Note (i) 2018 4F & 5, Z 4% (P 5% i) 229,000 =
Accrued interest of 2018 2018 F & X, =ik 2
Promissory Note FE & F) B2 1,824 -
Accrued interest of loan from RE—EEERAER
a related company Z BT F B 2,834 -
Trade related (Note (ii)) Z 5 18 @8 (K1 5 (i) 47,445 50,193
281,103 50,193
Less: Amount due within one year B —F AR E (52,103) (60,193)
Amount due after one year —FR ISR 229,000 =

Notes:

On 28 August 2018, the Group issued a HK$ denominated promissory
note (“2018 Promissory Note”) of principal amount of HK$303,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB262,677,000) to a related company as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of the entire equity interest
of Star Admiral and shareholder’s loan owed by Star Admiral (note 18).

The 2018 Promissory Note is unsecured, interest bearing at 2% per
annum and repayable after two years from the date of issuance and
therefore is classified as non-current liabilities.

The fair value of the 2018 Promissory Note is approximately
HK$253,291,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB219,583,000) on
the date of issuance, calculated based on the present value of the
principal amount plus accrued coupon interest over the expected life
of the 2018 Promissory Note.

2

R2018%F 8 A28H * AN & @ A — [
8 & A | # 17 AN £ F8 /4 303,000,000
BT (& R & A R #262,677,000
TT) B P8 Tt B & K = 4R ([2018 & &
RERBD FREBEEBZ2HR
BREBERABREZERZHE S R
B (fFsE18) °

018F AHRBREERR  RFF
2%t BW AR ETAHETM
FAEERALESBEARERDEE-

RETHE 2018F AKX EZHEZA
#t 1 4 £258,291,0007% L (H & ©
# A R#219,583,0007T) * Jy iR & A
SREMR2018F AN ZHE 2 FEH
FHEELXAZZBMNEE -

AR RAE R A A
T \EEEEE
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS/RELATED
COMPANIES/LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY
(Cont’d)

(c) Amounts due to related companies (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

16

(i)

(i)

(Cont’d)

Movement of the 2018 Promissory Note during the year is as follows:

22.

FEW(EMES BEAF
RE/RE-—HBELRAER

(&)

(c) EE{SRBIERRKIE(E)
B &« ()
0] (%)

FHN2018F A AL RBEHNEFHMT :

RMB’000
AR T T

At 1 January 2018

»20184F1 A1H

Issuance during the year FANBT 219,583
Imputed interest expense (note 8) EEF B 5 (K 5Es) 7,117
Exchange difference fEHZ 2,300
At 31 December 2018 R20184% 128318 229,000

Effective from 1 January 2018 and 2017, the Group has entered into
a management service agreement (“MS Agreement”) with Sun City
Gaming Promotion Company Limited (“Sun City Gaming Promotion”),
a related company which is wholly owned by Mr. Chau. Pursuant to
the MS Agreement, Sun City Gaming Promotion will provide certain
management and administrative services to the Group at a fixed
monthly fee.

On 6 February 2017, the Group has entered into a hotel
accommodation procurement agreement (“HAP Agreement”) and
ferry ticket supply agreement (“FTS Agreement”) with Sun City
Gaming Promotion. Revised HAP Agreement has been entered into
between the Group and Sun City Gaming Promotion on 15 May 2017
in order to revise the original annual cap of hotel accommodation
procurement.

Pursuant to the HAP Agreement, the Group will procure the hotel
accommodation products from Sun City Gaming Promotion for
its business in relation to the travel related products and services.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group procures the
hotel accommodation products from Sun City Gaming Promotion in
aggregate of approximately RMB476,539,000 (2017: approximately
RMB326,889,000).

Pursuant to the FTS Agreement, Sun City Gaming Promotion will
purchase the ferry tickets from the Group.

Upon signing the HAP Agreement, the Group engaged Sun
City Gaming Promotion to follow up the collection of the trade
receivables in respect of the hotel accommodation products. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, Sun City Gaming Promotion
collected approximately RMB596,662,000 (2017: approximately
RMB309,380,000) from the customers.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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H20184F R2017F1A1H A& E
HABHBEERN—ABRRATK
GRERHN] - BR—HBERAR -
HEAEGE2EABB)ITLEERE
% & (TMS 13 3% 1) o 1B BEMSH#h 3 -

GREXFNEESABETEKRER
AEBERHEETERERITHRRE -

R2017F2A6H @ A& B HE KB
BERANTZLBEERE RS XBE
1 3% (THAP 15 % 1) K& M 22 ¢ 7 15 &
([FTStR & 1) - K2017F5H158 -
AEBEAGBRIEEF N LLE
FTHAPH &% AIBRTBIE B &R B
ZRFEEER-

B IEHAPH & AN & B 15 3t H ik i
HEESERERABRIEY SN
KBEBEEEBEER K& £20184F
12A31BLEEE AEE B KB
BEANKEAEEEEME AL
st #4 A R # 476,539,000 7T (2017 4F -
# A\ B ¥ 326,889,0007T) °

REBEFTISH & KEHBE SN K
AAEERBEMRS -

REEHAPH &% AEBZE KA
R5 18 % R o BRE URER B BEOE JE (&
BERZBEWRER - RE E2018F
12A31BIEFE  KEWHEX+F N
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS/ 2. ERW(EMES BEARQTA
RELATED COMPANIES/LOAN FROM A RELATED RE/ RE—BHEEQAAER
COMPANY (Cont’d) (#&)

(c) Amounts due to related companies (Cont’d) (c) EREERRMEGE

Notes: (Cont’d)
(if) (Cont’d)
The amount is in trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable

within 30 days. An aging analysis of such balance is presented based
on the invoice dates at the end of each reporting period as follows:

Bt & (48)
iy (&)

ZeHEhRBEHIME BER 28
KA RA30R MU E - TF 2% K&
MEHKRERBLEZAHNZEHD
BR ik 9 4T ¢

At 31 December
A12H31H
2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR®ETIT

Within 30 days 30BN

47,445 50,193

(d) Loan from a related company
During the year ended 31 December 2018, HK$275,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB240,077,000) has been
advanced from Star Hope. The amount is unsecured, interest
bearing at 3.5% and repayable after 60 months from the
effective date of the loan agreement, and therefore the
amount is classified as non-current liabilities.

As the amount represents a loan from a related company
which is controlled by Mr. Chau to finance the operations of
the Group and the interest rate charged on the loan is below
prevailing market interest rate, imputed interest of loan from
a related company upon initial recognition of RMB80,436,000
calculated at difference between the prevailing market rate
and the coupon interest rate has been charged to capital
reserve as deemed contribution from a shareholder.

Movement of the loan from a related company during the
year is as follows:

d RE-HEBEEATER

REE2018%12 A31H IEFE -
T8 Uk 2 2B 318 & 275,000,000 7
T (M & B4 A R # 240,077,000
) c R HEAEEE  RFAX
35%s BW AR EFBE K&
£ A H B ET60@E A B ER
hZeEsBRIIERDEE -

HRZeBARARKE —HXAZL
EEGHEEARZER  U@E
FAEEBZEE ZERZF =
BERIBVITMSEMNE - BkE —
MEAEARERZHENER
)16 7R £ %8 A K #80,436,000
TERBTME N XEZR R X
LHEZEBRAE)IRERELRFRE
THABBIE-—ZREITE -

FARE-—HBERIRAERZ
gt :

RMB’000

AR T T

At 1 January 2018 201841 H1 A -
Advance during the year F AN 240,077
Deemed contribution from a shareholder RIE—BREEE (80,436)
Imputed interest expense (note 8) & F B = (FEs) 4,273
Exchange difference &+ Z8 549
At 31 December 2018 R20184 12 A31 H 164,463

ABHEEERERA 1 6 9
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH ~ 23. R AR B A BH W SR

PROFIT OR LOSS BE

201

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL: & #liZ A 4 B AB 21

31 December
2018
8%F12H31H

RMB’000
AR®T

EHEE
Equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange 1 B 2 AT £ 1 #) B A &5 44,934
Amount represented as current Wt AR 44,934

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK 24. E R TE R Z R B8R 17

DEPOSITS FX
B BIETIERIER

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits for the following

purposes: TR

RTHE®Z

At 31 December

W12 A 31 H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR T T
Securities for banking facilities (note 31) R 1T @b & 2 ¥ 1R (Mf 5231) 6 6
Securities for mortgage loan facilities BITERTAEEWMEEREH 2
granted by the banks to buyers of ERERME ZER
the Group’s properties (note 35) (Fff 3£ 35) 297 297
Securities for the travel agency business 12 fit T 4 f& 79 > fik 1 1% 18 2 7%
to the suppliers and license granted by R AN EEE HE R T 2 R
the local regulatory body Z R 7,068 5,570
7,371 5,873
Amounts represented as: SEEM A :
Current &) 303 5,873
Non-current (Note) JE 7 B) (B 5E) 7,068 =
7,371 5,873

Note: The amounts are placed for rendering travel agency services and the entire B
balance is not expected to be received within one year and therefore is
classified as non-current assets.

1 7 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK

DEPOSITS (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2018, the pledged bank deposits are subjected
to floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.3% (31 December
2017: 0% to 0.3%) per annum.

At 31 December 2018, the restricted bank deposit represents an
advance installment of a loan repayment as requested by a bank
and it cannot be withdrawn prior to the approval of the bank.

At 31 December 2017, the restricted bank deposits represent
bank deposits seized by the court in the PRC as details set out in
note 30. The restricted bank deposits carry floating interest rate
ranged from 0% to 0.3% per annum. The restricted bank deposits
were released by the court in the PRC as the related litigations had
been settled during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank balances and cash are
denominated in the following currencies:

24.

25.

e MR E

CEBRTER ZRHE BT
7R (E])

M2018F 12 A31H ' B R 1777
FKIZFEF E N F0%ZE0.3% (2017 F
1283818 : 0% &E0.3%) # )% & & &
AT B e

MN2018FE 12 A31H X R &l 4R 17 17
RGBT BER 2 —FEERERZE
o HE - ERAI Rz R/THE A BT FRER o

R2017F12 8318 R %l &L 17 7%
RERBEERBEHZBITER F
1% & 5 Rt £330 F R #8817 17 &
B EF RN F0% = 0.3%H 7 &) F| R
P E - BN BRFALERE Z£2018
F12A31A EFEMBE - WX R H
BITTERE B B AT R BR -

RTEHRRASE
AREBMBRITES KRS 0EEE M
T3 8 W M

At 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T
RMB AR 54,962 261,798
United States Dollars (“US$”) Erx(Emx)) 16 74
HK$ BT 32,249 40,465
Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) BT ([RPI%E ) 5,441 220
92,668 302,557

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to the relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2018, bank balances carry interest at prevailing
deposit rates which ranged from 0% to 0.35% (31 December
2017: 0% to 0.3%) per annum.

BARBEHEEHR LB BINEAR
HzFIEABEBRTERRASE
B B AE T BT RMINE
& 1l 48 B8 15 ) S AR B

MN20184F 12 A31H R IT & B IR B
THFEFANEETF N F0%ZEQIS%
(2017512 A31H : 0% £0.3%) &
KB o

AEREBZRAER DA
—T-N\FFEEHRE
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26 BHBRRREMEAR

As at 31 December

W12 H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR T T
Trade payables (Note (a)) &~ 8% (B9 3£ (a)) 65,762 76,173

Other payables and accruals b FE 3R K B AT X

(Note (b)) (B 55 (b)) 147,524 113,124
Interest payables FE A F 2 32,191 42,473
Other tax payables H M FE 1< B 18 23,177 17,090
268,654 248,860

Notes:
(@) The credit period of trade payables ranges from 30 to 180 days.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the end of each reporting
period based on invoice dates:

W g
() EANERZEEHN FI0ORE180H -

NTAREREHNREERTAHRI 2
RS BR R 2 BR iR 0 1T

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR T T
0-90 days 0Z90H 19,674 11,157
Over 90 days 90 H KA E 46,088 65,016
65,762 76,173
(b) Included in the accruals, there is an accrual of RMB31,725,000 related to b FAEFHRER - FRAARK

a landslide accident occurred nearby the Group’s properties held for sale
in Longgang District, Shenzhen during the year ended 31 December 2018.
Subsequent to the landslide accident, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group received a notice from Longgang District Government (the "District
Government"), under which the District Government required the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group to formulate and execute an emergency plan and
reinforcement plan for the affected area (the "Maintenance Work").

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has entered into several
construction contracts with independent third parties for the Maintenance
Work in accordance with the requirements of the District Government. The
Maintenance Work will be completed by three phases. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group completed the first phase of the Maintenance
Work with cost of approximately RMB1,071,000. Since the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group was instructed by the District Government to
execute the Maintenance Work during the year ended 31 December 2018,
accrual of Maintenance Work for the remaining two phases of approximately
RMB31,725,000 has been recognised with reference to the construction
contracts entered into with independent third parties subsequent to the end
of the reporting period.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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31,725,0007C 2 FEFt RIE - HEBRE =
2018 F 12 A31H It F & A& B R & Y
EEEFEHEWENTEE 2 ILRE
BEH - RLUEERSSHE A5E2E
WEARKEEREBRN(RKF]®
M BE BRRERAEEZ2ERB R
AR EHERERATESTER

hnE &) (14 & TED -

HZEZ2018F12A3MB L FE A &£ @R
BEBRFANECHEEIFEBELE =
FTAINZOWEBEEHN - HKEIEKS =
BT - B E2018F 12 A1 A IEFE &
SEEERAEEIEE B KEAOA
EMWNWWhmm$%E%ﬁW§
A7) FE = RT3 R R & E 20184 12 A 31
HIEFEHTHETE S TR mE
TEEELH AR31,725,0007T B 2 & ik
EHRGEBYE =AM EESY
R -
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27. PROVISIONS FOR POTENTIAL CLAIMS

The balance represents the provisions for potential claims which
include refund of the deposit and compensation to the buyers
of the properties held for sale in relation to the breach of terms
stipulated in the sales and purchase agreements entered into
between the Group and the buyers.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a bank (the “Bank”)
initiated an enforcement of a civil claim (the “Bank Claim”) against
the Group including the seizure of certain properties. The Group
then received a notice from EREFIITAHRHEARZER (the
“Intermediate Court”) in connection with an enforcement civil ruling
(the “Judgement”) relating to the Bank Claim with details set out
in note 30.

Certain properties under pre-sale arrangement have been seized
by the Intermediate Court due to the Bank Claim with immediate
effect in accordance with the Judgement. As a result, the Group
failed to fulfil the obligations stipulated in the sales and purchase
agreements within the predetermined period of time and is liable
to the claims for the return of pre-sale deposits and instalment
payments made by the buyers and compensation stipulated in the
sales and purchase agreements. With reference to the legal opinion
from the PRC lawyer, the estimated provisions for potential claims
were approximately RMB42,082,000 and RMB200,000 as at 31
December 2017 and 1 January 2017, respectively, and therefore
the Group recognised provision of RMB41,882,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all seized properties
were released by the Intermediate Court as set out in note 30.
The Group has then performed all obligations stipulated in the
sales and purchase agreements, and reversal of provision of
approximately RMB19,518,000 was recognised in profit or loss.
The remaining balance represents the probable exposure of which
the Group is still subject to the claims from the buyers due to the
failure of fulfilling the obligations within the time frame stipulated
in the sales and purchase agreements.

e M| RME

27. BERERE

EHREBCRERGB HEbheEH
EHEMEZENRERAEER
BRIV ZEEHHE B 2I&ERMm
EXZESER KEE-

HE2017F12A831B EEE - — M
BIT(RITDRAARAEEBRBEIHNITRS
RE(RTRE]) BEEHFETY
X¥-AEBERBKIEREZIT
FRARZER(HAEER] B BRT

BITREZREBHATHEES(THR]D
2B FFIBE M FES0 -

EELZHETIZ2AETYWEEBRE
H) R BN A AR 2 R 1T R E R BR
- Al AEEBEZEZRETE
HRABTEEMRITIPBZET-
AEEBEEREEHERZEERE
e RDHARZREUREEH
EREATEZIRE - K2EZFRHEZAM
Z2ERER  R2017F12A318 &
2017F1A1H IEBERME 2 (Har #&
B2 B4 & AR 42,082,000 & A
K #200,0007C © A It - #H =20174F
12831 BILEFE AEEBEREE
A B #41,882,000 7T °

H E2018F12A31H IEFE X F &
A BT B BRBR M FES0FTE 2 2 268 KR
ME-AEBHEHEEBRTEE W=
ST EBEERX TREZER
BB ARK19,518,0007T ° #& 1
EHRIEASERRERE B WHEG]
HHZH%EEWE??EEW‘E&;%?%%E
BzxzaRKRMO -
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27. PROVISIONS FOR POTENTIAL CLAIMS (Cont’d)

No claims from the buyers have been received by the Group during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The movement of the provisions for potential claims is shown as
follows:

e ° o

27. BUERMBEH)
B 220184 K2017HF 128318 1k
FE - BAMERAFAERRERE-

BEEREBRBEDHIIDT -

RMB’000
AR®TT

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H8 200
Charge to profit or loss Bk B 2 41,882
At 31 December 2017 20174 12 A31 H 42,082
Credit to profit or loss 5t A= (19,518)
At 31 December 2018 M 2018412 H31H 22,564

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

28. 6B E

31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
2018 F 20184

128 31H 1H1B*
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Sales of properties HE WX 146,832 288,480
Hotel and integrated resort general BIEREAEEBRNZ
consultancy services income — M B R B A 1,312 -
148,144 288,480
Analysed for reported purposes as: HEFRAED M :
Current liabilities B aE 148,144 288,480

*

The amount is this column are after the adjustments from the
application of HKFRS 15.

1 7 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

. o REMBRRME

28. B E(E)
TREINAFEERUAEREE
EMAEMRBENEE -

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

Hotel and

integrated

resort general
consultancy

Sales of services

properties income
;\E JE & n_\ é

EBRNZ—®&

HEWXE BEERBRA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T AR T

Revenue recognised that was included FFAFHE LA EE R
in the contract liability balance T 58 M YL A
at the beginning of the year 171,430 -

RAFEE HECERBRAEBE
HACETZBENEEER -

During the current year, none of the revenue recognised relates
to performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

29. RECEIPT IN ADVANCE 29. 78 W BR &

M20184F 12 A31H » T8 W Bk &% = 3§
BEASEREMENTHEEKRIME
NS REBEE - fTEAKKEE
HRM1FRBEEEZ -

As at 31 December 2018, receipt in advance represents prepaid
rental and management fee from tenants of the Group’s investment
properties. The entire receipt in advance is expected to be released
to profit or loss within one year.

MN2017FE12A31H - B BE X = #85
AEBEEEWEEE &FWERAHE
EBREEBEAEEREEMENA
FlBmEMfHEeRERE - TH
BWFEEHMFEFREEEZR -

As at 31 December 2017, receipt in advance represents sales
proceeds received from buyers in connection with the Group’s
pre-sales of properties and prepaid rental and management fee
from tenants of the Group’s investment properties. The entire
receipt in advance is expected to be released to profit or loss
within one year.

ABHERERERA 1 75

T \EEEEE
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30. PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATIONS

17

In July 2017, the Group has received the Judgement from the
Intermediate Court relating to the Bank Claim. As alleged by the
Bank under the Bank Claim, the Bank Claim relates to a loan
agreement for a loan with principal amount of RMB120,000,000
(the “Bank Loan”) and made between the Bank and a company (the
“Borrower”), which is not connected to the Group, established in
the PRC as a borrower in prior years. Pursuant to the Bank Claim,
it was alleged that RINTT EInFEHEFRZE AR AT (“Shenzhen
Zirui”) and KNGttt E L BB R /AR (“Sun Century Property”),
both being indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company
established in the PRC, together with other four defendants which
are not connected to the Group in the Bank Claim, had been acting
as guarantors for the Bank Loan.

Pursuant to the Judgement, the assets of the Borrower, Shenzhen
Zirui, Sun Century Property and other defendants under the
Bank Claim (up to the sum of RMB807,133,000 with interest
thereon together with fees and expenses to be incurred under
the enforcement) shall be seized or frozen (the “Frozen Assets”)
and such Frozen Assets shall be disposed of for repayment of the
amounts under the Bank Claim if not paid. As at 31 December 2017,
the Frozen Assets under the Group’s legal title comprised bank
balances in the aggregate amount of approximately RMB334,000
(note 24) and inventories with carrying value of approximately
RMB213,367,000 (note 20).

As the Borrower defaulted the repayment of the Bank Loan in
2012, the directors of the Company have revisited the provisions
in relation to the Bank Claim in prior years. The provision in relation
to the Bank Claim was RMB539,082,000 as at 1 January 2017.

The provision for the Bank Claim is determined by the terms of the
loan agreement under which, the loan is interest bearing at 24%
per annum and repayable within 6 months from date of withdrawal
of the loan. Beyond the loan period, the interest will be adjusted to
36% per annum and all unpaid interest will be subject to compound
interest rate at 36% per annum until the loan is settled.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

30. mMEFRR Z B

R2017F7 A - A& BUE A
EBERNITIRITREMHAR - FBIRITR
BROTREER RTRESRR
TEH-BERBEKZHAA(ER
ANEREEREBEINBEFE
I M AR £ %A AR 120,000,000
THERTRTERDZERBFE -
BEBERTRE FIWEEEME
REARAA(RERIER]) &Kt
wiESEBE AR A A KRG H
EJ) (B AKRRAR KPR KL HEE
ZEWBRARERBITRES S
MY 5 M (B A & B L 4R R E) W IR
BETRITEIOERA

BIEH R BERAFINEE - KB
HREERRITRETEMFEED
BE(2HE&m A ARS807,133,000
T ERMEBEERBTEELENEH
PRI B HEFRRE((HRESE
El) BAIN ZEWERLEEES
WHE UEEHRTRETHKE R
201712831 H » N & B A & ¥ &
THHREEERBRLESBEHNAR
#334,0007T A iR 17 45 8 (KT 7£24) &
B mE 4 A R #213,367,000 7T 9 17
& (M #E20) °

B ERAR012F 4 R B & F
TEF BMARAEETEHEMNB
TEERBRTREFMARZEE - R
20171 H1H  BERITRE N
& B A R # 539,082,000 7T °

ROREBEBEDEERHE 2 ERX
B Bt BEXZEF N X24%5
B BARREBRERBHRANEA
NEE - MEBBERBR FHEH
B R3% ENEBFERR A
REEN B ARE A FH E36%:T R -
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30. PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATIONS (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
reached a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement
A”) with the Bank. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement A,
the Group’s liabilities in relation to the Bank Claim was limited
to RMB235,000,000, subject to the fulfilment of the precedent
events. Based on the legal opinion from the PRC lawyers,
Settlement Agreement A was legally enforceable and binding as
at 31 December 2017, even though there were some precedent
events to be fulfilled, the directors of the Company considered that
the maximum exposure for the liabilities of the Group in relation to
the Bank Claim was RMB235,000,000 as at 31 December 2017.
The provision in relation to the Bank Claim as at 31 December
2017 was RMB235,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, as all precedent
events under Settlement Agreement A have been fulfilled and the
Group has settled the Bank Claim, no provision in relation to the
Bank Claim was made as at 31 December 2018. All the seized
inventories were released from the Intermediate Court during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

In December 2015, the Group received an enforcement notice (the
“Enforcement Notice”) from the Intermediate Court in relation to
another civil claim (the “Consultant Claim”).

Pursuant to the Consultant Claim, an individual (the “Claimant”)
alleged provision of consultancy services to the Borrower relating
to the Bank Loan pursuant to a consultancy agreement (the
“Consultancy Agreement”) made between the Claimant and the
Borrower in prior years. It was alleged that Shenzhen Zirui, Sun
Century Property and another defendant which is not connected
to the Group had been acting as guarantors in respect of payment
of consultancy fee under the Consultancy Agreement.

As the consultancy fee had not been paid by the Borrower, of
which was payable in 2012, the directors of the Company have
revisited the provisions in relation to the Consultant Claim in
prior years. The provision in relation to the Consultant Claim was
RMB114,761,000 as at 1 January 2017.

e M| RME

30. B FF wh 2 B s (&)

HE2017F12A31B IEEE A&
B Ed 4R 17 = A AN B % am ([ A0 BR 1
ZAD BEMBBEA ASBEA
MBRTREZEEREERRARE
235,000,000 © B 7B & 5% 5k = 18 #
ER -BERBRZMZZEZEZER &
BEREREAETEEFER  BNEH
EAR2017F12 831 8 7 7] & /% 8
FIAITRAENRD WAEEES
RA KB R2017F12 A31 8 5
BROTREAREZESBEARARK
235,000,0007T ° 420174128318 -
EEBRTREZCEBEAARK
235,000,000 7T, ©

H EZ2018F12A31B EEE - BB R
MBBEABE T BLRASED EE
BMEAEBEZHBRITRE RN
2018F 12 A31 B ML & 5k 4R 17 R (& &t
IRE - B E2018%F12H318 It F
B -FMEEEHZGFEEWT RE

Br % f

R2016F 128 AEEBGE S —ER
ERE(ERREDRKRI P EERZ
BHMITBRME( R RITRAE]) -

REBERE —2ALTUTREAD
BHEBREBERBEARERAEBESF
BETM BB (TR E ] E
RARBERITERE @ BEER
oM RINKRm KEHELHE
RBH—2EANEE Y EEENR
EAEBEEBBEEINXNERED.
H—BEEEERA

HRERABMRZITEMZ(ER
2012 X ) MARBEZTEEH
EHBEFEERREEH 2 BE -
R2017F1 A1 EEEBREZ
BB AR 114,761,000 7T °

ABBERERARAT 1 7 7

T \FEERE
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30. PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATIONS (Cont’d)

The provision for Consultant Claim is determined by the terms
of the Consultancy Agreement under which, daily interest rate
of 0.1% will be charged on the unpaid consultancy fee until the
consultancy fee is settled.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
reached a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement B”)
with the Claimant. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement B, the
Group’s liabilities in relation to the Consultant Claim was limited
to RMB129,603,000, subject to the fulflment of the precedent
events.

As all precedent events under Settlement Agreement B have been
fulfilled and the Group has settled the Consultant Claim as at 31
December 2017, no provision in relation to the Consultant Claim
was made as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. However, certain
inventories were still seized under the Enforcement Notice as these
inventories were under the process of release from the Intermediate
Court as at 31 December 2017. All the seized inventories were
released from the Intermediate Court as at 31 December 2018.

The movements of the provisions for litigations are shown as
follows:

30. # & &h 2 B s (&)

BERRERBEDREERGZE 2K
REE B REBBEHEER K
XNEREREBBRE0A%E B o

HE2017F12A31B IEEE A&
B B 2= B A 2R OFD R 1 % ([ 70 7 1
#BD -RBEMBEHEB A&EBH
HERMEREZABERRARK
129,603,0007C * B 78 5 55 R £ 18 &

HRMEHEBEBE NATA L REE
EEEREAEBE K2017F12A8
S1HABEBRE  HR2018F K&
2017F 12 A1 H M E L EM R (B 5
REE - A BRAETFER2017
F12A31 8 IE B HOEP 2 B2
WEEDMRERFKITEBNEHS
e M2018F12H31B FT B E &
HeGEBEH P R EBLEE -

LR A BB ERI R

Bank Consultant
Claim Claim Total
RITRE EEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 H 539,082 114,761 653,843
Charge to profit or loss B F NE =R
for the year - 14,842 14,842
Credit to profit or loss A F N IE &=
for the year (304,082) - (304,082)
Settled through deposit paid BEBEMEEEE = (84,603) (84,603)
Payment for the year F AN - (45,000) (45,000)
At 31 December 2017 M20174F 12 A31 H 235,000 = 235,000
Payment for the year F AN (235,000) - (235,000)

At 31 December 2018 M2018%F12H31H - - -

1 7 Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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31.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

%Avﬁﬁimﬁ

B.R/ITRHEMEE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Bank borrowings — secured RTEE-BAER 405,000 445,000
Other borrowings EffEE
— Secured -EBHRHE 193,252 172,547
— Unsecured - Em R 87,000 -
280,252 172,547
685,252 617,547
The maturity profile of bank borrowings is as follows: WITEEZIBHAGBROAT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Within one year —FRw 40,000 40,000
More than one year but not BB —FEETHBAEMRF
exceeding two years 40,000 40,000
More than two years but not BEMFEBETBBRSF
more than five years 130,000 140,000
Over five years HEU E 195,000 225,000
405,000 445,000
Less: Amounts due for settlement B — F AR E S AR E
within one year B EREAaR)
(shown under current liabilities) (40,000) (40,000)
Amounts due for settlement —F 1% B B E 8 RIE
after one year 365,000 405,000

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in RMB at the end of each reporting period.

REBRSHR AEBRTEEN
FEEEAAREE:-

AR RAE R A A
T \EEEEE
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SARBHAN S
31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) LIRITRE ﬂl?,‘fﬁ g (%E)

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted BITEEZEBEANRTZERNITH

interest rates) on the bank borrowings are as follows: ME)MT :

As at 31 December
M®12A831H

Effective interest rate per annum: 115% of People’s 115% of People’s
Variable-rate bank borrowings Bank of China benchmark rate Bank of China benchmark rate
(“PBOC benchmark rate”) (“PBOC benchmark rate”)
(equivalent to 5.64%) (equivalent to 5.64%)
ERFENE: ZHNERITEE FEARBITEERNX REARRITEERNEK
(TRITEERE]) Z2115% (TRITEERME])Z115%
(% 45.64%) (F15.64%)
The maturity profile of other borrowings is as follows: HthEEZHBHAGBRAOAT

As at 31 December
M12 8381 H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT

Within one year —F R 203,252 172,547
More than one year but not BB —FETBBEMRF
exceeding two years 77,000 -
280,252 172,547
Less: Amounts due for settlement B — F A E EBE R RE
within one year (203,252) (172,547)
Amounts due for settlement — F & 2 BiE &9 IE
after one year 77,000 -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other borrowings are RERMERR XREBHMBETHE
denominated in RMB at the end of each reporting period. EMEEAENAARBGE-

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) . WITR H A8 & (&)
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted HifEEZEEREMKX(TFFERREH
interest rates) on the other borrowings are as follows: FE) )R -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
Effective interest rate per annum: BB FE R X
Fixed-rate other borrowings FEHMEHEMEE 6.00%-
12.00% 12.00%
At the end of each reporting period, the Group has pledged the RERETHKR RAEERITEE
following assets as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings: MBI AREBEENT -

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T

Investment properties (note 15) &Y (K E15) 1,714,200 1,724,900
Pledged bank deposits (note 24) B 3 4R 77 17 R (M 5£24) 6 6
1,714,206 1,724,906
At the end of each reporting period, the Group has pledged the REHREHAR AEAEEHEMEE
following assets as securities for the Group’s other borrowings: MEFNAREBEENT :

As at 31 December
M12831H
2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR

Inventories (note 20) 75 (M 3E£20) 172,139 178,138

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 32. KR E% TEEM I A

INSTRUMENTS

2016 Convertible Bond 2016 F AR ESH

On 8 December 2016, the Company issued a convertible MR2016F 12 A8H * AR A M AR A
bond (“2016 Convertible Bond”) with a principal amount of FTERREBEFARARBITAESE
HK$570,000,000 (equivalent to RMB505,077,000 at the issuance /570,000,000 T (R 2 17 B HiAB &2
date) to Fame Select Limited, the major shareholder of the A R ¥ 505,077,000 7T ) &) 7] 2 % &
Company to set off the balance of the loan from immediate holding HF([2016F AT MRESF]) - NEBEHR
company and the related accrued interest due to Fame Select R A Al E‘JE REOIGFARRESE
Limited on a dollar-for-dollar basis against the total subscription NWEREE HHEHENBEAR
price payable by Fame Select Limited in respect of the subscription N E’J REEEZRAAERKEE
of the 2016 Convertible Bond. HEEEHNE -

e aeras 181
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

2016 Convertible Bond (Cont’d)

The original maturity date of the 2016 Convertible Bond is 7
December 2018 (“2016 CB Maturity Date”) which is 2 years
from the date of issue of the 2016 Convertible Bond. The 2016
Convertible Bond is not interest bearing and matures on 2016
CB Maturity Date at the principal amount. The 2016 Convertible
Bond is convertible into shares of the Company at any time after
the issuance up to the close of business on the 2016 CB Maturity
Date at the conversion price of HK$0.26 per share, subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments (“2016 CB Conversion Option”). The
initial number of ordinary shares of the Company issuable upon
conversion is 2,192,307,692 shares, which represent 59.34% of
the total number of ordinary shares of the Company issued and
outstanding as of the issue date of the 2016 Convertible Bond as
enlarged by the conversion of the entire 2016 Convertible Bond.

The Company is entitled to an option to early redeem at any time
before 2016 CB Maturity Date the whole or part of the principal
outstanding amount of the 2016 Convertible Bond at principal
amount.

The 2016 Convertible Bond contains a debt component and
derivative component. The 2016 CB Conversion Option is classified
as a derivative financial liability as it will be settled other than by
an exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments on the basis that the 2016
Convertible Bond is denominated in HK$, a foreign currency of
the Company.

The fair value of the 2016 Convertible Bond was approximately
HK$568,761,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB503,979,000)
on the initial recognition date. On initial recognition, the debt
component was recognised at fair value, calculated based on
the present value of the principal amount plus accrued coupon
interest over the expected life of the 2016 Convertible Bond. In
subsequent periods, the debt component is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rate of the debt component is 14.64% per annum. The derivative
component is measured at fair values at the date of issue and
in subsequent periods with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

2016 Convertible Bond (Cont’d)

On 8 May 2018, the Company and Fame Select Limited entered
into an amendment agreement (the “Amendment Agreement”)
to extend the 2016 CB Maturity Date to 7 December 2020. The
Amendment Agreement was passed by the ordinary resolution
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 28
September 2018.

Due to the extension of the 2016 CB Maturity Date, the
carrying amount of the debt component has been reduced from
approximately HK$553,768,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB486,929,000) to approximately HK$469,683,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB412,993,000) on 28 September 2018 (i.e.
date of extension) based on the present value of the principal
amount plus accrued coupon interest over the expected life
of the 2016 Convertible Bond after extension of maturity date.
The change in fair value of debt component of approximately
HK$84,085,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB73,936,000) is
recognised in profit or loss. The effective interest rate of the debt
component is 8.01% per annum after extension.

On 8 November 2018, the Company received the Conversion
Notice from Fame Select Limited in respect of the exercise in part
of the subscription rights attached to the 2016 Convertible Bond to
convert an aggregate of HK$168,000,000 of the principal amount
of the 2016 Convertible Bond into 646,153,846 ordinary shares
(note 33) at the conversion price of HK$0.26 per share.

Due to the conversion of partial 2016 Convertible Bond, the
carrying amount of the debt component has been reduced from
approximately HK$502,867,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB444,204,000) to approximately HK$334,867,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB295,803,000) and the carrying amount
of the derivative financial instruments have been reduced from
approximately HK$1,558,596,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,376,770,000) to approximately HK$1,099,220,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB970,985,000) on 8 November
2018 (i.e. date of partial conversion) based on the present value
of the principal amount plus accrued coupon interest over the
expected life of the remaining 2016 Convertible Bond after the
conversion of Partial 2016 Convertible Bond. The change in carrying
amount of the debt component of HK$168,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB148,401,000) and of the derivative financial
instruments of approximately HK$459,376,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB405,785,000) are transferred to the equity.

e M| RME

R.UBERES TTESRMIA

(&)

2016 F 7] 2 i% & % (&)
MN2018F588H AR A EBZEHR
RARIRI B8] HE(ETHE] -
L‘Hﬁ2016¢7%§ﬁxﬁ%‘%xﬂﬁﬁEILE
F2020F12A7H - BRI & E R
201849 H28H BT v AR Al KR E
BRAE FAERRAZEEH -

MR2016F A MR EHFF BHEER

EEBI» 25K MAEMK2018F9 A
28E|(EHLE“*EI)BMU553768OOO
B IT(HE R4 A R #486,929,0007T)
Bl B & #9469,683,000% T (#H & B
4 AN R #412,093,0007T) - It J5 E R
FHEEREB2016FEAHBKES 2
AeBERENEBEHRFHEELEZ
ZEHNE - -BHEHI2ZAREEZH
#784,085,0007%8 L (& RN 4 A R &
73,936,000 ) NIE = AR - & &
BEBEXD2ERFF X E8.01% -

MR2018F11 A8H AR AR EZEER
MR~ &) Y B BE 1T 2 2016 4F 7] 32 iR &
Mmoo RBEZEBBN
LA 8% 4% K § %8 # 51 168,000,0007% 7T
220164 7] 2 j% & %5 /646,153,846
f% E@BAR(H FE33) - M E AT R
0.2678 JT °

HREBIED2016F Al R ES &
BRI D 2 REBER2018F 11 A8H
(BN 8 ¥ A 8) B 49502,867,000
B IT(HE R4 A R#444,204,0007T)
Bl B = #9334,867,0007 7T (18 & R 49
A R #205,803,0007T) * BT E &
BT A2 REE A A 491,558,596,000
BT (i E R4 AR ®1,376,770,000
7C) Hll 3B & 491,099,220,0007 7T (18 &
R # A R #970,985,0007T) + It Ty H
B #0285 2016 4F 7] L (& 5 1 &
TZ2016F AR EHR 2 A BB
ENEEHFHEELAZEZE@MAE -
& 7% 26 o Bk ™ & 2 # &) 168,000,000
(& RN & A R #148,401,000
TIERTAESRIEEEEZEHH
459,376,000 TT(H B RN O A R &
405,785,000 C) E 1 = 2% ©
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

18

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

2016 Convertible Bond (Cont’d)

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments of 2016
Convertible Bond as at 28 September 2018, 8 November 2018,
31 December 2018 and 2017 are determined by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, an independent and professionally qualified
valuer not connected to the Group, based on the Binomial Option
Pricing Model (the “Binomial Model”).

2018 Convertible Bond

On 28 August 2018, the Company issued a convertible bond (2018
Convertible Bond”) with a principal amount of HK$297,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB257,475,000 at the issuance
date) to Star Hope and Better Linkage for the acquisition of the
entire equity interest of Star Admiral and shareholder’s loan owed
by Star Admiral (note 18).

The maturity date of the 2018 Convertible Bond is 28 August
2020 (“2018 CB Maturity Date”) which is 2 years from the date of
issue of the 2018 Convertible Bond. The 2018 Convertible Bond
is not interest bearing and matures on 2018 CB Maturity Date at
the principal amount. The 2018 Convertible Bond is convertible
into shares of the Company at any time after the issuance up
to the close of business on the 2018 CB Maturity Date at the
conversion price of HK$0.90 per share, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments (“2018 CB Conversion Option”). The initial number
of ordinary shares of the Company issuable upon conversion is
329,999,999 shares, which represent 5.20% of the total number
of ordinary shares of the Company issued and outstanding as of
the issue date of the 2018 Convertible Bond as enlarged by the
conversion of the entire 2018 Convertible Bond.

The Company is entitled to an option to early redeem at any time
before 2018 CB Maturity Date the whole or part of the principal
outstanding amount of the 2018 Convertible Bond at principal
amount.

The 2018 Convertible Bond contains a debt component and
derivative component. The 2018 CB Conversion Option is classified
as a derivative financial liability as it will be settled other than by
an exchange of a fixed amount of cash for fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments on the basis that the 2018
Convertible Bond is denominated in HK$, a foreign currency of
the Company.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 2. MEKRES TTEEMIA
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) (#&)
2018 Convertible Bond (Cont’d) 2018 F A R & % (&)

The fair value of the 2018 Convertible Bond is approximately

2018 F AT M EH RV ER B

HK$471,123,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB408,426,000) Z AR EH /471,123,000 7T (HH E
on the initial recognition date. On initial recognition, the debt 4 A R ¥ 408,426,0007T) ° A ¥ 1A
component was recognised at fair value, calculated based on BRE HEKIL»ELAALBER -

the present value of the principal amount plus accrued coupon
interest over the expected life of the 2018 Convertible Bond. In
subsequent periods, the debt component is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rate of the debt component is 9.86% per annum. The derivative
component is measured at fair values at the issuance date and
in subsequent periods with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments of 2018
Convertible Bond as at 28 August 2018 and 31 December 2018 are
determined by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
and professionally qualified valuer not connected to the Group,

SFTEEER0IBFAMRKRES 2R
CHEENEBEHREHEELEZE
EAE - RERIARE EHBLUNE
B A 2 K f&2 # 8H K AN %I BR o B 7 B
DZEBRFNEEIL - FTEBH
%E%% HHEIRBER MR 2 AR B
/LTE FE RN IE SR -

20188 H28H Kk2018%F12H31H -
2018F A MMBEEFZ2ITESRH T A
ZAARETH —HMHEAEEHRER

AN

BrBIYUREXERERMGLEM SR

based on the Binomial Model. FHERARBE _IHEAEREE -
The inputs used for the calculation of fair values of the derivative SETESERMIAEZARBERFER
financial instruments are as follows: ZEASENT

2016 Convertible Bond 2016 F AT A R 1B F

8 November
2018 (date 28 September

31 December of partial 2018 (date of 31 December

2018 conversion) extension) 2017

2018F 2018%11HA8H 2018 9728H 2017

12A818 (BHEHRBH) (E=EBH) 12R31R

Share price % (8 HK$1.230 Bt HK$0.920 87T  HKS$1.340 B HK$0.465 % 7t

Conversion price ERE HK$0.260 Bt  HK$0.260 7T HK$0.260 BT HK$0.260 /& 1T

Expected volatility (Note (a)) 78 8% 18 (Mt 35 () 69.172% 66.615% 65.623% 71.403%

Expected option life R 1.94 Years & 2.08 Years 2.19 Years £ 0.94 Year £
Expected dividend yield THRE (M FDb)

(Note (b)) Zero B Zero B Zero B Zero T

Risk-free rate (Note (c)) R B & (M5 (o) 2.175% 2.703% 2.676% 1.519%

AKEREEZERBRAE
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

18

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
2018 Convertible Bond

Share price fi% (&

Conversion price B (E

Expected volatility (Note (a)) 8 B % 12 (Bt 5% (a)

Expected option life 8 5 2R F A

Expected dividend yield (Note (b)) ﬁ Hﬁ B B 2 (P 3E (o)

Risk-free rate (Note (c)) *'J < (P 3£ (c))
Notes:

(@) The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over a period commensurate with the remaining term.

(b)  The expected dividend yield was estimated with reference to the historical
dividend payment record and the expected dividend payment in the next two
years of the Company.

(c) Risk-free rate is estimated based on the yield of Hong Kong Dollar Swap Curve
with a similar remaining tenure.
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(4&)
2018 FE A2 R 18 3

28 August
31 December 2018 (date of

2018 issuance)
20184 201848 A28H
12A31H (B17BH)

HK$1.230 &t HK$1.350 /& 7T
HK$0.90 % 7T HK$0.90 % 7T

66.825% 67.520%
1.66 Years 2 Years F
Zero T Zero &
2.170% 2.508%

TEHRIETIERA AR A EE RSB T F 4
BRI EZE LR IEEE -

EHR S T8 E KD A E £ KB R
I 82 8 F o R PR 4F 2 T8 M0 AR O 4 74 fh
Bt -

ERBRANXDTREFEBEUKTFEFHRZ
A TTiE B AR 2 M aR KA At o
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 32. F R RE% T4 @M T A

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) (#8)
The movements of the debt component of convertible bonds and
derivative financial instruments are shown as follows:

%ﬁ‘ﬁﬂi%‘?ﬁﬂ‘kj
,E:Z """"" EB SR

PRTE SR T

Derivative
Debt financial
component instruments
BEHS MELWMIA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETT
2016 Convertible Bond 2016 F 7 #2 i}t & %
At 1 January 2017 n2017F1A1H 365,286 129,675 494,961
Charge to profit or loss MR ER - 329,855 329,855
Exchange difference 0 5 =% (26,359) (19,592) (45,951)
Effective interest expenses (note 8) BN EHL(KES) 72,180 = 72,180
At 31 December 2017 MW2017F 12 A31 H 411,107 439,938 851,045
(Credit) charge to profit or loss, (&t A) $|] Bigz B
including adjustment on extension REZAEREER
recognised in profit or loss 2 (73,936) 1,582,565 1,508,629
Exchange difference &5 E% 24,159 147,618 171,777
Effective interest expenses (note 8) & B F B i X (Ff 7+ 8) 51,663 - 51,663
At 28 September 2018 R 201849 A28 H
(date of extension) (E& HH) 412,993 2,170,121 2,583,114
Credit to profit or loss SFAER - (807,286) (807,286)
Exchange difference & 5 =% 1,875 13,935 15,810
Effective interest expenses B A EH (K sEs)
(note 8) 29,336 — 29,336
Partial conversion to shares FARH BB AR M
during the year (148,401) (405,785) (554,186)
At 8 November 2018 20184 11 A8 H
(date of partial conversion) (FpneEimE A 295,803 970,985 1,266,788
Charge to profit or loss MR B - 443,958 443,958
Exchange difference fEH =% (2,416) (10,518) (12,934)
Effective interest expenses (note 8) & KX F 2 5 & (Kt 5 8) 4,121 = 4,121
At 31 December 2018 R20184%12A31H 297,508 1,404,425 1,701,933
2018 Convertible Bond 2018F AR ESH
At 28 August 2018 1201848 A28 H
(date of issuance) (%7EH) 206,611 201,815 408,426
Credit to profit or loss STAER - (29,732 (29,732)
Exchange difference fEHZ% 2,147 2,374 4,521
Effective interest expenses (note 8) BN AR (KES) 8,854 = 8,854
At 31 December 2018 ®2018F 12831 H 217,612 174,457 392,069
Total 4=t
At 31 December 2018 R20185% 12831 H 515,120 1,578,882 2,094,002
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 411,107 439,938 851,045

AT 187
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. Ik &
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREECIETR E@
Number of shares Share capital
RHBEE ] A
2018 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERL TEL
Authorised EE
At beginning and end of year RENREXR 50,000,000,000  50,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid BETRAR
At beginning of year REA 6,020,818,900 6,009,258,900 602,082 600,926
Allotment of shares under 2016F AT AR ES
the conversion of 2016 EERmEERHD
Convertible Bond 646,153,846 - 64,615 -
Exercise of share options THEBRE - 11,560,000 - 1,156
At end of year REXK 6,666,972,746 6,020,818,900 666,697 602,082

As at 31 December
K128 31 H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT

RMB equivalent ARB S 582,811 525,734
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company received #H Z=2018%F12A31H It £ E ' &
the conversion notice from Fame Select Limited in respect of the NRANEZBERBRADG WE R TE
exercise in part of the subscription rights attached to the 2016 2016 F A MMMEHFM T 2 B o RE
Convertible Bond to convert an aggregate of HK$168,000,000 BERBA ANEIRAS EEG
of the principal amount of the 2016 Convertible Bond into 168,000,000% JT 2 20164 7] # fx &
646,153,846 ordinary shares. The ordinary shares were issued % £5646,153,846% L @ A% - 2 &
on 8 November 2018 to Fame Select Limited. The new shares AR P 20184F 11 A8H & 17 F & &
rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects. ERAR - ZEFROEMBEFA

HRERPEERS M -

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2007 Scheme”)
on 31 January 2007.

The purpose of the 2007 Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
share options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or its
associated companies (as defined under the 2007 Scheme). The
2007 Scheme was adopted on 31 January 2007 and terminated
on 2 June 2016.

Under the 2007 Scheme, the board of directors may, at its
discretion, offer directors of the Company (including Executive
and Non-executive Directors), executives, officers, employees or
certain other eligible participants, share options to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

The exercise price in relation to each share option was determined
by the board of directors at its absolute discretion and was not
less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (ii) the average of
the official closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of offer of share options. Each of the grantees was
required to pay HK$10 as consideration for the grant of share
options in accordance with the 2007 Scheme. The offer of a grant
of share options must be accepted within 60 days from the date
of the offer. All share options are fully vested as at 31 December
2016.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, were
subject to approval in advance by the Independent Non-executive
Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of in aggregate
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue (based on the date of
offer) and an aggregate value of HK$5 million (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of each offer), within
any 12-month period, were subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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The 2007 Scheme was terminated on 2 June 2016 and no further
options can be granted under the 2007 Scheme. However,
the share options granted under the 2007 Scheme prior to its
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the 2007 Scheme.

As at 31 December 2018, 92,400,187 (31 December 2017:
95,958,336) share options are outstanding under 2007 Scheme,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share option was
granted, exercised or cancelled and 3,558,149 share options have
been lapsed in accordance with the terms of the 2007 Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option was
granted while 11,560,000, 444,425 and 6,383,318 share options
have been exercised, cancelled and lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the 2007 Scheme, respectively.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2016
Scheme”) on 2 June 2016.

The purpose of the 2016 Scheme is to replace the 2007 Scheme
and to continue to enable the Company to grant share options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries and/or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest. The 2016 Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2016.

Under the 2016 Scheme, the board of directors may, at its
discretion, offer directors of the Company (including Executive
and Non-executive Directors), executives, officers, employees or
certain other eligible participants, share options to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion
and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of offer of share options. Each of the grantees is required
to pay HK$1 as a consideration for the acceptance of the grant
of share options in accordance with the 2016 Scheme. The offer
of share options must be accepted within 21 days from the date
of the offer.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

250,500,000 share options have been granted under the 2016
Scheme since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2018,
232,500,000 (31 December 2017: 250,500,000) share options
are outstanding under the 2016 Scheme. The maximum number
of shares of the Company available for issue upon exercise of all
share options which may be granted under the 2016 Scheme is
232,500,000, representing approximately 3.49% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the end of the reporting period. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and which may fall to
be issued upon the exercise of share options to be granted under
the 2016 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share option
in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular
by the Company and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the Independent Non-executive
Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of in aggregate
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue (based on the date of
offer) and an aggregate value of HK$5 million (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of each offer), in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the offer of such
grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The following tables disclose details of the share options held
by directors, employees and other eligible participants under the
2007 Scheme and 2016 Scheme and movements in such holdings
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017:

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed at the end
of each reporting period are as follows, whereby all options
are settled by physical delivery of shares:

e M| RME

4. B ES 8 ()

B20164F B IR T 8 IR A LA R IE E
B % H 250,500,000 17 8 A% #E » & Ui
MR2018F12 A31H @ R E20164F i
A% 1 5t 21 232,500,000 15 (2017 % 12 A
31 B : 250,500,000 17 ) B8 A% # 15 & 17
o A 17 1B 352016 £ 5t 2] 7] & %
HemEBREMAZETZES RN
A A B 7 B 4&232,500,0000% ¢ 48
ERHEBMARARAEEITRDZ
#498.49% ° S EBRARE T HHAIF
fal + = 18 A 83 [ & 17 £ 1R #2016 4F
a1 8l & AN A &) E A K fib B8 % 4 A &
MEELCEREERBEITE: F
HREMATEZBRE ME BT R
AR FTEITZARB KD EE:
TEEARHBEBARRBE BITR
MZ1% o E#E—FRBBBIL1%
REZEREAEBRAQATIE —H
BRHERBERERAS ERESRELE-

AMARRES E2ETRABSE
ERRIABEIEMBEALRD
BRE ERNGHEILFATESZ
ERME- M R+ -_EAMEE
ERRRLANEEZA)AAR
AZEITEMRABIFATEST K
TRARFZHEALIREZEAE
BRIEBBARRAEHITRGAE0.1%
(A B 8% & %) & #2 {55,000,000
BTUASELBHARARN 2K
ME/EE) EHARATE -7
BHERBRRAE ERGRRALE -

TR EE £2018F K2017FE 12 A
31 8 I F E 1B #2007 F 5t 2l &2 2016
FHEEET BEERHEMAERZR
HERB EREUNEZERF Z
BE)FF:

@ NERERRFEZERTZHK
RN A (IR I PR A B AR DA AR
NEDRINTAEMBAT

AEREBZRAER DA 1 91

T \FEERE



(a)

o
e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -~ =~ . - - =~ . . -
AN = = = .. A . . < B
RE MBI RMEE S o
34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d) 34. BB R RE GBI ()
(Cont’d) @ (#&)
2018 2018 &
Number of share options
BREYR
Reclassification ~ Cancelled Lapsed Exercise
At during during during At Date price per
Grantees 1.1.2018 2018 2018 2018 31.12.2018 of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period share
(Note (i) (Note (ii))  (Note (iii)) HKS
R2018% 2018% 2018F 18  H2018% gk
ERA 1818 ENSE  AmEHE# REAR 12A%A  HEEH BRAR RS fifE
(WEEG) (R (& (i) ER
Directors of the
Company
ERAES
Mr. Lo Kai Bong 8,000,000 - - - 8000000  49.2017 NATER 4.9.2017 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
ERALE 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000  4.9.2017 4.9.2017 t0 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
Mr. Manuel Assis Da 600,000 - - - 600,000  4.9.2017 NATEA 4.9.2017 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
Silva 900,000 - - - 900,000  4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 to 3.9.2027 0.455
Manuel Assis Da Silva 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 492017 4.9.2017 t0 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
bk
43,000,000 - - - 43,000,000
Other employees 462,559 - - - 462,559 12122013  12.12.201310 12122013 13.12.2013t0 12.12.2023  0.344
of the Group 2,700,000 (600,000) - - 2100000 492017 NATER 4.9.2017 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
rEEHBES 4,050,000 (900,000) - - 3,150,000  4.9.2017 4.9.2017t0 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 to0 3.9.2027 0.455
6,750,000 (1,500,000) - - 5250000 492017 4.9.2017t0 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 to 3.9.2027 0.455
13,962,559 (3,000,000) - - 10,962,559
Consultants of 3,558,149 - - (3,558,149) - 1322008 13.2.2008to 12.8.2008  13.8.2008 to 12.2.2018 3.822
the Group 91,937,628 - - - 01,937,628 12122013 12.12.2013t0 12122013 13.122013t0 12.12.2023  0.344
AEEER 150,000,000 - (15,000,000 - 135000000 11.4.2017 NAFER 11.1.2017 t0 10.1.2027 0.202
16,500,000 - - - 16500000 19.4.2017 NATER 19.4.2017 to 18.4.2027 0.700
4,100,000 - - - 4100000 1942017 NATER 19.4.2017 to 18.4.2027 0.700
6,150,000 - - - 6,150,000 19.4.2017 19.4.2017t0 18.4.2018  19.4.2018 to 18.4.2027 0.700
10,250,000 - - - 10,250,000  19.4.2017 19.4.2017t0 18.4.2019  19.4.2019 o 18.4.2027 0.700
1,400,000 600,000 (600,000) - 1400000 492017 NATER 4.9.2017 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
2,100,000 900,000 (900,000) - 2,100,000 492017 4.9.2017t0 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 to 3.9.2027 0.455
3,500,000 1,500,000 (1,500,000) - 3500000 492017 4.9.2017t0 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 to 3.9.2027 0.455
289,495,777 3,000,000  (18,000,000) (3,558,149) 270,937,628
346,458,336 - (18,000,000) (3,558,149) 324,900,187
Exercisable 279,258,336 284,400,187
{7
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

(@)

(Cont’d)

2017

Grantees

ESIN

At
1.1.2017

Ro017&
1R18

Number of share options

Granted  Exercised  Cancelled
during during during
2017 2017 2017
(Note (i)
174 2017¢

RER i

Lapsed
during
2017
(Note (i)
N17E

At
31.12.2017
(Note i)
o017

(i)

4. BRES B (&

(@)

Date
of grant

Bt AH

e B RRME

(&)

2017 &

Vesting period

)

Exercisable period

AT

Exercise
price per

HKS
g
%R
BT

Directors of
the Company
ARAES
Mr. Lo Kai Bong - 8,000,000 - - - 8000000 492017 NAZREA 4.9.2017 10 3.9.2027 0.485
ERALE - 12,000,000 - - - 12000000 492017 4.9.2017t03.9.2018 49.2018t03.9.2027 0.455
- 20,000,000 - - - 20000000 492017 4.9.2017t03.9.2019 49.2019t03.9.2027 0.485
Mr. Manue! - 600,000 - - - 600,000 492017 NATEH 4.9.2017 10 3.9.2027 0.455
Assis Da Siva - 900,000 - - - 900,000 492017 49.2017t03.9.2018 49.2018t03.9.2027 0.455
Manuel Assis - 1,500,000 - - - 1500000 492017 4.9.20171t03.9.2019 49.2019t03.9.2027 0.485
Da Siva’t &
- 43,000,000 - - - 43,000,000
Other 596,485 - - - (596,485) - 15652007 15.5.2007t014.11.2007  15.11.2007to 14.5.2017 4134
employees 444,425 - - (444425 - - 10102007 10.10.2007 t0 9.4.2008  10.4.2008 t0 9.10.2017 6.728
of the Group 462,559 = = = = 462,559 12.12.2013  12.12.2013t012.12.2013 1312201310 12.12.2023  0.344
rEEAMES - 2,700,000 - - - 2700000 492017 NATEH 49.2017t03.9.2027 0.485
- 4,050,000 - - - 4050000 492017 4.9.2017t03.9.2018 49.2018t03.9.2027 0.455
- 6,750,000 - - - 6750000 492017 4.9.2017t03.9.2019 49201910 3.9.2027 0.455
1,508,469 13,500,000 - (444425)  (596,485) 13,962,559
Consultants 5,786,833 - - - (5,786,833) - 15652007 15.5.2007t014.11.2007  15.11.2007to 14.5.2017  4.134
of the Group 3,558,149 - - - - 3558149 1322008 132200810 12.8.2008  13.8.2008t0 12.2.2018 3822
AEEER 103,497,628 - (11,560,000) - - 91,937,628 12 122013 12.12.2013t012.122013  13.12.20131012.12.2023  0.344
- 150,000,000 - - - 150,000,000 11.1.2017 NATEH 11.1.2017 to0 10.1.2027 0.202
- 16,500,000 - - - 16500000 194.2017 NATER 19.4.2017 to 18.4.2007 0.700
- 4,100,000 - - - 4100000 1942017 NATER 19.4.2017 to 18.4.2027 0.700
- 6,150,000 - - - 6150000 1942017 194201710 184.2018  19.4.2018t0 18.4.2027 0.700
- 10,250,000 - - - 10250000 1942017 19.4.2017t0184.2019  19.4.201910 18.4.2027 0.700
- 1,400,000 - - - 1400000 492017 NATER 492017 t03.9.2027 0.455
- 2,100,000 - - - 2100000 492017 4.9.2017t03.9.2018 49.2018t03.9.2027 0.485
- 3,500,000 - - - 3500000 492017 49.20171039.2019 49201910 3.9.2027 0.485
112,842,610 194,000,000  (11,560,000) - (5,786,833) 289,495,777
114,346,079 250,500,000 (11,560,000) (444,425 (6,383,318) 346,458,336
Exercisable 114,346,079 279,268,336
7R
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)
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(@) (Cont’d)

Notes:
(i) The cancellation of the share options is due to resignation of consultants.

(i) The lapse of the share options is due to the expiry of the exercisable
period.

(i) The number of share option and the corresponding exercise price have
been adjusted due to the issue of rights share during the year 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share option was
granted, exercised or lapsed and 18,000,000 share options have
been cancelled in accordance with the terms of the 2016 Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, share options were
granted on 11 January 2017 (“January Batch”), 19 April 2017
(“April Batch”) and 4 September 2017 (“September Batch”) and
no share option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the 2016 Scheme.

The fair values of the share options granted on those dates
are HK$13,523,000, HK$12,192,000 and HK$14,343,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB11,697,000, RMB10,546,000
and RMB12,407,000), respectively.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Model. The
inputs of model were as follows:

—A#tR

January April
Batch Batch Batch

34. 5 R S8 ()

(@) (#&)
B 3
) HEWRETHDEBEEEE -

(i) ZEBEBRERBRDEATESRE
e

(i) EREHB RHEETEERH2016
FRAEBRBROMETHE -

R E E22018F12A31H It FE - #
4 B8 A% B AR B 2016 F & 8l 2 1§ ;UE
BH -~ 17 3 B & % 118,000,000
DR A A o

HE2017F12A31B IEEE - B
B RIE2016F 51 & 2 1§ 7 H Bl R
2017F1 A11 B — A#t k] - 2017
F4H8198 (WM A #t )k 1) X201749
A48 A# k) ®E - m#EEE
BREEATE B R

RZEBHMBEEZ2BEREZAAE
2 Bl A13,523,0005 7T~ 12,192,000
B T }14,343,0008 T( B & R
4 AN B #11,697,000C A R &
10,546,0007T & A R #12,407,0007T) °

AARENDER-_BEARYE %
S|

BRE 2@ ABRBHOT :
September

/A #R hA# IR

Share price & & HK$0.197 78 7t HK$0.700 #& 7t HK$0.455 78 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.202 78 7t HK$0.700 #& 7t HK$0.455 7 7T
Expected volatility 8 Hi % 18 47.12% 46.65% 45.43%
Expected option life e HY HA 4 4 53 10 years F 10 years F 10 years 4F
Risk-free rate = 2 B Al 1.649% 1.349% 1.382%
Expected dividend yield TEHA AR Bz & 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised standard
deviations of the continuously compounded rates of return of the
share price of the Company and comparable companies with
similar business nature of the Company as of the valuation date.
The fair value calculated for share options is inherently subjective
due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the model
utilised.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)
The Group recognised the share-based compensation
benefits of approximately RMB7,443,000 (2017: approximately
RMB24,432,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018 in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities granted in
connection with the mortgage loans entered into by buyers of
the Group’s properties as follows:

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to buyers

RENTEREBRE
) $R 17 4 ft 42 1R

e B RRME

34. BREST 8 (E)
H E2018F12A31B IEFE ' A&
B 34RO R U
mAREMRFHERT O ARYT?,443,000
JL(20174 : 49 A R #24,432,0007T) °

3B.FAEE
MR2018F K2017F12/831H & &
B EBRAEEYMEE T LAE
BEXRMBELINRERESEE W
HTH|RITRERBERAT ¢

2018
RMB’000

2017
RMB’000
AR TT

AR® TR

990 3,600

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees contract, if there are any
defaults on the mortgages, the Group is liable to the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalty payable by the defaulting buyers to banks. The
Group is then entitled to take over the legal title and possession
of the related properties. The guarantees shall be released upon
the issue of the relevant buyer’s property ownership certificate
and in the custody of the banks.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not significant
and is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
directors of the Company consider that no provision should be
recognised at the end of each reporting period as the potential
cash outflow related to the guarantee is not probable.

Bank balances of approximately RMB297,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately RMB297,000) have been pledged with the banks
as guarantee deposits for the mortgage loan facilities granted by
the banks to buyers of the Group’s properties (note 24).

REERGODZKEF HMERBHR
BERNBR AEBEEAREEEEN
ETRBRBRIOTZARBEERBASE
REFMERTER - AEBZREA
REBEHBODENEIEXZRELEMAE
B-HBAETNEEMBEREERER
HLPHRTRERZFERETR
% o

ERERNRREHEBRBMZOAEL R
BEA Rt ER &AM ®KE
R-ARAEETRR BHRERSTHA
REELEBEERSAL RBARSE

iR 17 # &% 9 A R 297,000t (2017
F12 8318 : & AR #297,0007T) B
B FRIT EARITRAEAERY
EETRECEBERBEZRE
& (M 5E24) »
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36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

36. & & ﬁﬁﬁ#
AEMESEEA
R2018FE12 A31H » & A K4 & &
METAREMNMZzREHEERELR

BN
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
Within one year 1F RN 3,398 3,740
In the second to fifth year inclusive FOFRFESF(SFESF) 1,572 1,400
4,970 5,140

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its offices and staff quarters. Leases are typically negotiated
for three years and do not include contingent rentals.

The Group as lessor

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted
with lessees for the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

REHEFRRBEAEEIERTFE
AETEEENNES - HEBST
BE=ZFH BETEFEAAEL-

FEMERHAA
REBREHR AEEEAHEAF
ARBIAARELEHERKRKZE

HEMRSFTLT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T T ARE T T

Within one year 1F R 34,730 39,817
In the second to fifth year inclusive FO2OFEFS5F(FFESF) 91,409 110,408
Over five years 5% A E 43,466 55,503
169,605 205,728

The investment properties rented during the year have committed
tenants for terms ranging from 1 to 20 years (2017: 1 to 20 years).
In addition to the minimum lease payments, the Group is entitled
to receive contingent rent based on a fixed percentage of turnover
of the tenants as stated in the relevant rental agreements, the
percentage is ranging from 2% to 12%, for both years.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has following material commitments in respect of the
properties under development which are not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as follows:

37. EXREE

AEBERBERIVERBE ZARARE
EUMBHRRABBZERAENT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETR

Contracted but not provided for B 5] 418 K B8

80,312 113,109

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As stated in note 22, during the current year, the Group is engaged
in the travel related businesses by providing hotel accommodation,
transportation and entertainment to external individual customers
(“Ultimate Customers”). Substantially all of this business is deriving
from Ultimate Customers referred to the Group by its controlling
shareholder and/or its controlled entities, and these Ultimate
Customers were also customers of the controlling shareholder
and/or its controlled entities in their other businesses. Also, the
controlled entities are the major supplier of the underlying services
(such as provision of hotel rooms, cars and similar products),
as well as the settlement agent for certain Ultimate Customers.
Therefore, the Group’s trade receivables and trade payables were
net settled with the controlling shareholder and/or its controlled
entities on a regular basis.

Apart from details of the balances with related parties disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and other details
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group also entered into the following significant transactions with
related parties during both years:

3. HEELFTHE

MM E22M T RAFEAR K&
BaBRBRENEFIREER]D
REBEERE KBRREEFIK
BHBAXBEE WEBRBANHD
TR A S B A B R &Sk H
ERAASEEEN ZKERERL M
ZERBREPNAA/AEEZRRE
R/REZEHERBZEMEB2E
Boltdh ZEXEFERITANEH
RE(MREBEEEHE  AEREMU
ERZIEZHERUALE TRAR
Fz#BERE -Hittr "EBEZRHK
BR AR N AT BR R B B AR AR R &

HEZEFERIAFRSS -

BRESMBMRNRAEEZ L
BRHZERFBARRES B R

REMM TR ENE MBI

jiN

MIEFEEANEE N ERESETT

TIHEAR S :

AEREBZRAER DA
—T-N\FFEEHRE
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38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)
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Name of related parties

BELER

Fame Select Limited

HERARRA

Sun City Gaming Promotion

KGR A8 ¥ N

Star Hope
EZ

Hoi An South Development Ltd
(“HASD”)
(THASDJ)

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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(i

(i

(ii)

Nature of transactions 2018
REHEE RMB’000
AR® T

Effective interest expense on 85,120
2016 Convertible Bond

2016 F AT MR EH 2 B R
M ER X

Travel agency services income 8,225

R %% X 12 AR 7 e A

Purchase of hotel 476,539
accommodation products

KBS X B E R

Purchase of travel related 71
services

TR ik 1% A8 A AR 75

Management service expenses 2,473

B IR AR 75 B 2

Effective interest expense 5,277
on 2018 Convertible bond

018 F AR ERZER
A B X

Imputed interest expense 7,117
on 2018 Promissory Note

2018 F A W BB 2 HE

M E R X

Imputed interest expense 4,273
on loan

ERZHEENMBRHAX

Interest expense on 2018 1,836

Promissory Note
20185 A i B 2 M B 5l XX
Interest expense on loan 2,846

ERZHMBERHX

Hotel and integrated resort 11,145
general consultancy
services income

BERGEERN —RER
Rl 75 W A

36. BE 5 HE ()

2017
RMB’000
ARBTT

72,180

5,958

326,889

135

2,531

P -
- ° o e o ° ° > 5 O
L - o '. ° o ‘o °. e o ‘0 ®e ®e © e © ®g o .... ® . % % - S B 3D 8
e - L P I o P P o L4 L J L J ® ® ®© © o o
S e I S - e e P = o P e e 'S e - o ® ..o..
o o e. .. ® e - e . o P ° o - L
Pas ° ° o
ez ® . ~F oo . L N - P 3 o o P
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OB Y L o .- . - N . - o



Notes to the-‘Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 38. BE 5K E (M)

Name of related parties Nature of transactions 2018 2017

BERFZR REZMHEE RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F AR T T

Better Linkage (iv) Effective interest expense 3,577 -
on 2018 Convertible Bond
2018 F A M REHF 2 BER

FERX
Billion Grant Success Investment  (iv) Purchase of motor vehicle - 433
Limited REA=E
Mr. Chau and Ms. Chan Wai Leng (V) Sales of travel related products 565 196
BAEERRERZ T & I 2% 48 B8 &
Travel agency services income 77 88
I % X 22 AR 7 e A
Mr. Lo Kai Bong Sales of travel related products 607 76
E R %k & i & ik 27 18 8 &
Travel agency services income 5 2
TR 82 1% 22 AR 7% UL A

Notes: B 5 -

(i) Fame Select Limited is the immediate holding company of the Company. (i) BEBRAFABARRAZHEHEZRAR -

(i) Sun City Gaming Promotion and Star Hope are wholly owned by Mr. Chau, i) ABGERBEANREZHAQAEZER
the major shareholder, Executive Director and chairman of the Company. R HWTEEREIFERAREZERES -

(i)  Hoi An South Development Ltd was a related party of which Mr. Chau (i)~ Hoi An South Development Ltd & — % 8 i&
beneficially owned approximately 34% equity interest before the acquisition AT RIKEEE 2 2B E18) Al
of the entire interest of Star Admiral (note 18). HATEE=HR H34%KE -

(iv)  Mr. Lo Kai Bong, an Executive Director of the Company, is the ultimate beneficial vy ZARAEHITEEERD %L E ABIilon
owner of Billion Grant Success Investment Limited and Better Linkage. Grant Success Investment Limited 2 Better

Linkage Z S M BEm B A ©

(v)  Ms. Chan Wai Leng is the spouse of Mr. Chau. v) BRERZTRAXEZEMB-

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged the entire equity R2018F 12 A31H - & &£ B & #

interest of HASD as security for certain banking facilities and HASD 2z & #B Ix # - {E /X T HASD 2

borrowings granted to HASD. AETRITHMEREE ZER-

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REBEFTEZEEBABZEFWNBER

including amounts paid to the directors of the Company and ARAREBEERETESTMEERX

certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10. N8 WHFE10MEE -

STCEER 6K
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39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
amounts due to a director and related companies, loan from a
related company, bank and other borrowings, and convertible
bonds as disclosed in notes 22, 31 and 32, respectively, net
of pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash, comprising share capital, share premium and
other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from
time to time. As part of this review, the management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, the issue of new shares, new debts or the redemption
of existing debts.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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AEBENEAEEERERERAS
BEERESELE ABREBEL
EHRERAGEHR SRRFIAKK
B % - A& ERF AN EEKERF

AEBZEARBBEEK %
BIE D B M 22 - 31 232K # FE
ZENG—RBEERBEARKE
kE—HEEARER ETRE
g ERJRRKRES  MNkE EH#
RITEFH ZXBRANBITFRARIRE
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(B R B e
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. € T A

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a)

EMIENDE

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT

Financial assets EWMEE
FVTPL BRAREFGF AER
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL EWH AR ERA

BHEE 44,934 _
Amortised cost/loans and receivables b NN = S 179,777 427,617
224,711 427,617

Financial liabilities ol
Amortised cost 2 55 pk AN 1,872,031 1,575,817
Derivative financial instruments mTEeMIA 1,578,882 439,938
3,450,913 2,015,755

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices b) cHEREEEERKE

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, amounts due from
directors, bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank deposits, trade and other payables, amounts
due to related companies and a director, loan from a related
company, rent and other deposits, provisions for litigations,
derivative financial instruments, convertible bonds, and bank
and other borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (represented by
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

AEBZFTESRMIERER
WEREFEREMERR - ZAAE
AFABRzeRMEE BIKE
EXRHE - ROLEHBERAS B
WROTTFER ZIRFBITER
FE 1 BR 3k K& E fb FE A 3R FE
BEAAR—BREETRE KB
—HHEEARER HERkEM
Re BMFRZEBEEHE TEE®
TE AJHRBREFURRITREE
HEE ST AZHRBE
REBHTIEE 2SI A
BRZEBREETSRAREE
BER - FEERRREMESR
R) - EERB KRB MR-
0 ] R 52 & R B Y BROR # R
T - BEEESEBERERZSE
[E B - DA BE R R B B A R £ R
BE B

ABHEEERERA 20 1

“T)\FEFERE
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Market risks

(1)

Currency risk

All the Group’s entities do not have any foreign currency
sales and purchases for both years. The Group’s
exposure to currency risk is mainly attributable to
other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, amounts
due from directors, bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits, amount due to a director, amount due
to a related company, loan from a related company,
derivative financial instruments and convertible bonds
that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they related.
The management manages and monitors this exposure
to ensure approximate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they related at the end of each reporting period are as
follows:

40. ¢ T H (&)
b) *tREKREEEERKEH)

m%ﬂm

(0

B ¥ JE bz
R EEERN K& B A
EEBUYEBETEMINEG
EBE- ASE@EBR &
REErERAEHEERED
EEBEUNIINCEBFEZ
HEmEl - ZEAnETA
TE Zéﬁﬂﬁ? fEE S

RE - HROTEHRERES B
Tﬁ#ﬁﬁ‘ﬂ_ﬂ B —%E
ERE BN —HEBEERQF
RE -RE—HBEAAE
FoPTELRIAERAIHR
BEHFE EBEEEEERER
ZERK NBERLEEBEERS
R b B ER S 8 B o

ANEBMPERSEHKNUN
BERBNEEEUININER
HECEBBEEREESR
BEREBEBEAT :

Assets

BE
2018
RMB’000
AR TR

Liabilities

&8E

2018
RMB’000
AR T

2017
RMB’000
ARBTT

2017
RMB’000
AR TT

HK$ T 2,544,461 855,713 85,545 45,625

$%@fﬁﬁ%jﬁﬁﬂﬁl\ﬁ§”ﬁi¢

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency

hedging policy. However, the management monitors BE-Am BEEE®E
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging SNEER PR - WA FEERE F‘-?

BB AN RR -

significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Market risks (Cont’d)

(1)

(i)

Currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on a 10% increase/decrease in functional currency of
respective entities against the relevant foreign currencies.
10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10%
change in foreign currency rates.

If RMB had been 10% strengthened/weakened to HK$
for respective HK$ denominated monetary assets and
liabilities, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have decreased/increased by
approximately RMB184,419,000 (2017: post-tax profit
would have increased/decreased by approximately
RMB60,757,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
related to amount due to a related company (note 22),
loan from a related company (note 22), other borrowings
(note 31) and debt component of convertible bonds
(note 32).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to the restricted bank deposits (note 24),
pledged bank deposits (note 24), bank balances (note
25), bank borrowings (note 31) due to the fluctuation of
the prevailing market interest rates for both years.

e M| RME

40. €@ T B (&)
b) *REMRESEEERKE )

i % B2 (&
() EEERERGE)

(i)

BRRE DN
LMTHEESTMDERS
EREEBEBEINKE
E AT B®10%m B E e
10% I MEEEREABEEW
e s s = O
tbE - WRERERELHINE
ERATAEABEGHHTMG-
BREEDNERFENINE
AEMMAZNEKIES
IR R4 HA R LA S B B =R
FE10% 1EE H % -

Wt SR B T ENERK
EERBEBARBEET
FFS T H10% 0 Bl AR EH
W =2018F12A31H 1t
FENBRREBEBRD
o4 A R #184,419,000
L(20174 : Br B & & 7
R AR
60,757,000 7T ) °

Tl & =7 bz

A& B E R RN — R E
AR FRIE (M 5E22) - R B —
M REE D A B k(M sE22) »
HafEE (M E31) XAl 8K
EHzEBBD (HE32)HF
BE AR ERNEER-

RAEFEEANERTTS
FEZHE  REEIRHZ
BR %l 4R 17 17 K (Ff 52 24) - B
I 18R 1T 17 s (BT 7 24) -~ iR
THE R (M sE25) BITHEE
(M sE31)ERIR & K 2 5 =X
2 B o

RIS EBER AR AT
T N\EEEHE
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Market risks (Cont’d)

20

(i)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. The directors of the Company monitor
the Group’s exposure on ongoing basis and will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly sensitive to
the fluctuation of interest rate arising from the Group’s
restricted bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates risk for restricted
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points for
restricted bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and 50 basis points for bank borrowings
increase or decrease are used during the year for the
Group when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the post-tax
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 would have
decreased/increased by approximately RMB111,000
(2017: post-tax profit would have increased/decreased
by approximately RMB232,000).

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower,
with all other variable held constant, the Group’s post-tax
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 would have
increased/decreased by approximately RMB2,570,000
(2017: post-tax profit would have decreased/increased
by approximately RMB1,669,000).
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40. €@ T B (&)
b) *tREKRESEEERKEH)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)

Market risks (Cont’d) 5 & B (&)
(i) Other price risk (i) E (8 15 )= B

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL (31
December 2017: Nil). For equity securities measured
at FVTPL (31 December 2017: Nil) quoted in the Stock
Exchange, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

The Group is also required to estimate the fair value
of the derivative financial instruments at the end of
each reporting period with changes in fair value to
be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as long as
the convertible bonds are outstanding. The fair value
adjustment will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in market interest rate,
the Company’s share market price and share price
volatility.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses of equity securities measured at
FVTPL have been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the reporting date. If the prices
of the respective equity instruments had been 10% (31
December 2017: Nil) higher/lower, the post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 December 2018 would have
decreased/increased by approximately RMB4,493,000
(2017: Nil) as a result of the changes in fair value of
investments at FVTPL (2017: Nil).

The sensitivity analyses of derivative financial instruments
below have been determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk and volatility risk arising from derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period
only as the directors of the Company consider that the
change in market interest rate may not have significant
financial impact on the fair value of derivative financial
instruments.

AEBEBEREAAE
FABSFEZRAEFH
2 % &(2017F12A318 :
m)AZBRERR - BB
FrATs iz A 2 B A B &
2 B A %A (2017 412 A 31
B:Ems EEEERHE
FIrEEROIEEHEASE XK
EEUER AEEZIRE
BB ERERRR I
REFTEHZEH T HH
2 B o

REBAIZRAES W ARITE
ARNEE AR S RS H
AfAFITEERIAZA
RE M2A2AEZEZHER
HeEBmkEtE2mE ks
KANER - A A EAERE
(HR8f)mBMNE - AQ
Ak mEZEDHKRER
PImMXIEEXEBEY
@,

B E D
BARBEFTAEZNRKRAN
BHERHEERE DT DER
REBHRMEE 2 KERRK
MET - WHEBKRATED
B EF T FE10% (2017
F12A318: &) 8 HAK
DRABEFABRZEEZ
NABEBEE(017F : )W
BE A 2 #H E20184F 12 A 31
BIEFERBRREEBBR
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

20

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Market risks (Cont’d)

(iii)  Other price risk (Cont’d)
Changes in share price
If the Company’s share price had been 5% higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year (as a result of changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments) would have
increased/decreased by approximately RMB2,469,000
(2017: post-tax profit for the year would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB42,607,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of each reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, other deposits, amounts
due from directors, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances.

Trade receivables/trade related amounts due from directors

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. The Group also reviews
the recoverable amounts of the relevant debts and the
probability of default by the counterparty at the end of each
reporting period. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9
(2017: incurred loss model) on trade receivables and trade
related amounts due from directors individually. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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40. €@ T B (&)
b) *REMRESEEERKE )

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Trade receivables/trade related amounts due from directors
(Cont’d)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 5% (31
December 2017: 7%) of the total trade receivables was
due from top five customers as at 31 December 2018.
The Group’s remaining customers individually contribute to
less than 10% of the total trade receivables of the Group.
Except for the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

As stated in notes 22 and 38, controlling shareholders and/
or its controlled entities act as collecting agent for the Group,
therefore the Group has concentration of credit risk under
such arrangement.

Other receivables/Other deposits

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss
model) on other receivables and other deposits based on
12m ECL.

The credit risk on other receivables and other deposits are
limited since there is no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

Based on the Group’s internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for other receivables
and other deposits.

Pledged bank deposits/restricted bank deposits/bank
balances

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss
model) on pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits
and bank balances based on 12m ECL.

1= B & B K 6t 8 FF 1 (48
JEYBR 50 FE Uk & F 5 1H B %
IH (&)

R2018F 12 A31H @ fE W Bk
H4EEE 7 5% (2017F12 318 -
7%)BEWRAREFREA A
SEGEFERRBREFBRL &
EEH%TITEFEANABLAERZ
FEWEBE RARBE KD HRI0%E
BAoBr EXCRTat& AN AEE I
mEMBERNEESETER BB
MODHARZEARSIEFREERE
)50

a0 Kt iE22 R 38 st 4% IR R R
R/ EZEGHEBETAEH
ZHFRE Bt AEERE
ZRHGEFERRERBR -

H W 7 E R AR
REEBRKRNBEET B RS E
Aot BRI R H
mRERBERHEEBBEER
(2017 F :EEEBERA) K12
i A8 BEE B IR ETREN
fili o

HibEERBEREMERS ZE
ERBRER REASYLEFSER
RERERER BBREKAODMH
ETHFHZH -

REAEB 2 ABEEFTE M
BEREMBRRFIAEGEZS
MR ZEANREEREME -

ERFRITER ZRERTF
IR AT 4
REEBREKRNBELEH B RS E
AIEOREMRDERARITEN
XBEVRTHERRRTERR
ERHEREEBEA(2017F:
EELEBBEN)RI12({EA BB
EEBBRETRENG-
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Pledged bank deposits/restricted bank deposits/bank
balances (Cont’d)

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks or a financial institution
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Based on the Group’s internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances.

The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

External
credit
rating

b I8
5 BT R

Notes

B &

Financial assets at
amortised costs

REBHEBAESERZ
cRMEE

Trade receivables 21 N/A
FE Y2 BR 5K i A
Amounts due from directors 22 N/A
FE U E = RIE T A
Other receivables 21 N/A
H h & Y50 i A
Other deposits 21 N/A
Hibiz & T A

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

e o
% e ° o
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40. %nﬂlﬁ(%ﬁ)

(b)

Internal
credit
rating

" &P

ERTR

(Note 1)
(Bt 3E1)

(Note 1)
(Bt 3E1)

(Note 2)
(Mt 3£ 2)

(Note 2)
(Bt 3£ 2)

lifetime ECL

FHEEER

ﬁﬂﬂ@“ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%)

1= B fz R #8575 (48)
EMARITIER R IETT 7
R ITA B (B)
BEFRITER SREBTHE
RRBTEBZEERRER
RAGEHSFRAEBEZFEITX
—HemEE ESEEEET
GEEBRTENEETR-

REASBE AN EEFE #H
B EMRITER ZRHIR
TERERRTERERZERXN
MIEREEE -

TRRBAAKESBEE 2 2
SRMMO ZEENEEER
o

Gross
carrying
amount

12-month or

1218 A = & #
# BR H B
RMB’000

ARBT T

Lifetime ECL 64,798
> HEHREREE

Lifetime ECL 368
> HEHREREE

12-month ECL 4,374
122 AEHEE

&5 18
12-month ECL 7,130

12@ AFEHEE
&5 18
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

credit
Notes rating

5 &R
B & FEFAR £

Pledged bank deposits 24 AA+
EHEMBITER
Restricted bank deposits 24 AA+

= IR il R 17 77 3K

Bank balances 25 AA+
RIT 4 B

%Aﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

40. ¢ R T H (&)
b) $REAKREEEERKE(H)

1= B /7 B K 6 18 7F 14 (4&)
External Internal Gross
credit 12-month or carrying
rating lifetime ECL amount
AE 12@A=HE=H
B FEHEEER BEEE
RMB’000
ARET T
N/A  12-month ECL 7,371
TEA 12@ABEHBEE
[=%is!
N/A  12-month ECL 3,068
TEA 12@AEHBEE
[=%is!
N/A  12-month ECL 92,572
TEA 12@AEHBEE
[%is!
Bt 5

Notes:

For trade receivables and trade related amounts due from directors,
the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items on individual basis. Trade receivables of
approximately RMB64,798,000 and trade related amounts due from
directors of approximately RMB368,000 are assessed on individual
basis within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no material impairment
allowance on trade receivables and trade related amounts due from
directors is provided on individual basis. The directors of the Company
considered that no impairment allowance is necessary at the end of
the reporting period.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

1. BEBKEIREKEZZEZHEEXR
Hims A5EEEHASESMGR
HEAFORBEEZEREZHAEHE
BEBGAEBEEEG - AEEULE
FEEEFrZSHEEZEHEES
18 - FE W AR 3K 40 A IR 64,798,000 7T
FEKESEZFHERBHARKE
368,0007T LA 8 Rl &£ £ FF 4 = # 78
HEEBRGEEERME)

REE2018F12A31H IEFE  #
ERERERREREZTZESER
AT IR 2 & AR E & E R
EE) - ARAESRANBEHR
1B 4 B R B A o

BRBEXDEREBEARAFH
B EBREZENXMMEE L
EFMHETLERALS FENATE
BZATEEERELFE-
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

21

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past
due information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

Other receivables b JE UL 5k
Other deposits EtiEe

40. & B T B (@)

b) SHEREEEERKE(H)

1= & [ B R 6l 8 & 15 (&)
o - ()

2. BAMEERREENBNME -
AEBEMNBARERNFLEEERAR
BYRERAREDREEM-

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment terms

E 3 g

EE RS
RMB’000
ARHT 7

4,374
7,130

Other receivables of approximately RMB4,374,000 and other deposits
of approximately RMB7,130,000 are assessed based on 12-month
ECL. During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment allowance
of approximately RMB1,983,000 on other receivables is provided and
no material impairment allowance on other deposits is provided. The
directors of the Company considered that no other impairment allowance
is necessary at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. A monthly report on forecasted inflow and outflow
of cash is compiled for the review by the directors of the
Company. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
and other borrowings.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

H oMb & UK 4 A R ¥ 4,374,000 7T
& E 32 & 4 A R #7,130,0007C
RREABHEEBEEIG - RE
F2018F12A31B EF E B H
tEWR KT IRAERENARE
1,983,000 7T & #f £ 5t & fth 12 & 5T 12
BEAREBEE - ARAAEFRAAR
REHRBEETE/ELHEMRER
1%0

T B 1R B
REBTBMRRE AEEE
RPUITHRFERERRENANEN
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b) SREAREEE SR K@)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds as significant sources of liquidity. The Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB1,970,775,000
as at 31 December 2018. Furthermore, the Group’s total
liabilities exceeded its total assets by RMB1,059,000,000
as at 31 December 2018. Taking into account the financial
resources of the Group, including the financial support from
its controlling shareholder, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group has sufficient working capital to
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due for at least
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of each reporting period.

7% B 14 B B (48 )
AEBEBKRBRITREREMEE I
Ak ELSEARBDEE S
Z E KRR KR20184F 12 A 31
B A&EEZz2RBAEEBHER
g&EANRA1,970,775,000 7T °
It SN - 7201812 A31H » A&
BrvaErEBaEEERE
A R #1,059,000,0007C ° & 5t &
AEBZ2HBEREBEERLER
RRZ2BBLZRF) ARG ES
RE AEEREERAREEED
RANENRETESHERBE D
P i 5= Rl -

THRINZFINAKERTES
BMEENNBGEOIHHR - Z
FNXRERECREBENRITE
BeaRERERATEARE
KT RRARER -JIKE
BAMERARENRESRE &M
ERBFHMNE - ARFTRESE
TESREHRNMERE -

AEREBZRAER DA 21 1

T \FEERE
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(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

R2018%512 831 R

FEEHER

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate

it £8:
BNz
%

Within 1 year
or repayable
on demand
1R
REREE
RMB’000
N B

40. ﬁmﬂlﬂ(ﬁﬁ)

More than
1 year but
less than
2years
18N

B HeE
RMB'000
ARBT TR

AR5

AR®TR

7 By 1 B B (4E)

More than

2 years but

More than
5years

less than
5years
2EN L
SENL
RMB'000
ARBT TR

RMB’000

Total

undiscounted

cash flows
AfiRRE
HEAH
RMB’000
ARBT TR

e ° o

b) SEEKEEE F&ﬂz%(g)

Carrying
amount

ke
RMB’000

AR®TR

Trade and other payables ERRAREMENT - 213,752 - - - 213752 213,752
Amounts due to related ENBEELEHNE

companies - 52,103 - - - 52,103 52,103
Amount due 1o a related EH-HEELAZNE

company 11.67% 5,310 269,028 - - 274,338 229,000
Amount due to a director ER-48325E - - 4,893 - - 4,893 4,893
Convertiole bonds TaRES 8.79% - 612464 - - 612464 515,120
Rental and other deposits HeREte - 7,448 - - - 7,448 7,448
Loanfromarelated company ~ RE-BEERFES  13.21% 8,433 8,433 262,628 - 219494 164,463
Bank borrowings BOEE 5.64% 61,847 59,593 171,347 230,606 523,393 405,000
Qther borrowings EEE 10.28% 223,100 85,301 - - 308,401 280,252
Total @t 571,993 1,039,712 433,975 230,606 2,276,286 1,872,031

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018



40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Weighted
average
effective ~ Within 1 year
interest  or repayable

rate ondemand
; 1ER T
BEXS

RMB'000
ARETR

As at 31 December 2017 R20175128 318

40.

More than

1 year but
less than

2 years
1EE
BhRE
RMB'000
ARBTT

%Avﬁﬁimﬁ

$RIAEE

b) EREAMBEERFERBKE

B 1 B ()

More than
2 years but

Total

lessthan ~ Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
5 years 5 years cash ﬂows amount

2EN L
BAReE  5ENL

RAE

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMBOOO RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%ETn ARETR

Non-derivative financial it eRER

liabilities

Trade and other payables EREZREMENT = 248,860 = = = 248,860 248,860
Amount due to a related company FEff — i & A 7 308 - 50,193 = = = 50,193 50,193
Amount due to a director Eff—4E25E - 4,668 - - - 4,668 4,668
Provisions for litigations BFDBE - 235,000 - - - 235,000 235,000
Convertible bond R ES 14.64% 471,203 - - - 471293 411,107
Rent and other deposits B Rt RS - 8,442 - - - 8,442 8,442
Bank borrowings RAEE 5.64% 42,254 44,635 175176 373458 635,523 445,000
Other borrwings HpfEE 12.00% 189,802 - 189,802 172,547
Total @t 1250512 44,635 175176 373458 1843781 1575817

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each
reporting period.

HHESMN KRB EK
EzHaMEEEE
TeRMABEEZERET
Bz B & -

AR RAE R A A
T \EEEEE

R& MR E
A A £ 3E 9T
Aze8KE
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used) as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities at measurement date;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Cont’d)

Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(Cont’d)

Financial assets/

financial liabilities

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

e MR E

40. ¢ T H (&)
(c) eMIE>AAREHEE

BEHEMEREND %@
EXLRAEREMAR
22 7 {8 ()

Significant
unobservable inputs

TRMEE SREME

Non-derivative financial assets

FTEESRMEE

Derivative financial instruments
classified as FVTPL

PEREAABEFABRZ
MTEEBIA

FEEMEEIEG AZE

Quoted bid prices in an active
market.

BTG REAE-

Binomial Model — in this
approach, certain parameters
(note 32) determined by
management are input into
the Binomial Model to derive
the valuation of the derivative
financial instruments.

—IEAER - R FEF
EREEETNE T2
(M sE32) 8 A Z B A
NGHTESEMI A
fhfE -

Certain parameters include:

— Share price

— Conversion price

— Risk-free rate

— Expected option life

— Expected dividend yield

— Expected volatility
ET2H81%E:

-k B

-Ein(E

— & 3 B )

— 7B 5 HA #E o S

- TEHA AR B AR K

- T8 B3R 18

EXTUEEGARE

Estimation of share price
volatility, determined by
reference to the average
historical volatility of
the Company

HEtRERE  2ZKQA]
2 V¥ 2R I8 B E

AEREBZRAER DA
—T-N\FFEEHRE
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40. ¢ T H (&)
(c) eMIEZAARBHEGE)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Cont’d)
(i)  Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

O BEHEMEEEND GG
EXeMAEREMAR

(Cont’d) Z A AE(E)
Sensitivity analysis R E 5T

If the volatility of the Company’s share price had been
5% higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have increased/decreased by
approximately RMB98,487,000 (2017: Nil) (as a result of
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments).

Fair value hierarchy as at

Level 1

E1R

RMB’000
ARBT T

R20184 12 A31H

Level 2
B2
RMB’000

ARBETT

WARRRKRERE LA T
B5% ' FTA HMa &R X
#FF B KNEEE =2018
FI2A3MBEFENB M
BEEBELEA/ TBRHOAR
#5908,487,0007C (20174 : 4&)
(BT mMIEZARE

Level 3
EIM
RMB’000
ARET T

Total
RMB’000
ARETT

31 December 2018 ZARERER
Financial asset CREE
Listed equity security ETRAE S 44,934 = = 44,934
Financial liability cRERE
Derivative financial TES@MIA
instruments - - 1,578,882 1,578,882
Fair value hierarchy as at 2017F 12 431 H
31 December 2017 ZARERER
Financial liability TRAE
Derivative financial MEEBMTIA
instruments - - 439,938 439,938

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018



40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

%Aﬂjﬁiﬁ%m‘?

40. €@ T A (&)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (c) EMIAZAAMBEE
(Cont’d)
(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial liabilities

(1)

EHEBEIRIALETE
2 2 iR

Derivative

financial

instruments

fTE€mI A

RMB’000

ARET T

1 January 2017 201741 A1H 129,675

Total losses in profit or loss Bm Az EEBE 329,855

Exchange difference PEH =% (19,592)

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 M2017F12 431 H &

201841 H1H 439,938

Total losses in profit or loss BmNEBEESR 1,189,505

Exchange difference fE 7 =% 153,409
Adjustment on partial conversion of BB X #2016 F 7] #2 iR & 5

2016 Convertible Bond Z R (405,785)

Issuance of 2018 Convertible Bond BIT2018F A IR E 5 201,815

At 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H 1,578,882

Total gains/losses in profit or loss are included in
“change in fair value of derivative financial instruments”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

(iii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but
fair value disclosures are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and other financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

There is no transfer among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
during both years.

(1)

B3P 2 iR R A
A B RE MR E K

RENZTESRIAD
28 -

WHEEEMEEEERF
HRRERKE) KR HEGT
BztMEERTHAEE
Zi\\/b
ARBEEZFRRRNEAM
BlRRREHKAI K Z
HemEEREMS R
EEZHEETEEEE“ATE
BE

RREFEARN - F1H - F2RHE
F3M AL EER -

e naeras 217
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FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

from financing activities,

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
including both cash and non-cash

@J

e ° o

4Lﬁﬁ%ﬁ§iiéﬁ2%ﬁ

’@%iﬁi&%fﬁ/\“@) mﬂiéxé

PELZCABEDNEERERERRKR

KRERERAEE
RPN ERBRETHRER

EO

=
AR

ERERE

BZ8

Convertible
bonds/
Loan from Bank and derivative
arelated Provisions other financial
company for litigations borrowings instruments Total
KE-H 8TR TEKEER/
BELNRER RFAZEE EffEE fi£4@IA @3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%BTn ARBTr ARETn ARET:n
(note 22) (note 30) (note 31) (note 32)
(K &E22) GEE) (hatat) (&£ 32)
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1A1R - 235,000 617,547 851,045 1,703,592
Financing cash flows BERENE 240,077 (235,000) 39,057 - 44,134
Decrease in amounts due to ERBEARRERD
related companies (2,846) - - - (2,846)
Deemed capital contribution RiETE (80,436) - - - (80,436)
Transfer of interest payable to other ~ ERAEMFI S ELH
borrowing for loan extension ENCHMEE - - 20,705 - 20,705
Settlement through other deposit BREMEESA
note 21 (c]) (B&21(0) - - (33,000) - (33,000)
Increase in interest payables FEfTF| 8 m - - (10,423) - (10,423)
Change in fair value of NRRERZALBEED
a convertible bond - - - (73,936) (73,936)
Change in fair value of MESRTIAERLEEY
derivative financial instruments - - - 1,189,505 1,189,505
Adjustment on partial conversion B9 Ri#20165F
of 2016 Convertible Bond HRRES 2 BE - - - (554,186) (554,186)
Issuance of 2018 Convertible Bond ~ %472018 £ 7/ 2 | B % - - - 408,426 408,426
Exchange difference ERED 549 - - 179,174 179,723
Interest expenses recognised BREZHNEHT 7,119 - 51,366 93,074 152,459
At 31 December 2018 R2018%512A31H 164,463 - 685,252 2,094,002 2,943,117

Suncity Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018
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RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Cont’d)

%Aﬂﬁﬁ%WE

N BEETHELEZEBZHE

(%)

Convertible
bond/
Bank derivative
Provisions and other financial
for litigations borrowings instruments Total
BTk TBRRES
A A 2 B A HwEE TEemIE MEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT ARBTRT ARETR
(note 30) (note 31) (note 32)
(Bt 5% 30) (B 5E31) (Pt 5%32)
At 1 January 2017 ®2017F1 518 653,843 715,000 494,961 1,863,804
Financing cash flows HERERE (45,000) (143,319) - (188,319)
Reversal of provisions AR BRERED
for litigations (289,240) - - (289,240)
Settlement through BRENEEIHM
a deposit paid (84,603) - - (84,603)
Change in fair value of MESRIA
derivative financial N EEE
instruments - - 329,855 329,855
Exchange difference IE 5, = &8 - - (45,951) (45,951)
Interest expenses ERRAFEAX
recognised - 45,866 72,180 118,046
At 31 December 2017 ®20179F12A31H 235,000 617,547 851,045 1,703,592
AKEREEZERBRAE

T \EEEEE
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the acquisition of
the entire interest of Star Admiral and shareholder’s loan owed
by Star Admiral (note 18) were settled through issuing the 2018
Convertible Bond with a principal amount of HK$297,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB257,475,000) and the 2018
Promissory Note with a principal amount of HK$303,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB262,677,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were other
borrowing of RMB33,000,000 and other payables of approximately
RMB16,496,000, which were settled through the set off of the
other deposits (note 21(c)).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, other borrowing with
loan principal of approximately RMB172,547,000 was extended
and the related interest payable of approximately RMB20,705,000
was refinanced as part of the loan principal and reclassified as
other borrowing.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group provides defined contribution plans to its employees
and executive officers in Macau, Hong Kong, the PRC and other
jurisdictions.

Macau

Employees employed by the Group in Macau are members of
government-managed Social Security Fund Scheme (the “SSF
Scheme”) operated by the Macau Government and the Group is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the SSF Scheme
to fund the benefits.

Hong Kong

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of these schemes
were held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The cost charged to the profit or loss
represented contributions payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The PRC

The Group contributes to the local municipal government retirement
scheme for all qualifying employees in the PRC. The employers
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at the rates specified in the scheme’s rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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297,000,000 ;L (H & RO A R &
257,475,000 7T ) #2018 £F 7] # iR & %
F 7N & # /& 303,000,00078 7T (#8 & ©
49 A R 262,677,000 7T ) #2018 £F &
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND B EXRB 2B BRRARK R B
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY <))

Non-current assets

FRBEE

AR¥MT R

As at 31 December
M®12A831H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment ME- -BERZE 11 19
Investments in subsidiaries (Note (a)) R B A R & E (M 3E (@) 1,277,602 889,613
1,277,613 889,632
Current assets mEEE
Prepayment and deposits B HIEREZES 32 132
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBETFAERZ
L REE 44,934 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR LIRS 15,112 34,567
60,078 34,699
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H fib & - 3R 1B 6,328 5,810
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENT B R E RIE 884,132 883,484
Amount due to a related company e — R E R R IE 4,658 =
Derivative financial instruments TTESMTITEA 1,578,882 439,938
Convertible bond A R (E 5 - 411,107
Current tax liabilities BNEffi T & & 4,333 4,333
2,478,333 1,744,672
Net current liabilities mEBAEFEE (2,418,255) (1,709,973)
Total assets less current liabilities BELERRDEE (1,140,642) (820,341)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Amount due to a related company e — B8 & N A FRIE 229,000 =
Loan from a related company KE—HEEQLAAER 164,463 =
Convertible bonds Al A% E 5 515,120 -
908,583 -
Net liabilities BEFE (2,049,225) (820,341)
Capital and reserves IR A R 7%
Share capital B& 7N 582,811 525,734
Reserves (Note (b)) fi& 8 (B 7E (b)) (2,632,036) (1,346,075)
Total deficit &5 Al 48 58 (2,049,225) (820,341)
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)

a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars
of excessive length.

E]
establishment
incorporation/
registration

Place of

Name of subsidiaries operation Legal form

iR/

nts _° L

1. EDAZABRREREE

28 (&)

a. RMEARRE
TREHINEIEZEAEEE
B AERABEONEBRENF
B-ARAEERR REHEM
MBARZESEREMFEE
BRTE -

Registered
capital/issued

and fully paid up

share capital
if&se/
BRAR

Attributable equity interest
held by the Group

Principal
activities

HEAFAH

Access Achievement Limited

Star Admiral

Sun Gentury Property

ABEERE

Shenzhen Zirui

SlES

Shenzhen Sun Era Management
Company Limited

RHARERERERAT

Shenzhen Guang Long City
Commercial Management
Company Limited

RITABAAXERARA

22
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BRBE

The BVI

ZEAARES

The BVI

ZEEARES

The PRC

hE

The PRC

HE

The PRC

o

The PRC

A HE

Suncity Group Holdings Limited

Beny

N/A

Ol

N/A

TER

The PRC

hE

The PRC

HE

The PRC

HE

The PRC

HE

BRI

Limited liabilities
company

BRAH

Limited liabilities
company

ERAF

Wholly foreign
owned enterprise

IERELR

Limited liabilities
company

BRAF

Limited liabilities
company

ARAR

Limited liabilities
company

BRAT

EARK

US§10,000
10,000% 7
US$50,000
50,000% 7T

RMB299,000,000

AR 299,000,000

RMB21,000,000

AR %21,0000007T
RMB1,000,000
AR 10000007

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,007

ARAERZELRE

2018
Direct Indirect

2017
Direct  Indirect

TEEH

ER  BE A&

% % % %

100 - Investment
holding

RARRK

Investment
holding
RERR
100 Property
development
and property
investment
NERER
NERE

Property
development

EGES
Property
management

UESE:

Property
management

VESE:
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44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Cont’d)

a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Place of
establishment
incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries registration

KWEARER

Chaohu Boshing Tourism The PRC
Development Company Limited
ENERREREARAA G
Fushun Sun Era Property The PRC
Development Company
Limited?
BEAGEREHERE Gk
ARAE
Sun Travel Ltd. Macau
ABEEERAT R
Suncity Group Management Macau

and Consultancy Limited

AENEEERERERAT 2R

Place of
operation Legal form

[Ewy AREA

The PRC  Wholly foreign
owned enterprise
" NERELE
The PRC  Limited liabilities
company
hE ERAE
Macau Limited liabilities
company
1! BRAR
Macau Limited liabilities
company
R ERAE

fﬁ?Aﬂﬁ%iﬁ%I}ﬁE

AU KXDPFAZ2MBRRERREHE
25 (&

a.

Registered
capitalfissued
and fully paid up
share capital
imEL/
BEATR
EdR%

US$7,000,000
7,000,000% 7T

US$23,000,000/
US$20,700,000

23,000,000 1/
20,700,005 7T

MOP1,500,000
1,500,000 F9 1

MOP25,000

25,000 1 &

# 10% of the registered capital of the subsidiary was not paid-up by the

non-controlling shareholder.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of both years.

Direct Indirect

Attributable equity interest
held by the Group

Direct

B HE
% %

R B2 T REGE

AEEBAZEERE
2018 2017

Indirect

ik

0/,

90

Principal
activities

TERH

Property
development

nER%

Property
development

VELES

Travel agency
service

EERERH

Hotel and
integrated
resort general
consultancy
service

BER&GA
Rz -k
ERRE

F 72 IR B BROR BB 7% MY B 2 B) A A

IR A B 10% ©

AR RAE R A A
T \EEEEE

R EFER B AR ER
TR TS &

223



44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

e A N Rl R T T T T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial St-atements _° o o R
BANBERME R

1. ARTZHBRREREE
2 5 (%) -

(Cont’d)
b. RESERVES b. f#f#E
Share
Share option Merger Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BhRE
15 E R ANER EXRfife 2 EEB &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTR ARETR AR%ETnT ARETn ARETR
t 1 January 2017 W2017%1 1R 1,399,111 19,594 (752) - (2,822,293)  (1,404,340)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AZEE R R 2 E
income for the year LNt - - 31,341 31,341
Exercise of share options iR E 3,417 (925) = = S 2,492
Recognition of share-based BANRGD AER
compensation benefits BERM - 24,432 - - - 24,432
Forfeiture of share options R - (7,341) = = 7,341 =
At 31 December 2017 and R2017E12A31A R
1 January 2018 2018E1A1H 1,402,528 35,760 (752) - 2,783,611)  (1,346,075)
Loss and total comprehensive  AZEEEBRE2E
expense for the year F% s - - - - (1,870,949)  (1,870,949)
Recognition of share-based BAUNRD BER
compensation benefits BERH - 7,443 = = - 7,443
Forfeiture of share options R B - (5,561) = = 5,561 =
Issue of shares upon partial FRBITRRE
conversion of convertible bond %% %471k 17 497,109 - - - 497,109
Deemed capital contribution BIETE - - - 80,436 - 80,436
At 31 December 2018 #2018 %12 31R 1,899,637 37,642 (752) 80,436 (4,648,999)  (2,632,036)
45. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING 45. R EH REEE
PERIOD
On 21 February 2019, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company BR2019F2H821H & A 7 — [

22

signed a non-legal binding memorandum of understanding with

Paradise Co.,

Ltd.

("Paradise") in relation to a possible co-

operation in Paradise’s casino in Busan, Korea. Details of which
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21
February 2019. The Group is still assessing the potential financial
impact.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited
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= & K B 2 7 HEParadise Co., Ltd.
([Paradisel) & 8] — I T A EZ 2 4
RO BETE NRAE @5
Paradise A 88 B & |1 7 IR 4435 7 ] B¢
AE-FHBHRARA A AE2019F2
A21BZ2 AMAER - AEENE
HEEEY BT E-
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